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ASX Announcement 11 June 2024

Scheme Booklet registered with ASIC

Alumina Limited (ASX: AWC) (Alumina) refers to its announcement made on 7 June 2024 in relation
to the proposal for Alcoa Corporation to acquire 100% of the fully paid ordinary shares in Alumina
by way of a scheme of arrangement (Scheme), and the orders made by the Federal Court of
Australia that Alumina convene and hold a meeting of Alumina shareholders to consider and vote
on the Scheme (Scheme Meeting) and approving the distribution to Alumina shareholders of an
explanatory statement providing information about the Scheme and notice of Scheme Meeting
(Scheme Booklet).

Scheme Booklet

Alumina confirms that the Scheme Booklet has today been registered with the Australian Securities
and Investments Commission (ASIC). A copy of the Scheme Booklet is attached to this
announcement and will be made available online at https://www.aluminalimited.com/alcoa-offer/.

The Scheme Booklet will also be sent to Alumina shareholders as follows:

° shareholders who have elected to receive meeting documents electronically from Alumina
will receive an email containing instructions about how to access or download an electronic
copy of the Scheme Booklet, to lodge their proxy form and to access the online platform for
the Scheme Meeting;

° shareholders who have elected to receive meeting documents in hard copy from Alumina will
receive a letter (by post) with a physical copy of the Scheme Booklet and a personalised
proxy form; and

° all other shareholders will receive a letter (by post) containing instructions about how to
access or download an electronic copy of the Scheme Booklet, to lodge their proxy form and
to access the online platform for the Scheme Meeting.

Alumina shareholders should read the Scheme Booklet in its entirety before deciding whether to vote
in favour of the Scheme.

Independent Expert’s Report

The Scheme Booklet includes a copy of the independent expert’s report prepared by Grant Samuel
& Associates Pty Limited (Independent Expert).

Lvl 36, 2 Southbank Boulevard
Southbank VIC 3006 Australia
Telephone +61(03) 8699 2600

aluminalimited.com

ABN 85004 820 419
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The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is fair and reasonable and is therefore in
the best interests of Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

The Independent Expert's conclusion should be read in context of the full Independent Expert's
Report and the Scheme Booklet.

Alumina Board Recommendation

The Independent Non-executive Directors and Managing Director and CEO of Alumina
recommend that Alumina shareholders vote in favour of the Scheme, in the absence of a superior
proposal and subject to the Independent Expert continuing to conclude that the Scheme is in the
best interests of Alumina shareholders.*

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of Alumina and the Managing Director and CEO
of Alumina, intends to vote, or cause to be voted, all shares in Alumina which they hold or control
in favour of the Scheme, subject to the same qualifications.

Scheme Meeting

Alumina’s shareholders will be asked to vote on the Scheme at 2pm (AEST) on Thursday, 18 July
2024. The Scheme Meeting will be held in person at the Village Roadshow Theatre, State Library
of Victoria, 328 Swanston Street, Melbourne, Victoria, Australia

and online at www.meetnow.global/M2QDVXW.

All registered Alumina’s shareholders as at 7.00pm (AEST) on Tuesday, 16 July 2024 will be eligible
to vote at the Scheme Meeting. All Alumina shareholders are encouraged to vote either by
completing and returning the proxy form or alternatively by attending the Scheme Meeting in person,
attending online or by proxy, attorney or corporate representative. The Scheme Booklet provides
information on how to lodge your proxy form (if applicable).

You should carefully read the Scheme Booklet in its entirety before making any decision in relation
to the Scheme. You are encouraged to seek independent financial, legal, accounting, taxation and/or
other professional advice before making any voting or investment decision in relation to your Alumina
shares.

Shareholder Information Line

If you have any questions in relation to the Scheme or the Scheme Booklet, please contact the
Alumina Shareholder Information Line on 1800 990 479 (within Australia) or +61 1800 990 479
(outside Australia), between 8.30am and 5.30pm (AEST), Monday to Friday (excluding public
holidays).

Authorised by the Company Secretary

L The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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For investor enquiries:

Craig Evans

General Manager — Strategy & Investor Relations
Phone: +61 3 8699 2603 / +61 413 013 533
craig.evans@aluminalimited.com

ALUMINA

LIMITED

For media enquiries:
Geoff Elliott

GRA Cosway

Phone: +61 2 8353 0400
Mobile: +61 488 051 888
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Scheme Booklet

For a scheme of arrangement in relation to the proposed acquisition of Alumina Limited (ACN 004 820 419) by
AAC Investments Australia 2 Pty Ltd (ACN 675 585 850), a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of Alcoa Corporation.

VOTE IN FAVOUR

The Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina's Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer recommend that you vote in favour of the Scheme, in the absence
of a Superior Proposal and subject to the Independent Expert continuing to
conclude that the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders.’

This is an important document and requires your immediate attention. You should read it carefully and in its
entirety before deciding whether or not to vote in favour of the Scheme. If you are in doubt as to what you
should do, you should consult your legal, financial, tax or other professional adviser. If you have recently sold
all your Alumina Shares, please ignore this Scheme Booklet. Alumina has established an Alumina Shareholder
Information Line which you should call if you have any questions in relation to the Scheme.

Financial advisers Legal adviser

B = KING &WODD
FILLAGSTAFF BofA SECURITIES %7 MALLESONS
i BITESER

1. The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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Important notices

General

Alumina Shareholders should read this Scheme Booklet in
its entirety before making a decision as to how to vote on the
Scheme Resolution to be considered at the Scheme Meeting.

Purpose of Scheme Booklet

The purpose of this Scheme Booklet is to explain the terms
of the Scheme and the manner in which the Scheme will be
considered and implemented (if approved) and to provide
such information as is prescribed by law or otherwise may
be material to the decision of Alumina Shareholders whether

>y10t to approve the Scheme.

dﬂs Scheme Booklet includes the explanatory statement
quired to be sent to Alumina Shareholders under Part 5.1
f the Corporations Act in relation to the Scheme.

This Scheme Booklet does not constitute or contain an offer
Alumina Shareholders, or a solicitation of an offer from
%]umina Shareholders, in any jurisdiction. This Scheme Booklet
ig not a disclosure document required by Chapter 6D of the

orporations Act. Subsection 708(17) of the Corporations Act
jrovides that Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act does
pot apply in relation to arrangements under Part 5.1 of the
c@frporations Act approved at a meeting held as a result of
order under subsection 411(1) of the Corporations Act.
stead, Alumina Shareholders asked to vote on an
rangement at such a meeting, being the Scheme Meeting,
ust be provided with an explanatory statement as referred

(n) above.

aesponsibility for information

e information contained in this Scheme Booklet, other
an Alcoa Information, the Independent Experts’ Report
or references to the Independent Expert's analysis of
¢_conclusions), Independent Limited Assurance Report and
ny other report or opinion prepared by an external adviser
OfAIumina, has been prepared by Alumina and is the
I I responsibility of Alumina. Neither Alcoa nor Alcoa Bidder,
r any of their directors, officers, employees or advisers
and none of Alumina’s advisers assume any responsibility
for the accuracy or completeness of the Alumina Information.

The Alcoa Information has been provided by Alcoa and is the
responsibility of Alcoa. None of Alumina, its directors, officers,
employees or advisers, and none of Alcoa’s advisers assume
any responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the
Alcoa Information.

The Independent Expert has prepared the Independent
Expert’s Report in relation to the Scheme contained in
Annexure A and takes responsibility for that report. None
of Alumina, Alcoa and their respective directors, officers,
employees and advisers (which, to avoid doubt, excludes
the Independent Expert) assume any responsibility for the
accuracy or completeness of the Independent Expert's
Report, except in the case of Alumina and Alcoa, in relation
to the information which it has respectively provided to
the Independent Expert for the purposes of preparing the
Independent Expert’s Report.

Alumina Limited

The Investigating Accountant has prepared the Independent
Limited Assurance Report in relation to the Scheme contained
in Annexure B and takes responsibility for that report. None
of Alumina, Alcoa and their respective directors, officers,
employees and advisers (which, to avoid doubt, excludes the
Investigating Accountant) assume any responsibility for the
accuracy or completeness of the Independent Limited
Assurance Report.

No person consenting to be named in this Scheme Booklet
has withdrawn their consent to be named before the date of
this Scheme Booklet.

ASIC and ASX

A copy of this Scheme Booklet has been registered by ASIC
under section 412(6) of the Corporations Act. ASIC has been
given the opportunity to comment on this Scheme Booklet
in accordance with subsection 411(2) of the Corporations
Act. ASIC has been requested to provide a statement, in
accordance with section 411(17)(b) of the Corporations Act,
that ASIC has no objection to the Scheme. If ASIC provides
that statement, it will be produced to the Court at the
Second Court Hearing. Neither ASIC nor its officers take

any responsibility for the contents of this Scheme Booklet.

A copy of this Scheme Booklet has been lodged with ASX.
Neither ASX nor its officers take any responsibility for the
contents of this Scheme Booklet.

Important notice associated with the Court order
under subsection 411(1) of the Corporations Act

The Court is not responsible for the contents of this Scheme
Booklet and, in ordering that the Scheme Meeting be held, the
Court does not in any way indicate that the Court has approved
or will approve the terms of the Scheme. An order of the Court
under section 411(1) of the Corporations Act does not mean
that the Court: (a) has formed any view as to the merits of the
proposed Scheme or as to how members should vote (on this
matter members must reach their own decision); (b) has or

will approve the terms of the Scheme; (c) has prepared, or

is responsible for the content of, this Scheme Booklet; or (d)
otherwise endorses, or provides any other expression of
opinion on, the Scheme.

Forward-looking statements

This Scheme Booklet contains both historical and forward-
looking statements.

The forward-looking statements reflect the views of Alumina
or, in relation to the Alcoa Information, Alcoa, held only as at
the date of this Scheme Booklet concerning future results
and events and generally may be identified by the use of

"o

forward-looking words or phrases such as “believe”, “aim”,

" ou "o "on

“expect”, “anticipated”, “intending”, “foreseeing”, “likely”,
“should”, “planned”, “may”, “estimated”, “potential”, or other
similar words and phrases. Similarly, statements that describe
Alumina’s and Alcoa’s objectives, plans, goals or expectations

are or may be forward-looking statements.
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The statements in this Scheme Booklet about the impact that
the Scheme may have on the results or operations of Alumina,
Alcoa, and/or the Combined Group, and the advantages and
disadvantages anticipated to result from the Scheme, are also
forward-looking statements.

Although Alumina believes that the views reflected in
any forward-looking statements contained in the Alumina
Information in this Scheme Booklet have been made on
a reasonable basis, no assurance can be given that such
views will prove to have been correct.

Although Alcoa believes that the views reflected in any
forward-looking statements contained in the Alcoa Information
in this Scheme Booklet have been made on a reasonable basis,
no assurance can be given that such views will prove to have
been correct.

These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that may
cause either Alumina’s, Alcoa’s or the Combined Group's
actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially
from the anticipated results, performance or achievements
expressed, projected or implied by these forward-looking
statements. In addition, factors related to the Scheme that
contribute to the uncertain nature of the forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to: expected timing

to complete the Scheme; filings and approvals relating to

the Scheme; the ability to complete the Scheme considering
the various conditions precedent, including shareholder
approvals; and the possibility that a Regulatory Authority may
prohibit, delay or refuse to grant approval for the Scheme.

Deviations as to future results, performance and achievements
are both normal and to be expected. Alumina Shareholders
should note that the historical financial performance of
Alumina or Alcoa is no assurance of future financial
performance of Alumina or Alcoa (whether the Scheme is
implemented or not). Alumina Shareholders should review
carefully all of the information included in this Scheme Booklet,
including the risks described in section 8.

The forward-looking statements included in this Scheme
Booklet are made only as of the date of this Scheme Booklet.
Neither Alumina, nor Alcoa nor their directors, officers,
employees or advisers give any representation, assurance or
guarantee to Alumina Shareholders that any forward-looking
statements will actually occur or be achieved. Alumina
Shareholders are cautioned not to place undue reliance

on such forward-looking statements.

Subject to any continuing obligations under law or the ASX
Listing Rules, Alumina and Alcoa do not give any undertaking
to update or revise any forward-looking statements after

the date of this Scheme Booklet to reflect any change in
expectations in relation to those statements or any change

in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.

Alumina, Alcoa and their respective directors, officers,
employees and advisers disclaim any obligation or undertaking
to distribute after the date of this Scheme Booklet any updates
or revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect: (a)
any change in expectations in relation to such statements; or
(b) any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which
such statement is based.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements
attributable to Alumina or Alcoa or any person acting on their
behalf are qualified by this cautionary statement.

No investment advice

This Scheme Booklet does not constitute financial product
advice and has been prepared without reference to the
investment objectives, financial situation and needs of any
particular Alumina Shareholders or any other person. This
Scheme Booklet should not be relied upon as the sole basis
for any decision in relation to the Scheme or your Alumina
Shares. Before making a decision in relation to the Scheme
or your Alumina Shares, including any decision to vote for
or against the Scheme, you should consider whether that
decision is appropriate in the light of your particular
investment needs, objectives and financial circumstances.
If you are in any doubt about what you should do, you
should consult your independent legal, financial, tax or
other professional adviser.

Foreign jurisdictions

This Scheme Booklet complies with the disclosure
requirements applicable in Australia, which may be different
to those in other countries.

The release, publication or distribution of this Scheme Booklet
in jurisdictions other than Australia may be restricted by law
or regulation in such other jurisdictions and persons outside
of Australia who come into possession of this Scheme Booklet
should seek advice on and observe any such restrictions. Any
failure to comply with such restrictions may constitute a
violation of applicable laws or regulations.

This Scheme Booklet has been prepared in accordance

with the laws of Australia and the information in this Scheme
Booklet may not be the same as that which would have been
disclosed if this Scheme Booklet had been prepared in
accordance with the laws and regulations of a jurisdiction
outside of Australia.

This Scheme Booklet and the Scheme do not in any way
constitute an offer of securities in any place in which, or to any
person to whom, it would not be lawful to make such an offer.

You will not be able to receive New Alcoa CDIs if you are an
Ineligible Foreign Shareholder. Any New Alcoa Shares that
would have been issued in connection with the New Alcoa
CDls that you would have otherwise been entitled to will be
issued to the Sale Agent and sold through the Sale Facility
and your pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds remitted
to you.

Alumina Shareholders who are nominees, trustees or
custodians are encouraged to seek independent advice
as to how they should proceed.

Further information is set out in the 'Frequently asked
questions’ section.
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Notice to United States investors

The New Alcoa Shares (including those represented by New
Alcoa CDIs) and the New Alcoa Preferred Shares to be issued
in connection with the Scheme have not been and will not be
registered under the Securities Act or the securities laws of any
state, district or other jurisdiction of the United States. Instead,
the New Alcoa Shares (including those represented by New
Alcoa CDIs) and the New Alcoa Preferred Shares to be issued
in connection with the Scheme will be issued in reliance on the
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities
Act provided by section 3(a)(10) thereof on the basis of the
approval of the Court, which will consider, among other things,
the fairness of the terms and conditions of the issuance and
exchange of such securities to Alumina Shareholders.

United States investors should refer to sections 11.5 and
>J§6(k) for further information concerning transfer restrictions
J

isclosures and other notices.

;rivacy

Qlumina and the Alumina Share Registry may collect personal
information in the process of implementing the Scheme.
e personal information may include the names, addresses,
ntact details and security holdings of Alumina Shareholders
de the names of persons appointed by Alumina Shareholders
3 proxies, attorneys or corporate representatives at the
cheme Meeting. The collection of some of this personal
= fOrmation is required or authorised by the Corporations Act.

@we primary purpose of collecting this personal information
#s to assist the conduct of the Scheme Meeting and to enable
gnplementation of the Scheme. The personal information may
disclosed to Alumina, Alcoa and their respective Related
odies Corporate, third party service providers, including
rint and mail service providers, authorised securities brokers
S=and any other service provider to the extent necessary to
qgwplement the Scheme. The personal information may also be
isclosed to Australian government agencies, law enforcement
encies and regulators, or as required under other Australian
aw, contract, or court or tribunal order.

the information outlined above is not collected, Alumina
ay be hindered in, or prevented from, conducting the
Scheme Meeting and implementing the Scheme.

lumina Shareholders who are individuals and the other
individuals in respect of whom personal information is
collected as outlined above have certain rights to access
the personal information collected in relation to them.
Such individuals should contact the Alumina Share Registry
on 1300 556 050 (within Australia) or +61 3 9415 4027
(outside Australia) if they wish to exercise these rights.

Alumina Shareholders who appoint a named person to act as
their proxy, attorney or corporate representative should ensure
that they inform that person of the matters outlined above.

The Privacy Policies of Alumina and Alumina Share Registry
is available at www.aluminalimited.com and www.
computershare.com, respectively and contain information
about how an individual may access personal information
about the individual that is held by Alumina and Alumina
Share Registry, seek the correction of such information or
make a privacy related complaint and how such a complaint
will be dealt with.

Alumina Limited

Notice of Scheme Meeting

The Notice of Scheme Meeting is set out in Annexure F.

Notice of Second Court Hearing

At the Second Court Hearing, the Court will consider whether
to approve the Scheme following the vote at the Scheme
Meeting. Any Alumina Shareholder may appear at the Second
Court Hearing, currently expected to be held at 2.15pm (AEST)
on Monday, 22 July 2024 at the Federal Court of Australia at
305 William Street, Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia.

Any Alumina Shareholder who wishes to oppose approval of
the Scheme at the Second Court Hearing may do so by filing
with the Court and serving on Alumina a notice of appearance
in the prescribed form together with any affidavit that the
Alumina Shareholder proposes to rely on.

Alumina and Alcoa websites

The content of Alumina’s and Alcoa’s websites do not form
part of this Scheme Booklet and Alumina Shareholders should
not rely on their content.

Any references in this Scheme Booklet to a website is a
textual reference for information only and no information in
any website forms part of this Scheme Booklet.

Charts and diagrams

Any diagrams, charts, graphs or tables in this Scheme Booklet
are illustrative only and may not be drawn to scale. Unless
stated otherwise, all data included in diagrams, charts, graphs
and tables is based on information available as at the Last
Practicable Date.

Effects of rounding

A number of figures, amounts, percentages, estimates,
calculations of value and fractions in this Scheme Booklet

are subject to the effect of rounding. Accordingly, the actual
calculation of these figures may differ from the figures set out
in this Scheme Booklet and any discrepancies between totals
in tables or financial information, or in calculations, graphs

or charts are due to rounding. All financial and operational
information set out in this Scheme Booklet is current as at

the date of this Scheme Booklet, unless otherwise stated.

Implied value

The Scheme Consideration comprises New Alcoa Shares
(including in the form of New Alcoa CDIs) and New Alcoa
Preferred Shares. The value of your Scheme Consideration will
therefore vary based on changes in the price of Alcoa Shares
and the AUD/USD exchange rate. Any reference to the implied
value of the Scheme Consideration should not be taken as an
indication that the implied value is fixed.

If you are an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, this also applies
to the New Alcoa Shares which will be issued to the Sale Agent
to sell on your behalf. Any cash remitted to you under the Sale
Facility will depend on the market price of Alcoa Shares and
the AUD/USD exchange rate after the sale by the Sale Agent
has been completed. See section 3.4(h) for further detail.
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Financial information

Investors should be aware that financial information in this
Scheme Booklet includes "non-IFRS financial information”
under ASIC Regulatory Guide 230 Disclosing non-IFRS
financial information published by ASIC.

Alumina and Alcoa have included this non-IFRS financial
information because they believe that it provides Alumina
Shareholders with additional relevant information. The
non-IFRS financial information does not have a standardised
meaning prescribed by the Australian Accounting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards or U.S. GAAP and
therefore may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other entities, nor should it be construed as

an alternative to other financial measures determined in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards or U.S. GAAP. You are cautioned,
therefore, not to place undue reliance on any non-IFRS financial
information included in this Scheme Booklet.

Timetables and dates

All references to times in this Scheme Booklet are references
to AEST, unless otherwise stated.

All times and dates relating to the implementation of the
Scheme referred to in this Scheme Booklet may change and,
among other things, are subject to all necessary approvals
from Regulatory Authorities, including the Regulatory
Approvals.

Further information is set out in ‘Important Dates’ section.

Alumina Shareholder Information Line

Alumina has established an Alumina Shareholder Information
Line which you should call if you have any questions or
require further information in relation to the Scheme.

The telephone number is 1800 990 479 (within Australia)

and +61 1800 990 479 (outside Australia). The Alumina
Shareholder Information Line is open between Monday and
Friday (excluding public holidays in Australia) from 8.30am

to 5.30pm (AEST). Alumina Shareholders should consult
their legal, financial, tax or other professional adviser before
making any decision regarding the Scheme.

Supplementary information

In certain circumstances, Alumina may provide additional
disclosure in relation to the Scheme after the date of this
Scheme Booklet. To the extent applicable, Alumina
Shareholders should have regard to any such additional
information in determining how to vote in relation to

the Scheme.

Interpretation

Capitalised terms and certain abbreviations used in this
Scheme Booklet have the meanings set out in the Glossary
in section 12. The documents reproduced in the annexures
to this Scheme Booklet may have their own defined terms,
which are sometimes different from those in the Glossary.

Currency

Unless otherwise specified, all references to A$ or AUD and
Australian cents are references to the currency of Australia.

Unless otherwise specified, all references to $, US$ or USD
are references to the currency of the United States of America.

The financial amounts in this Scheme Booklet are expressed

in US dollars ($, US$ or USD), unless otherwise stated. Where
applicable, this Scheme Booklet discloses the assumed
exchange rate used to convert US dollars into Australian dollars
(A$ or AUD). The actual Australian dollar equivalent of these
amounts from time to time will depend on the prevailing USD/
AUD exchange rate.

Date
This Scheme Booklet is dated 11 June 2024.
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Important Dates

Time and date

Event

2.00pm on Tuesday,
16 July 2024

Receipt of proxy forms

Latest time and date for receipt of proxy forms, certificates of appointment of body corporate
representative or powers of attorney for the Scheme Meeting by the Alumina Share Registry

7.00pm on Tuesday,
16 July 2024

Voting record date
Time and date for determining eligibility to vote at the Scheme Meeting

2.00pm on Thursday,
18 July 2024

Scheme Meeting
Alumina Shareholders’ meeting to vote on the Scheme

If the Scheme is approved by Alumina Shareholders at the Scheme Meeting

Monday, 22 July 2024

Second Court Date
Court hearing for approval of the Scheme

Tuesday, 23 July 2024

Effective Date and last day of trading of Alumina Shares

Court order lodged with ASIC and announced on ASX

Scheme takes effect and is binding on Scheme Participants

Suspension of Alumina Shares from trading on ASX from close of trading

Wednesday, 24 July
2024

Alcoa CDiIs listed on ASX
Alcoa Foreign Exempt Listing on ASX for the purposes of the Alcoa CDls
First day of trading in New Alcoa CDls on ASX (on a deferred settlement basis)

7.00pm on Thursday,
25 July 2024

Scheme Record Date
Time and date for determining entitlement to receive Scheme Consideration

Thursday, 1 August
2024

Implementation Date
Provision of the Scheme Consideration to Scheme Participants

Thursday, 1 August
2024 (Eastern Time)

New Alcoa Shares commence trading
First day of trading in New Alcoa Shares on NYSE (NYSE: AA)

Friday, 2 August 2024

New Alcoa CDIs commence trading on a normal settlement basis
First day of trading in New Alcoa CDIs on ASX on a normal settlement basis (ASX: AAl)

Monday, 5 August
2024

Holding statements and allotment advices
Holding statements and allotment advices for New Alcoa CDIs dispatched

By no later than

Ineligible Foreign Shareholders

Monday, 16 September Payment of Net Cash Proceeds to Ineligible Foreign Shareholders

2024

All dates including and following the date of the Scheme Meeting are indicative only and subject to change, and, among other
things, are subject to all necessary approvals from the Court and other Regulatory Authorities, including the Regulatory Approvals.
Any changes to the above timetable will be announced through ASX and notified on www.aluminalimited.com. All references to

time in this Scheme Booklet are references to Australian Eastern Standard Time (AEST).
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Letter from the Chairman of
the Alumina Board

Dear Alumina Shareholder, Alumina Board Recommendation
On behalf of the Alumina Board, | am pleased to present The Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing
you with details of the proposed transaction pursuant to Director and Chief Executive Officer* recommend that you vote
which the parties to the AWAC joint venture - Alumina in favour of the Scheme, in the absence of a Superior Proposal
and Alcoa - will combine to form a leading global pure and subject to the Independent Expert continuing to conclude
play upstream aluminium company. that the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders.®
On 12 March 2024, Alumina announced that it had entered Each of the Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s
into a Scheme Implementation Deed with Alcoa under which, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer intends
>iject to certain Conditions Precedent including Alumina to vote, or cause to be voted, all Alumina Shares which they
===Shareholder approval, 100% of Alumina Shares will be hold or control in favour of the Scheme, subject to the

acquired by Alcoa under the Scheme. same qualifications.

nder the Scheme, eligible Alumina Shareholders will be In its assessment of the Transaction, the Alumina Board has
entitled to receive 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares (in the form had regard to a range of factors, including:

f ASX-listed New Alcoa CDIs) for each Alumina Share.? « the underlying values of Alumina’s and Alcoa’s businesses,

n implementation of the Transaction, Alumina Shareholders and thgir relative contribution to the underlying value of the

ill hold approximately 31.6% of the Combined Group, with Combined Group;

the trading prices of Alumina Shares and Alcoa Shares

Alcoa has agreed to establish a Foreign Exempt Listing on prior to the announcement of the Transaction on 26 February
SX, which will enable Alumina Shareholders to trade Alcoa 2024, including the implied foer premium and each
ares in the form of New Alcoa CDIs on ASX, in the same company's relative contribution to the proforma market
ay they would normally trade Alumina Shares. Alcoa has capitalisation of the Combined Group;
mmitted to maintain the Foreign Exempt Listing for New the strategic and funding related benefits which are expected
Olcoa CDils for at least 10 years from the Implementation Date. to flow to the Combined Group from the Transaction;

jisting Alcoa Stockholders holding approximately 68.4%.3

e Transaction is conditional on approval by Alumina the future risks and challenges for Alumina as a standalone
hareholders and the Court.In order to proceed, the entity; and
Ejransaction must be approved at the Scheme Meeting by:

the conclusion of the Independent Expert, Grant Samuel

a majority in number of Alumina Shareholders present & Associates Pty Limited, that the Transaction is fair and

and voting (unless the Court orders otherwise); and reasonable and is therefore in the best interests of Alumina
Shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal. A copy
of the Independent Expert Report is included in this Scheme
Booklet as Annexure A.

- at least 75% of the total number of votes cast by Alumina
Shareholders.

his Scheme Booklet (including the Independent Expert’s
Report in Annexure A) sets out important information in
relation to the Transaction, and should be read carefully prior
to making a decision on how to vote at the Scheme Meeting.

Having regard to the above and other factors, the Alumina
Board believes the Transaction is in the best interests of
Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of a Superior Proposal,
and subject to the Independent Expert continuing to
conclude that the Transaction is in the best interests of
Alumina Shareholders.

2. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme
Consideration. See sections 3.3 and 3.4 for an overview of specific arrangements relating to: (a) the CITIC Shareholders to enable their compliance with the

US Bank Holding Act; and (b) the ADS Depositary to enable ADS Holders to receive New Alcoa Shares. 3. Based on the shares on issue on 12 March 2024, being
2,901,681,417 for Alumina and 179,558,990 for Alcoa. On a fully diluted share basis as of 23 February 2024, including stock options, stock units, conditional and
performance rights, Alumina Shareholders would own 31.25% of the Combined Group. 4. Alumina Shareholders should note that Alumina’s Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Ferraro, will receive certain benefits in connection with the Scheme, which are described in section 11.2 of this Scheme Booklet.
These benefits include the vesting of unvested ESP Entitlements and Conditional Rights valued at A$3,038,860 and A$1,398,391 respectively, based on the value
of Alumina Shares at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date. Despite this interest, Mr Ferraro considers that given the importance of the Scheme and his
role as Managing Director and CEQ, it is important and appropriate for him to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to voting on the
Scheme. Additionally, the Independent Alumina Directors also consider that it is important and appropriate for Mr Ferraro to provide a recommendation to
Alumina Shareholders in relation to the Scheme given his role in the management and operations of Alumina. 5. The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina
Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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Benefits of combining with Alcoa

The Transaction is expected to provide a number of benefits
to Alumina Shareholders, including the following:

.

Unified ownership of AWAC. The Transaction represents

a logical combination which simplifies the ownership
structure and aligns the interests of the two AWAC joint
venture parties. If the Transaction is implemented, Alumina
Shareholders will exchange their interest in a minority
non-operating joint venture partner for a direct interest

in the operating entity.

Exposure to a leading global pure play upstream aluminium
company with a geographically diversified portfolio across
bauxite, alumina and aluminium. Alumina Shareholders will
benefit from increased exposure to aluminium, a key product
for the energy transition and decarbonisation, while maintaining
significant exposure to AWAC.

Enhanced capital structure. The Transaction will eliminate
the capital structure inefficiencies embedded in the current
joint venture structure. The Transaction will enable more
efficient funding, resulting in potential financial synergies
which will be shared by Alumina Shareholders as investors
in the Combined Group.

Better platform for the future. The Combined Group is
expected to have increased financial flexibility and greater
strategic optionality through access to a larger balance sheet.

In addition, the exchange ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa
Shares (in the form of New Alcoa CDIs) for each Alumina
Share represents a premium of:

+ 13.1% to the price of Alumina Shares on 23 February 2024,
being the last trading day prior to the announcement of the
Transaction on 26 February 2024, based on Alcoa’s closing
share price as at 23 February 2024;

19.5% to the average exchange ratio over the 12 months
to 23 February 2024;° and

86.3% to the undisturbed closing price of Alumina Shares
as at close of trade on 23 February 2024, being the last
trading day prior to the announcement of the Transaction
on 26 February 2024, based on Alcoa’s closing share price
as at the Last Practicable Date.

Further information on the reasons to vote in favour of the
Scheme is set out in section 1.3.

Risks and challenges for Alumina as
a standalone entity

Whilst the Alumina Board continues to believe in the
strength and attractiveness of the AWAC business in the
long term, Alumina faces a number of risks and challenges
on a standalone basis.

In particular, higher energy costs in Spain and the bauxite
quality issues experienced in Western Australia have had
a considerable impact on the AWAC business in the past
18 months, leading to lower production, higher costs, and
elevated capex requirements.

In turn, AWAC's free cash flow generation has been adversely
affected. In 2023, Alumina and Alcoa made net capital
contributions of US$396m to AWAC, compared with average
annual cash distributions from AWAC of approximately
US$560 million over the ten years preceding 2023. Alumina
has not declared a dividend since the interim dividend for
the six months to 30 June 2022.

While there have recently been some positive developments,
AWAC's outlook remains challenged in the near term. The
decision by the WA Government to approve AWAC's 2023-
2027 mine plan for its Huntly and Willowdale bauxite mines
has reduced the uncertainty concerning continued bauxite
mining and alumina refining in Western Australia. However,
ongoing permit and approval requirements and related
conditions remain a key focus for AWAC. Recent poorer quality
bauxite grades in Western Australia are expected to continue
until at least 2027 and substantial capital expenditure will be
incurred on the planned mine moves to access bauxite from
the new regions at Myara North and Holyoake.

AWAC has also recently announced two portfolio actions:
the full curtailment of the Kwinana refinery commencing in
the second quarter of 2024; and the decision to initiate
further actions at the partially curtailed San Ciprién refinery in
Spain. The Kwinana refinery curtailment resulted in significant
restructuring charges in the first quarter of 2024, and the
actions at the San Ciprian refinery could entail a material
restructuring charge in the near term, to deliver improved
operating results in the longer term.

Reflecting these factors, AWAC's free cash flow generation
is likely to continue to be constrained in the next few years,
absent sustained high alumina prices.

6. Based on the daily closing prices of Alumina Shares and Alcoa Shares and the daily prevailing AUD/USD foreign exchange rate over the period.
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Under the current AWAC ownership structure, Alumina is
reliant on distributions from AWAC as its sole source of income
and has limited balance sheet capacity for debt funding. As

at 31 March 2024, Alumina had drawn US$363 million of its
US$500 million bank debt facilities. The first tranche of this
facility (US$100 million) matures in October 2025. In its most
recent review, in April 2024, S&P Global Ratings downgraded
Alumina’s credit rating from BBB- to BB with negative outlook.

contrast, the Combined Group will have a larger balance
===sheet with greater liquidity and will be better positioned to
q)l(nd AWAC's near term restructuring initiatives and capital
penditure requirements, and to fund potential growth
ptions in the longer term.

qyther considerations

(,g recommending the Scheme, the Independent Alumina
irectors and Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief
Qecutive Officer have also considered reasons why an
lumina Shareholder may choose to vote against it, including
=it at they may:

not consider the Scheme to be in their individual best
Cinterests and may disagree with the recommendation of

the Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing

Director and Chief Executive Officer and the conclusions of
U)the Independent Expert;

wish to maintain exposure to Alumina as a pure play
alumina investor, and may consider that despite the risks
G)relevant to Alumina'’s potential future operations, Alumina
may be able to return greater value from its assets by
Quemaining a standalone entity or by seeking alternative
corporate transactions in the future; or

| —-—
prefer to hold shares in an Australian domiciled ASX primary
OIisted company with the potential to pay franked dividends.

LI-Eurther information on the possible reasons to vote against
of the Scheme is set out in section 1.4. In addition, section 8
sets out the risks associated with implementation of the Scheme
and the Combined Group, including that changes in foreign
and domestic tax laws, regulations, or policies, or their
interpretation and application by regulatory bodies, or
exposure to additional tax liabilities, could affect the
Combined Group's future profitability.

As noted in section 7.3(j), implementation of the Scheme will
trigger a review event under the Alumina Facility Agreement,
which may result in the lenders requiring repayment of all
outstanding loans together with accrued interest and other
amounts. Alcoa intends to discuss Alumina'’s current debt
facilities with the lenders to determine the treatment of the
facilities in connection with implementation of the Scheme

and its role in the Combined Group’s overall financing strategy.

Alumina Limited

If, following discussion with Alumina’s creditors, the creditors
elect to require repayment of the Alumina Facility Agreement,
Alcoa can enable Alumina to repay the outstanding loans and
any other accrued amounts (including interest) by accessing its
existing finance facilities or liquidity.

How to vote

Your vote is important. | encourage you to vote by attending
the Scheme Meeting in person or otherwise by following the
voting instructions in section 4.5 of this Scheme Booklet.

The Scheme Meeting is scheduled for 2.00pm (AEST) on
Thursday, 18 July 2024 in person at Village Roadshow Theatre,
State Library of Victoria, 328 Swanston Street (access via

Entry 3 on La Trobe Street), Melbourne, Victoria, Australia.

Further information

This Scheme Booklet sets out important information about the
Transaction, including the key advantages and disadvantages
of the Transaction, the Conditions Precedent, and the
Independent Expert's Report. Please read this Scheme Booklet
carefully and in its entirety before deciding how to vote at the
Scheme Meeting.

If you require any further information, please contact the
Alumina Shareholder Information Line on 1800 990 479
(within Australia) or +61 1800 990 479 (outside Australia),
between 8.30am and 5.30pm (AEST), Monday to Friday
(excluding public holidays).

On behalf of the Alumina Board, | would like to thank you for
your ongoing support. | look forward to your participation in
the Scheme Meeting and encourage you to vote in favour of
the Transaction.

Yours sincerely

W Peter Day
Chairman

Alumina Limited
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1

1.1 ALUMINA BOARD RECOMMENDATION

The Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer’ recommend that you vote in
favour of the Scheme, in the absence of a Superior Proposal and subject to the Independent Expert continuing to conclude that
the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders.® Each of the Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer intends to vote, or cause to be voted, all Alumina Shares which they hold or control in favour
of the Scheme, subject to the same qualifications.

1.2 SUMMARY OF REASONS TO VOTE FOR THE SCHEME AND POSSIBLE REASONS TO
VOTE AGAINST THE SCHEME

(a) Reasons to vote in favour of the Scheme

v The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is fair and reasonable and is therefore in the best interests
of Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal

v/ The Transaction unifies the ownership of the AWAC joint venture, resulting in a simpler and more efficient structure

v Alumina Shareholders will gain exposure to a leading global pure play aluminium company with a geographically
diversified and integrated portfolio across bauxite, alumina and aluminium

v/ The Combined Group will have an enhanced capital structure

v The Combined Group represents a better platform for the future, with increased financial flexibility and greater
strategic optionality through access to a larger balance sheet

v The Scheme Consideration represents a premium to the trading prices of Alumina Shares prior to the announcement
of the Transaction

v The Alumina Share price may fall in the near term if the Transaction is not implemented and in the absence of a
superior proposal for Alumina

v/ Australian resident Alumina Shareholders may be eligible for Roll-Over Relief

(b) Possible reasons to vote against the Scheme

You may believe that the Scheme is not in your individual best interests and disagree with the recommendation by
X the Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and the conclusion
of the Independent Expert

X You may wish to maintain your exposure to Alumina as a pure play alumina investor

X You may prefer to hold shares in an Australian domiciled company with the potential to pay franked dividends,
over holding Alcoa CDls

X Therisk profile of the Combined Group differs from Alumina as a standalone entity

% Youmay take the view that the exchange ratio does not reflect the underlying value of Alumina’s contribution to
the Combined Group

X The implied value of Scheme Consideration is not fixed and will depend on the price at which Alcoa Shares trade
at the Implementation Date

X You may consider there is a potential for a superior proposal to be made for Alumina in the foreseeable future

7. Alumina Shareholders should note that Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Ferraro, will receive certain benefits in connection with
the Scheme, which are described in section 11.2 of this Scheme Booklet. These benefits include the vesting of unvested ESP Entitlements and Conditional Rights
valued at A$3,038,860 and A$1,398,391 respectively, based on the value of Alumina Shares at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date. Despite this
interest, Mr Ferraro considers that given the importance of the Scheme and his role as Managing Director and CEQ, it is important and appropriate for him to
provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to voting on the Scheme. Additionally, the Independent Alumina Directors also consider that it is
important and appropriate for Mr Ferraro to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to the Scheme given his role in the management and
operations of Alumina. 8. The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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1.3 REASONS TO VOTE IN FAVOUR
OF THE SCHEME

(a) The Independent Expert has concluded that
the Scheme is fair and reasonable and is therefore
in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders,

in the absence of a superior proposal

The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is
fair and reasonable and is therefore in the best interests of
Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal.

In summary, the Independent Expert has assessed the full
underlying value of Alumina to be $0.82-0.98 per Alumina
Share (equivalent to A$1.26-1.51, at the exchange rate of
A$1 = US$0.65) compared to the value of the Scheme
Consideration of $0.94-1.06 per Alumina Share (equivalent
A$1.45-1.62, at an exchange rate of A$1 = US$0.65).

===Fhe vast majority of the assessed value of the Scheme
onsideration exceeds the estimate of the full underlying
qalue of Alumina. The Scheme is therefore demonstrably fair.

s the Scheme is fair, it is also reasonable. In any event, there

re a number of other factors that support reasonableness

hich Alumina shareholders should consider in determining
mhether to vote for or against the Scheme.

-

==LwWnership structure pre and post-Transaction’

C From complex ownership at a sub-segment level ...

Combined Group level

Bauxite and Alumina Aluminium

Upstream
assets
(ex-AWAC)

Primary
Aluminium
assets

AWAC
assets

“Alcoa 60%
ALUMINA 40%

Portland, Australia Primary
(55% owned Aluminium portfolio
by AWAC) (ex-Portland)

“Alcoa 60%
ALUMINA 40%

Alumina Limited

The reasons why the Independent Expert reached these
conclusions are set out in the Independent Expert's Report, a
copy of which is included in Annexure A. The Alumina Board
encourages you to read the Independent Expert’s Report in full.

(b) The Transaction unifies the ownership of the
AWAC joint venture, resulting in a simpler and more
efficient structure

The Transaction represents a logical combination which
simplifies the ownership structure of AWAC and aligns the
interests of the two AWAC joint venture partners - Alumina
and Alcoa - and their respective shareholders.

If the Transaction is implemented, Alumina Shareholders

will exchange their interest in a minority non-operating joint
venture partner for a direct interest in the operating entity and
share in the synergies resulting from the removal of duplicate
corporate costs and more streamlined decision making.

Alcoa has agreed to establish a Foreign Exempt Listing on the
ASX to allow Alumina Shareholders to trade Alcoa Shares via
Alcoa CDls on the ASX, in the same way they would normally
trade Alumina Shares. Alumina Shareholders will also have
the flexibility to convert their holdings from Alcoa CDls into
holdings of NYSE-listed Alcoa Shares, and vice versa on an
ongoing basis.

... To a streamlined ownership at the Combined Group level

“Alcoa

Current Alcoa shareholders: 68.4%
Alumina Limited shareholders: 31.6%

Bauxite and

Alumina

@ Pro forma 31.6% ownership across all tier-1 bauxite and
alumina assets and aluminium smelter portfolio

Alumina Limited shareholders will retain effective
31.6% ownership of AWAC assets (vs. 40% today)

9. Based on the shares on issue on 12 March 2024, being 2,901,681,417 for Alumina and 179,558,990 for Alcoa. On a fully diluted share basis as of 23 February
2024, including stock options, stock units, conditional and performance rights, Alumina Shareholders would own 31.25% of the Combined Group.
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(c) Alumina Shareholders will gain exposure to
a leading global pure play aluminium company
with a geographically diversified and integrated
portfolio across bauxite, alumina and aluminium

Alumina Shareholders will receive an investment in the
Combined Group representing a diversified, global leading
pure play, upstream aluminium company, with:

- global bauxite facilities, strategically located in proximity to

Alcoa's refineries and in the 1%t quartile cost curve position
(2023);

- aleading alumina refinery portfolio and the largest alumina
producer (ex-China) with 1%t quartile emissions intensity and
1st quartile cost curve position (2023); and

« world-class aluminium production capabilities through
a global smelting portfolio with 87% of production from

renewable energy and 2" quartile cost curve position (2023).

13

Alumina shareholders will benefit from increased exposure
to aluminium, a key product for energy transition and
decarbonisation, while maintaining significant exposure to
AWAC.

Alcoa is currently a top five global aluminium producer
(excluding China). Its global smelting portfolio is strategically
located in close proximity to key markets in North America
and Europe and is largely powered by renewable energy. With
emission intensity less than one third the industry average and
a suite of low carbon and recycled content products, it is well
positioned to extract any green premium (being the additional
costs paid for products that are low carbon) available in future.

Global Operations of the Combined Group as at the Last Practicable Date

Fjardaal

v
North America
Strathcona'? o Maniciuagan'
¥ Baie-Comeau
¥ Bécancour
Lake Charles? ¥ Deschambault
¥ Massena West

¥ I Warrick

South America

Wy

Guinea'

v Mosjgen

¥ Lista

San Ciprian

. 1
e Ma’'aden JV

Q

Juruti

M ¥ S3o Luis

Estreito?

Serra do Fac3o!
Machadinho?

Barra Grande!

M ¥ Pocos de Caldas

Alumina Aluminium

Mine [ Refinery ¥ Smelter/Casthouse Energy

Western Australia

Willowdale
Huntly
M Pinjarra
M Wagerup
M Kwinana?

¥ Portland

o Location date as of January 26, 2024.

1. Minority ownership, non-operating partner. 2. Processes petroleum

coke, a raw material used to create anodes used in aluminium
smelting. 3. Alumina production to be fully curtailed in 2024.
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(d) The Combined Group will have an enhanced
capital structure

The Transaction will eliminate the capital structure inefficiencies
embedded in the current AWAC joint venture structure.

The Transaction will enable more efficient funding, resulting
in potential financial synergies which will be shared by Alumina
Shareholders as investors in the Combined Group.

(e) The Combined Group represents a better
platform for the future, with increased financial
flexibility and greater strategic optionality through
access to a larger balance sheet

Due to its corporate structure and limited balance sheet
capacity, Alumina faces funding constraints on a standalone
sis.

===Fhe AWAC business has been adversely impacted in the
ast 18 months, particularly due to higher energy costs in
d)ain and the bauxite quality issues faced in Western Australia,
ading to lower production, higher costs and elevated capex
requirements.

turn, AWAC's free cash flow generation has been adversely
ected. In 2023, Alumina and Alcoa made net capital
ntributions of US$396m to AWAC, compared with average
jnual cash distributions from AWAC of approximately
US$560 million over the ten years preceding 2023. Alumina
s not declared a dividend since the interim dividend for
a?e six months to 30 June 2022.

hile there have recently been some positive developments,
WAC's outlook remains challenged in the near term. The
ecision by the WA Government to approve AWAC's latest five
ar mine plan for its Huntly and Willowdale bauxite mines has
educed the uncertainty concerning continued bauxite mining
nd alumina refining in Western Australia. However, recent
G}oorer quality bauxite grades in Western Australia are expected
@continue until at least 2027 and substantial capital expenditure
il be incurred on the planned mine moves to access bauxite
from the new regions at Myara North and Holyoake.

WAC has also recently announced two portfolio actions:

e full curtailment of the Kwinana refinery commencing
in the second quarter of 2024 and the decision to initiate

rther actions at the partially curtailed San Ciprian refinery
in Spain. The Kwinana refinery curtailment resulted in
significant restructuring charges in the first quarter of 2024,
and the actions at the San Ciprian refinery could entail a
material restructuring charge in the near term, to deliver
improved operating results in the longer term.

Reflecting these factors, AWAC's free cash flow generation
is likely to continue to be constrained in the next few years,
absent sustained high alumina prices.

Under the current AWAC ownership structure, Alumina is
reliant on distributions from AWAC as its sole source of income
and has limited balance sheet capacity for debt funding. As

at 31 March 2024, Alumina had drawn US$363 million of its

Alumina Limited

US$500 million bank debt facilities. The first tranche of this
facility (US$100 million) matures in October 2025. In its most
recent review, in April 2024, S&P Global Ratings downgraded
Alumina’s credit rating from BBB- to BB with negative outlook.

In contrast, the Combined Group will have a larger balance
sheet with greater liquidity and will be better positioned to
fund AWAC's near term restructuring initiatives and capital
expenditure requirements, and to fund potential growth
options in the longer term.

(f) The Scheme Consideration represents a
premium to the trading prices of Alumina Shares
prior to the announcement of the Transaction

If the Scheme becomes Effective, eligible Alumina Shareholders
will be entitled to receive Scheme Consideration of 0.02854
New Alcoa CDIs for each Alumina Share.™®

One way to assess the value to eligible Alumina Shareholders
of the Scheme Consideration is to calculate the implied

value of the Scheme Consideration and compare that to the
undisturbed closing price of A$1.02 per Alumina Share on

23 February 2024 (being the last trading day prior to the
announcement of the Transaction to ASX on 26 February 2024).

Based on the Alcoa Share price of US$44.27 per share as

at close of trade on the Last Practicable Date, the Scheme
Consideration has an implied value of A$1.90, representing

a premium of 86.3% to the undisturbed closing Alumina Share
price on 23 February 2024 (being the last trading day prior to
the announcement of the Transaction to ASX on 26 February
2024)."

The above comparison does not take account of changes in
the market and alumina, bauxite and aluminium sectors since
23 February 2024. Another way to assess the value to eligible
Alumina Shareholders of the Scheme Consideration is to use
the exchange ratio based on the Scheme Consideration for
each Alumina Share and then compare that to the ratio implied
by the undisturbed closing prices of Alumina and Alcoa. This
approach focuses on the relative value received by eligible
Alumina Shareholders under the Transaction compared to the
relative value based on the share prices of the two companies
at a point in time. Assessing the relative value of Alumina

and Alcoa based on the undisturbed share prices prior

to the Transaction being made public allows a like-for-like
comparison given movement in the share prices of both
companies are influenced by similar factors, such as the
macroeconomic environment or more specifically commodity
prices and market sentiment.

The Scheme Consideration (being a fixed exchange ratio of
0.02854 New Alcoa Shares for each Alumina Share) represents
a 19.5% premium to the average exchange ratio of 0.02388
over the 12 months to 23 February 2024 (being the last trading
day prior to announcement of the Transaction to ASX on

26 February 2024)."

10. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme
Consideration. 11. Based on: (1) exchange ratio of 0.02854 per Alumina Share held on the Scheme Record Date; and (2) an AUD:USD exchange rate of 0.6650
as at the Last Practicable Date. 12. Based on the daily closing prices of Alumina Shares and Alcoa Shares and the daily prevailing AUD/USD foreign exchange rate

over the period.
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Alumina and Alcoa trading exchange ratios over the 12 months before the announcement of the Transaction as
compared with the Scheme Consideration exchange ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa CDIs for each Alumina Share™

Anounced
26 Feb 2024
0.0350
00300 — —
0.0250 Wmm 0.02726
0.02388
0.0200
0.0150
0.0100

Feb 23 Mar23 Apr23 May23 Jun23 Jul23 Aug23 Sep23 Oct23 Nov23 Dec23 Jan24 Feb24 Mar24 Apr24

—— Spot Exchange ratio ~ — Scheme consideration Average ratio over the 12 months trading to 23 February 2024

(g9) The Alumina Share price may fall in the near term if the Scheme is not implemented and in the absence
of a superior proposal for Alumina

If the Scheme does not proceed, and no comparable or superior proposal is received by the Alumina Board, the Alumina Share
price may fall.

Since market close on 23 February 2024 (being the last day on which Alumina Shares traded before the Transaction was announced
to ASX on 26 February 2024), the Alumina Share price has increased 85.8% up to a closing price of A$1.90 on Last Practicable Date,
outperforming the ASX Materials Index by 83.4%. See figure below for further information. If the Scheme is not implemented,
there is a risk that Alumina may instead trade in line with, or more negatively than, the ASX Materials Index, potentially reversing
these gains following announcement of the Transaction on ASX.

Alumina Share price performance relative to ASX Materials Index

95.0%

85.0% L ss5%
A/

55.0% VANNEEY N /\ /\/\l

45.0%

35.0% //

25.0% '\’\,/\/_/

15.0% /\l

o I —

Feb 24 Mar 24 Apr 24 May 24

(5.0%)

Alumina 7 ASX Materials Index

13. The 12 month average exchange ratio of 0.02388 is calculated as the average exchange ratio from the Alumina and Alcoa daily share prices and calculated at
the daily AUD/USD exchange rate from 23 February 2023 to 23 February 2024 (being the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Transaction to the ASX
on 26 February 2024).
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(h) Australian resident Alumina Shareholders may
be eligible for Roll-Over Relief

Alumina Shareholders who are Australian tax residents (and
are not tax residents in any other country) and who make a
capital gain from the disposal of their Alumina Shares may

be eligible to choose to apply for Roll-Over Relief. Roll-Over
Relief is not available if a capital loss is made, or for certain
non-resident Alumina Shareholders (refer to Section 9.1(b)(vii)
for further details).

Broadly, Roll-Over Relief enables Alumina Shareholders to
disregard the capital gain they make from the disposal of their
Alumina Shares under the Scheme.

Alumina is seeking confirmation from the ATO that Roll-Over

Relief is available for these Alumina Shareholders. Section 9

provides a general description of certain Australian and United
tes taxation consequences for Alumina Shareholders.

G4 POSSIBLE REASONS TO VOTE AGAINST
HE SCHEME

(a) You may believe that the Scheme is not in
ur individual best interests and disagree with
%e recommendation by the Independent Alumina
irectors and Managing Director and Chief Executive
jfficer and the conclusion of the Independent Expert

Despite the recommendation of Independent Alumina
irectors and Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
vote in favour of the Scheme and the conclusion of the
dependent Expert that the Scheme is fair and reasonable
d is therefore in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders
the absence of a superior proposal, you may disagree that
e Scheme is in your best interests.

y_You may also consider that the tax consequences of disposing
our Alumina Shares pursuant to the Scheme are not attractive
you. This may be for a number of reasons including your
Q(;:-Ersonal circumstances and the fact that any dividends paid by
oa after implementation of the Scheme will not be franked
for Australian tax purposes.

-
e tax consequences of the Scheme will depend on your

q;rsonal circumstances. A general description of the tax
consequences of the Scheme for Alumina Shareholders is
set out in section 9. However, section 9 is general in nature,
and Alumina Shareholders should consult with their own
independent professional tax advisers regarding the tax
implications of the Scheme.

(b) You may wish to maintain your exposure to
Alumina as a pure play alumina investor

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina Shareholders (other
than Ineligible Foreign Shareholders) will become investors
in the Combined Group and will have a reduced exposure to
Alumina’s 40% minority holding in AWAC. You may wish for
Alumina to remain a standalone entity because you invested
in Alumina to seek exposure to AWAC only, rather than a
broader portfolio of assets and operations.

In particular, you may consider that, despite the risks relevant
to Alumina’s potential future operations and the reasons to
vote in favour of the Scheme set out in section 1.3, Alumina

Alumina Limited

may be able to return greater value from its assets by
remaining a standalone entity or by seeking alternative
corporate transactions in the future. As a result, you may not
want to have investment exposure to Alcoa and its assets by
holding Alcoa Shares, Alcoa Preferred Shares or Alcoa CDls.

(c) You may prefer to hold shares in an Australian
domiciled company with the potential to pay
franked dividends, over holding Alcoa CDIs

Alcoa is domiciled in US. Accordingly, any dividends paid
by Alcoa will not be franked for Australian tax purposes.

Alumina has a franking credit balance as at 31 December
2023 of A$493.4 million. The release of franking credits could
provide additional value to those Alumina Shareholders who
place value on franking credits, noting that Alumina has not
declared a dividend since the interim dividend for the six
months to 30 June 2022.

As shareholders in the Combined Group, Alumina
Shareholders will not receive franked dividends however,
they would be eligible to participate in Alcoa’s capital
returns program. Alcoa’s most recent quarterly dividend
of US 10 cents per share was paid on 21 March 2024.

Dividends paid on Alcoa Shares will be distributed by direct
credit to holders of Alcoa CDIs in Australian dollars, unless
they elect to receive payment in US dollars, New Zealand
dollars or in British pounds sterling by providing their banking
details for those currencies. In addition, Alcoa CDI holders
may choose to utilise Computershare’s Global Wire payment
solution to receive payment in other currencies.

(d) The risk profile of the Combined Group differs
from Alumina as a standalone entity

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina Shareholders (other
than Ineligible Foreign Shareholders) will be exposed to the
risks of the Combined Group. The risk and operational profile,
capital structure, asset geography and board and management
of the Combined Group will be different from that of Alumina
as a standalone entity.

Some of the risks of the Combined Group are either related

to the resources sector generally or already affect the Alumina
business due to its ownership in AWAC. Accordingly, Alumina
Shareholders already have some exposure to these risks. Areas
where the risk profile of Alumina and the Combined Group
may differ include:

+ Compared with Alumina, Alcoa’s share price and earnings
have been more volatile, and Alcoa maintains a higher level
of financial leverage in terms of debt to total capital.

Eligible Alumina Shareholders will receive New Alcoa CDIs
as Scheme Consideration for their ASX-listed Alumina Shares.
The market for Alcoa CDIs on ASX may be less liquid than the
market for Alcoa Shares on NYSE. This may reduce the trading
volume of Alcoa CDlIs and the speed at which they can be
disposed.

While Alumina Shareholders may be exposed to some similar
risks as the Combined Group, you may consider that the risks
of the Combined Group (including those set out in section 8.3)
are greater than the risks to Alumina as a standalone entity.
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(e) You may take the view that the exchange ratio
does not reflect the underlying value of Alumina's
contribution to the Combined Group

You may take the view that the exchange ratio of 0.02854
New Alcoa Shares (including in the form of New Alcoa CDls)
for each Alumina Share, does not give existing Alumina
Shareholders an appropriate share of the Combined Group
and the benefits of combining the two businesses.

On implementation of the Scheme, Alumina Shareholders

are expected to own approximately 31.6% of the Combined
Group, with existing Alcoa Stockholders holding approximately
68.4%."%

(f) The implied value of Scheme Consideration is
not fixed and will depend on the Alcoa Share price

The Scheme Consideration is based on a fixed exchange
ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares (including in the form

of New Alcoa CDIs) for each Alumina Share. As a result, the
implied value of the Scheme Consideration will change over
time depending on the prevailing Alcoa Share price and the
AUD/USD exchange rate.

Assuming the AUD/USD exchange rate remains constant, the
implied value of the Scheme Consideration that you receive
for your Alumina Shares will decrease if the Alcoa Share price
decreases. However, if there is an increase in the Alcoa Share
price, the implied value of the Scheme Consideration that you
receive for your Alumina Shares will also increase.

(9) You may consider there is a potential for a
superior proposal to be made for Alumina in the
foreseeable future

You may consider that a superior proposal could emerge

in the future. However, since the Transaction was announced
on 26 February 2024 until the Last Practicable Date, the
Alumina Directors are not aware of, and have not received,
any Superior Proposal.

If a Superior Proposal is received, Alumina is subject to certain
exclusivity arrangements under the Scheme Implementation
Deed. These exclusivity arrangements may diminish the
possibility of Alumina receiving a Superior Proposal. However,
the exclusivity arrangements do not restrict Alumina from
taking any action or inaction in respect of an Alumina
Competing Transaction to the extent that the Alumina Board
determines (acting in good faith and after receiving external
advice) that the Competing Proposal is or could reasonably
be considered to be a Superior Proposal and failing to take

or not take such action would be reasonably likely to breach
the fiduciary or statutory duties of the Alumina Directors.

If a Superior Proposal emerges, the Alumina Directors will
consider the proposal and advise Alumina Shareholders
accordingly (subject to the exclusivity provisions of the
Scheme Implementation Deed).

17

1.5 OTHER RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS

(a) The Scheme may be implemented even if you
vote against it at the Scheme Meeting

Regardless of whether you vote for or against the Scheme,
abstain or do not vote at all, the Scheme may still be
implemented if it is approved by Alumina Shareholders by the
Requisite Majorities and the Court, and the other Conditions
Precedent are satisfied or waived. If this occurs and you hold
Alumina Shares on the Scheme Record Date, your Alumina
Shares will be transferred to Alcoa Bidder and you will receive
the Scheme Consideration for those Alumina Shares, unless
you are an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, in which case you
will receive your pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds,
instead of the Scheme Consideration.

(b) Break fee and Reverse Break Fee

Alumina may have to pay the Break Fee of US$22 million in
certain circumstances - see subsection (f) of Annexure C for
further detail.

Alcoa may have to pay the Reverse Break Fee of up to
US$50 million in certain circumstances - see subsection (g)
of Annexure C for further detail.

14. Based on the shares on issue on 12 March 2024, being 2,901,681,417 for Alumina and 179,558,990 for Alcoa. On a fully diluted share basis as of 23 February
2024, including stock options, stock units, conditional and performance rights, Alumina Shareholders would own 31.25% of the Combined Group.
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Overview of the Scheme

Why have | received this

Scheme Booklet?

This Scheme Booklet has been sent to you because you are an Alumina Section 3
Shareholder and you are being asked to vote on the Scheme, in respect of the

proposed acquisition of Alumina by Alcoa, through a wholly owned indirect

Subsidiary, Alcoa Bidder.

This Scheme Booklet is intended to help you to consider and decide on how to
vote on the Scheme at the Scheme Meeting and contains important information,
including:

- reasons to vote in favour of the Scheme;

+ possible reasons to vote against the Scheme;

« information about Alumina, Alcoa, Alcoa Bidder and the Combined Group;
- the risks associated with the Scheme; and

- the Independent Expert’s Report.

What is the Scheme?

The Scheme is the proposed scheme of arrangement between Alumina and Section 3 and
its shareholders under Part 5.1 of the Corporations Act pursuant to which all Annexure D
Alumina Shares will be transferred to Alcoa Bidder in exchange for the Scheme

Consideration being provided to Alumina Shareholders.

What will be the effect

of the Scheme?

If the Scheme is implemented: Section 3 and
- all Alumina Shares will be transferred to Alcoa Bidder; Annexure D
+ Alumina will become a wholly owned indirect Subsidiary of Alcoa;

« all Alumina Shareholders as at the Scheme Record Date (whether they voted
for or against the Scheme, or did not vote at the Scheme Meeting) will receive
the Scheme Consideration;'® and

« Alumina will be delisted from ASX.

As part of the Transaction, New Alcoa CDIs will be listed on ASX (allowing you to
trade the New Alcoa CDls in the same way you currently trade Alumina shares).

How will the Scheme be

implemented?

Details on how the Scheme will be implemented are described in section 3.2. Section 3.2 and
Annexure D

What should | do?

You should take the following steps in relation to the Scheme: Section 4

- carefully read this Scheme Booklet in its entirety and consult your legal,
financial, tax or other professional adviser if you have any questions; and

- vote on the Scheme Resolution.

Recommendations and intentions of Alumina Directors

What do the Alumina
Directors recommend?

The Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing Director and Letter from the
Chief Executive Officer’® recommend that you vote in favour of the Scheme, Chairman of the
in the absence of a Superior Proposal and subject to the Independent Expert Alumina Board
continuing to conclude that the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina and section 1.1

Shareholders."”

How are the Alumina
Directors intending to

vote?

Each of the Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing Director Letter from the
and Chief Executive Officer intends to vote, or cause to be voted, any Alumina Chairman of the
Shares which they hold or control at the time of the Scheme Meeting, in favour Alumina Board
of the Scheme, in the absence of a Superior Proposal and subject to the and section 1.1.

Independent Expert continuing to conclude that the Scheme is in the best
interests of Alumina Shareholders.

15. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme

Consideration. 16. Alumina Shareholders should note that Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Ferraro, will receive certain benefits in

connection with the Scheme, which are described in section 11.2 of this Scheme Booklet. These benefits include the vesting of unvested ESP Entitlements and
Conditional Rights valued at A$3,038,860 and A$1,398,391 respectively, based on the value of Alumina Shares at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date.
Despite this interest, Mr Ferraro considers that given the importance of the Scheme and his role as Managing Director and CEQ, it is important and appropriate for

him to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to voting on the Scheme. Additionally, the Independent Alumina Directors also consider

that it is important and appropriate for Mr Ferraro to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to the Scheme given his role in the
management and operations of Alumina. 17. The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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Matters relevant to your vote
What is the conclusion The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is fair and reasonable Section 11.3 and

of the Independent
Expert?

and is therefore in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of Annexure A
a superior proposal.

The reasons why the Independent Expert reached this conclusion are set out in
the Independent Expert's Report, a copy of which is included in Annexure A. The
Alumina Directors encourage you to read the Independent Expert's Report in full.

What are the reasons to
vote in favour of the
Scheme?

The reasons to vote in favour of the Scheme include: Section 1.3

+ The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is fair and reasonable
and is therefore in the best interests of Alumina shareholders, in the absence
of a superior proposal.

« The Transaction unifies the ownership of the AWAC joint venture, resulting in
a simpler and more efficient structure.

+ Alumina Shareholders will gain exposure to a leading global pure play
aluminium company with a geographically diversified and integrated portfolio
across bauxite, alumina and aluminium.

« The Combined Group will have an enhanced capital structure.

+ The Combined Group represents a better platform for the future, with increased
financial flexibility and greater strategic optionality through access to a larger
balance sheet.

+ The Scheme Consideration represents a premium to the trading prices of
Alumina shares prior to the announcement of the Transaction.

+ The Alumina Share price may fall in the near term if the Transaction is not
implemented and in the absence of a superior proposal for Alumina.

+ Australian resident Alumina Shareholders may be eligible for Roll-Over Relief.

sonal use only

L

hat are the possible
asons to vote against
e Scheme?

For pe

The reasons you may wish to vote against the Scheme include: Section 1.4

* You may believe that the Scheme is not in your individual best interests and
disagree with the recommendation by the Independent Alumina Directors and
Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and the conclusion
of the Independent Expert.

+ You may wish to maintain your exposure to Alumina as a pure play alumina
investor.

+ You may prefer to hold shares in an Australian domiciled company with the
potential to pay franked dividends, over holding Alcoa CDls.

The risk profile of the Combined Group differs from Alumina as a standalone
entity.

+ You may take the view that the exchange ratio does not reflect the underlying
value of Alumina'’s contribution to the Combined Group.

+ The implied value of Scheme Consideration is not fixed and will depend on
the price at which Alcoa Shares trade at the Implementation Date.

+ You may consider there is a potential for a superior proposal to be made for
Alumina in the foreseeable future.

What are the risks
relating to the Alumina
Group if the Scheme is
not implemented?

If the Scheme does not proceed, Alumina will continue as a standalone Section 8.5
entity and Alumina Shareholders will retain their Alumina Shares. In these

circumstances, Alumina Shareholders may be subject to the risks set out in

section 8.5.
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What are the risks
relating to the
Combined Group?

An investment in the Combined Group is subject to several key risks, including:
+ the Combined Group failing to realise benefits of the combination;

- risks relating to the implementation of the Scheme; and

- risks relating to the Combined Group’s businesses and operations.

Further details on the risks associated with the implementation of the Scheme
and the creation of the Combined Group are detailed in sections 8.2 and 8.3.

Sections 8.2 and
8.3

Scheme Consideration

What is the Scheme
Consideration?

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina Shareholders will receive the Scheme
Consideration comprising 0.02854 New Alcoa CDls for each Alumina Share held
as at the Scheme Record Date, except for:

+ Ineligible Foreign Shareholders, who will receive their pro rata share of the
Net Cash Proceeds as described in sections 3.4(h) and 3.4(i);

+ Bestbuy, who will receive Scheme Consideration as described in sections 3.3
and 3.4(d); and

- the ADS Depositary or ADS Custodian (as applicable), who will receive 0.02854
New Alcoa Shares for each Alumina Share held on the Scheme Record Date as
outlined in section 3.4(b).

Section 3.3 and
3.4

Who is entitled to
Scheme Consideration?

All Alumina Shareholders who are the registered holders of Alumina Shares as
at the Scheme Record Date will be entitled to receive the Scheme Consideration
in the form of New Alcoa CDls, except for:

« Ineligible Foreign Shareholders, who will receive their pro rata share of the
Net Cash Proceeds as described in sections 3.4(h) and 3.4(i);

« Bestbuy, who will receive Scheme Consideration as described in sections 3.3
and 3.4(d); and

+ the ADS Depositary or ADS Custodian (as applicable), who will receive 0.02854
New Alcoa Shares for each Alumina Share held on the Scheme Record Date as
outlined in section 3.4(b).

Sections 3.4(d)
and 3.4(f)

What is the premium
represented by the
Scheme Consideration
to Alcoa’s share price?

Based on Alcoa'’s share price as at close of trade on the Last Practicable Date, the
Scheme Consideration represents an implied transaction price of approximately
A$1.90 per Alumina Share, a premium of approximately 86.3% to Alumina’s
closing price of A$1.02 on 23 February 2024 (being the last day of trading prior
to the announcement of the Transaction Process Deed).

Letter from the
Chairman of the
Alumina Board
and Section 1

When will | receive the
Scheme Consideration?

If the Scheme becomes Effective, Alcoa Bidder (or Alcoa, at the direction of and
on behalf of Alcoa Bidder) will provide or procure the provision of the Scheme
Consideration to each of the Scheme Participants (other than Ineligible Foreign
Shareholders) on the Implementation Date, which is currently expected to be
Thursday, 1 August 2024.

Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will not receive New Alcoa CDls. Instead,
they will receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds, which is currently
expected to be by no later than Monday, 16 September 2024.

Sections 3.4(i)
and 3.4(k)

What are CDIs?

CDls, or CHESS Depositary Interests, are a type of depository receipt that

allows investors in foreign companies (such as Alcoa), to obtain all the economic
benefit of owning securities in the foreign company (such as Alcoa Shares)
without holding legal title to the securities.

The underlying securities represented by a CDI are registered in the name of the
depositary nominee, CDN, as legal owner, or held by CDN in the form of beneficial
ownership, but all of the economic benefits attaching to the underlying securities
accrue to the CDI holder.

When CDls are quoted on the ASX, the underlying securities are regarded as
having been quoted on the ASX.

Section 3.4(c)
and 3.4(f)
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What are the New Alcoa
CDlIs?

The New Alcoa CDIs will represent a unit of beneficial ownership in a New Alcoa
Share which is registered in the name of CDN, or held by CDN in the form of
beneficial ownership.

Sections 3.4(c)
and 3.4(f)

What are the New Alcoa
Preferred Shares?

=

The New Alcoa Preferred Shares are non-voting convertible series A preferred
stock (par value US$0.01 per share) in Alcoa. The economic rights of the New
Alcoa Preferred Shares are generally equivalent to the economic rights of the
New Alcoa CDls, except that the New Alcoa Preferred Shares will:

« have a liquidation preference of US$0.0001 for each share;

- convert into Alcoa Shares on a 1:1 basis upon transfer to a party that is not
an affiliate of the CITIC Shareholders, subject to anti-dilution provisions and
other customary adjustments; and

+ have no voting rights except as required by applicable law or in relation to
a change in the existing rights of New Alcoa Preferred Shares.

Section 3.4(d)

hat will happen to
e CITIC Shareholders'
Alumina Shares?

If the Scheme becomes Effective and is implemented, the CITIC Shareholders’
Alumina Shares will be transferred to Alcoa Bidder on the Implementation Date,
like all other Alumina Shareholders’ Alumina Shares.

Section 3.4(a)

LY
%/ill | be able to trade
y New Alcoa CDlIs on

je ASX?

al

Yes, the New Alcoa CDIs will be able to be traded on the ASX in the same way
as Alumina Shares are currently traded.

Deferred settlement trading of New Alcoa CDls is expected to be available
on the ASX from Wednesday, 24 July 2024. New Alcoa CDls are expected to
commence trading on the ASX on a normal settlement basis on the ASX from
Friday, 2 August 2024.

Sections 3.4(c)
and 3.4(f)

G/hat are the key
ifferences between
Icoa CDIs and Alcoa

ares?

For per

Except for certain differences noted in section 3.4(g), an Alcoa CDI will have
rights that are economically equivalent to the rights attaching to an Alcoa Share.
Alcoa CDlIs will be quoted and traded on ASX in Australian dollars. A holder of
Alcoa CDls can, however, elect at any time to convert those Alcoa CDlIs to an
equivalent number of Alcoa Shares (via a process referred to as “transmuting”
Alcoa CDls to Alcoa Shares).

A holder of Alcoa CDlIs will not be a registered Alcoa Stockholder. Instead, Alcoa
Shares represented by Alcoa CDIs will be held in the name of CDN, a Subsidiary
of the ASX, or held by CDN in the form of beneficial ownership.

New Alcoa Shares will be Alcoa Shares, ranking equally in all respects with all
other Alcoa Shares on issue as at the Implementation Date. New Alcoa Shares
will be listed and traded on NYSE in US dollars.

After implementation of the Scheme, a holder of Alcoa CDIs will be able to direct
CDN to vote the Alcoa Shares represented by its Alcoa CDIs in accordance with
the holder’s directions.

Sections 3.4(f)
and 3.4(g)

What are the risks
relating to New Alcoa
Shares and New Alcoa
CDIs?

There are several risks associated with New Alcoa Shares and New Alcoa CDls
including:

+ the market for New Alcoa CDIs may be less liquid than the market for Alcoa
Shares; and

« the price of New Alcoa CDlIs will be subject to, and reflect movements in,
the Alcoa Share price and the AUD:USD exchange rate.

Further details on the risks related to Alcoa Shares and Alcoa CDIs are set out
in section 8.4.

Section 8.4

Can | convert my
New Alcoa CDls into
Alcoa Shares?

Yes. New Alcoa CDIs can be converted (or “transmuted”) into Alcoa Shares
and vice versa at any time following the Implementation Date, by contacting
the Alcoa Share Registry or Alcoa CDI Registry (as applicable).

Section 3.4(f)(ix)
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What are the taxation
implications of the
Scheme?

If the Scheme becomes Effective, there will be tax consequences for Alumina
Shareholders which may include tax being payable on any gain on disposal of
their Alumina Shares.

Section 9 provides a general description of certain Australian and United States
taxation consequences for Scheme Participants.

Alumina has applied to the ATO requesting the ATO Class Ruling to confirm
the key taxation implications of the Scheme. The ATO Class Ruling has not been
finalised as at the Last Practicable Date. The ATO Class Ruling is not expected
to be issued by the ATO until after the Implementation Date. However, Alumina
expects that the ATO will provide a draft of the Class Ruling prior to the Scheme
Meeting.

When the final ATO Class Ruling is published by the ATO, it will be available
on the ATO’s website at www.ato.gov.au.

The taxation implications of the Scheme will depend on the nature and
characteristics of each Scheme Participant. It is recommended that Scheme
Participants seek independent professional tax advice in relation to the income
tax implications associated with the Scheme.

Section 9

Will Scheme Participants
have to pay brokerage
or stamp duty?

No brokerage or stamp duty should be payable by the Scheme Participants

on the acquisition by Alcoa Bidder of their Alumina Shares under the Scheme

or on the receipt by Scheme Participants of the New Alcoa CDIs as Scheme
Consideration. If you dispose of your Alumina Shares before the Scheme Record
Date, brokerage fees may be payable.

Section 9.1(f)

How will Alumina ADS
Holders be treated
under the Scheme?

Alumina currently has an American Depositary Shares (ADS) program with each
Alumina ADS representing four Alumina Shares. Alumina ADSs are traded in the
United States.

Alumina ADS Holders will not be requested to submit voting instructions in
respect of their ADSs, although the ADS Depositary is required, under the ADS
Deposit Agreement, to attempt to carry out any voting instructions it receives
from registered holders of ADSs by the instruction cut-off date set by the
Depositary. Any Alumina ADS Holder who wishes to vote as an Alumina
Shareholder must become an Alumina Shareholder by the applicable date and
vote in that capacity. If the Scheme is implemented, all Alumina Shares, including
those underlying Alumina ADSs, will automatically be transferred to Alcoa Bidder
in exchange for the Scheme Consideration.

The Scheme Consideration for the Alumina Shares underlying Alumina ADSs
will be New Alcoa Shares. Alumina ADS Holders that wish to receive Alcoa CDls
instead of common shares must surrender their Alumina ADSs, pay applicable
fees and become holders of Alumina Shares prior to the Scheme Record Date.

Section 11.4

CITIC Shareholders

Who are the CITIC
Shareholders?

The CITIC Shareholders are each of, Bestbuy, CITIC Resources and CITIC
Australia. As at the Last Practicable Date, the CITIC Shareholders in aggregate
own approximately 18.92% of the Alumina Shares on issue.

Section 3.3
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Why is Bestbuy
receiving New Alcoa
Preferred Shares?

Under the US Bank Holding Act, the CITIC Shareholders are prevented from
holding more than a 5% interest in any class of voting securities of Alcoa.

If the CITIC Shareholders were to receive New Alcoa CDls in respect of their
entire aggregate shareholding in Alumina, they would hold an interest of ~6%
in Alcoa's common stock, in breach of the US Bank Holding Act.

To the extent that the New Alcoa CDIs that the CITIC Shareholders would receive
as Scheme Consideration would result in CITIC Shareholders beneficially owning,
in aggregate, in excess of 4.5% of the outstanding shares of Alcoa common stock
(including the shares underlying the New Alcoa CDls) upon implementation of
the Scheme, the Scheme Consideration representing the beneficial ownership in
excess of 4.5% will instead be issued as New Alcoa Preferred Shares to Bestbuy.

The economic rights of the New Alcoa Preferred Shares are generally equivalent
to the economic rights of the New Alcoa CDIs, except that the New Alcoa
Preferred Shares will have a liquidation preference of US$0.0001 for each share.

Section 3.3

P
C

Qneligible Foreign Shareholders

ho is an Ineligible
reign Shareholder?

2
-

Ineligible Foreign Shareholders are Alumina Shareholders whose Registered
Address as at the Scheme Record Date is a place outside Australia and its
external territories, British Virgin Islands, Norway, Canada, Hong Kong, New
Zealand, Singapore, Switzerland, the European Union, the United Arab Emirates,
the United Kingdom or the United States.

Section 3.4(h)

hat will Ineligible
reign Shareholders

If you are an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, you will not receive New Alcoa CDls.
Instead, Alcoa will issue any New Alcoa Shares that you would otherwise have
been entitled to (in the form of New Alcoa CDIs) to a Sale Agent who will sell
those New Alcoa Shares in the ordinary course of trading on NYSE. You will
receive your pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds of the sale from the relevant
New Alcoa Shares by the Sale Agent.

Sections 3.4(h)
and 3.4(i)

ceive under the
(0p)

heme?
J

L_Scheme Meeting

ql'a/hen and where will

e Scheme Meeting
e held?

| -
o
LL

The Scheme Meeting will be held at 2.00pm (AEST) on Thursday, 18 July 2024.

The Scheme Meeting will be held:

« in person at Village Roadshow Theatre, State Library of Victoria,
328 Swanston Street (access via Entry 3 on La Trobe Street), Melbourne,
Victoria, Australia; and

- online via the online meeting platform at www.meetnow.global/M2QDVXW.

Section 4 and
Annexure F

What will Alumina
Shareholders be
asked to vote on at
the Scheme Meeting?

At the Scheme Meeting, Alumina Shareholders will be asked to vote on whether
to approve the Scheme.

Section 3.2(a)
and Annexure F

What is the Alumina
Shareholder approval
threshold for the
Scheme?

In order to become Effective, the Scheme must be approved by the Requisite

Majorities, being:

« unless the Court orders otherwise, a majority in number (more than 50%) of
Alumina Shareholders present and voting at the Scheme Meeting (either in
person or by proxy, attorney or, in the case of corporate Alumina Shareholders,
body corporate representative); and

- atleast 75% of the total number of votes cast on the Scheme Resolution at the
Scheme Meeting by Alumina Shareholders present and voting (either in person
or by proxy, attorney or, in the case of corporate Alumina Shareholders, body
corporate representative).

Even if the Scheme is approved by the Requisite Majorities at the Scheme
Meeting, the Scheme is still subject to the approval of the Court.

Section 3.2(a)
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Am | entitled to vote at
the Scheme Meeting?

If you are registered as an Alumina Shareholder on the Alumina Share Register
as at 7.00pm (AEST) on Tuesday, 16 July 2024, you will be entitled to attend and
vote at the Scheme Meeting.

Section 4.3 and
Annexure F

How do | vote at the

You can vote:

Section 4.5 and

Scheme Meeting? - in person, by attending the Scheme Meeting held at Village Roadshow Theatre, Annexure F
State Library of Victoria, 328 Swanston Street (access via Entry 3 on La Trobe
Street), Melbourne, Victoria, Australia;
- online, by participating and voting via the online meeting platform at
www.meetnow.global/M2QDVXW;
+ by appointing a proxy, attorney or a corporate representative (if you are a
body corporate), to attend the Scheme Meeting (in person or online) and vote
on your behalf.
Proxy appointments must be received by 2.00pm (AEST) on Tuesday, 16 July 2024.
To appoint a proxy online, you will need your Securityholder Reference Number
(SRN) or Holder Identification Number (HIN) and the postcode for your shareholding.
Is voting at the Scheme  Voting is not compulsory. However, your vote is important in determining whether Section 4.1
Meeting compulsory for  the Scheme will proceed, as only those votes cast by Alumina Shareholders on
Alumina Shareholders?  the Scheme will be counted in determining whether the Scheme has been
approved by the Requisite Majorities of Alumina Shareholders. The Scheme may
be implemented even if you do not vote on the Scheme Resolution.
When will the results The results of the Scheme Meeting are expected to be available shortly N/A
of the Scheme Meeting  after the conclusion of the Scheme Meeting and will be announced to ASX
be known? (www.asx.com.au).
Conditions and implementation
What are the conditions  The Scheme is subject to a number of Conditions Precedent, which are Section 3.5
that must be satisfied or  summarised in section 3.5.
mai)v:?r:;{;’:ee:f:j;qe As at the Last Practicable Date, the following conditions remain outstanding:
+ FIRB approval;
« Alumina Shareholder approval of the Scheme Resolution;
+ Alcoa Stockholder approval of the Alcoa Stockholder Resolution;
« ASX quotation and NYSE listing;
+ ATO Class Ruling; and
+ other customary conditions.
What is required for The Scheme will become Effective if: Section 3.2

the Scheme to become
Effective?

+ the Scheme is approved by the Requisite Majorities of Alumina Shareholders
atthe Scheme Meeting;

+ the Court approves the Scheme at the Second Court Hearing and the Court
order is lodged with ASIC; and

- all of the other Conditions Precedent to the Scheme are satisfied or waived
(where capable of waiver).

Can the Scheme be
terminated?

The Scheme Implementation Deed may be terminated in certain circumstances.
If the Scheme Implementation Deed is terminated, the Scheme will not proceed.

Subsection (i) of
Annexure C

What happens to my
Alumina Shares if | do
not vote or vote against
the Scheme, and the
Scheme becomes
Effective and is
implemented?

If you do not vote, or vote against the Scheme, and the Scheme becomes
Effective and is implemented, any Alumina Shares held by you will be transferred
to Alcoa Bidder and you will receive the Scheme Consideration (unless you are
an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, in which case you will receive your pro rata
share of the Net Cash Proceeds, instead of the Scheme Consideration), despite
not having voted or having voted against the Scheme.

Section 3.3
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More
Question Answer Information
Can | sell my Alumina Alumina Shares will continue to trade on ASX until close of trading on the Section 3.10
Shares now? Effective Date.
You can sell your Alumina Shares on market in the usual manner before close
of trading on the Effective Date at the prevailing market price.
However, if you choose to sell your Alumina Shares:
+ before the Scheme Record Date, you will not receive the Scheme Consideration
(or in the case of an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, your pro rata share of the
Net Cash Proceeds);
+ you may not receive consideration equivalent to the implied value of the
Scheme Consideration;
« you may incur brokerage and other expenses on the sale of your Alumina
> Shares; and
« there may be different tax consequences compared to those that would
C arise if you retained those Alumina Shares until and including the Scheme
Q Record Date.
I{wformction about Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder
U\’Iho is Alcoa? Alcoa is a global industry leader in bauxite, alumina, and aluminium products, Section 6
with a vision to reinvent the aluminium industry for a sustainable future. Alcoa
; is active in all aspects of the upstream aluminium industry with bauxite mining,
alumina refining, and aluminium smelting and casting. Alcoa has direct and
— indirect ownership of 27 assets in locations across nine countries on six continents.
gho is Alcoa Bidder? Alcoa Bidder is an Australian proprietary company limited by shares that Section 6.2(h)
was incorporated on é March 2024 and is a wholly owned indirect Subsidiary
o of Alcoa. Prior to the Scheme, it has not and will not conduct any business
and does not currently own any assets or have any liabilities. If the Scheme
m is implemented, Alcoa Bidder will directly hold all the shares in Alumina.
P ) :
quformatlon about the Combined Group
hat will the If the Scheme is implemented, Alcoa will become the parent company of the Section 7
ombined Group Combined Group and Alumina will become a wholly owned indirect Subsidiary
¢_look like once the of Alcoa.
cheme is Al il continue t th ti f AWAC (as is th tl
plemented? coa will continue to manage the operations o (as is the case currently).
I I Further information on the Combined Group is set out at section 7, including
Alcoa'’s intentions for the Combined Group.
What are the key risk Please refer to section 8.3 for a summary of the risk factors in relation to the Section 8.2 and
factors associated with business and operations of the Combined Group. Please refer to section 8.2 for 8.3
the Scheme? a summary of the risk factors in relation to the implementation of the Scheme.
What aggregate voting ~ On the Implementation Date, Alumina Shareholders will own approximately Section 7.6(b)
rights will the Alumina 31.6% of the Combined Group (including New Alcoa Shares to be issued to the
Shareholders have in Sale Agent that would otherwise be issued to Ineligible Foreign Shareholders).”®
the Combined Group?
Additional information
What if you have For further information, please contact the Alumina Shareholder Information N/A
further questions Line on 1800 990 479 (within Australia) or +61 1800 990 479 (outside Australia),
about the Scheme? between 8.30am and 5.30pm (AEST), Monday to Friday (excluding public
holidays).

If you are in doubt about anything in this Scheme Booklet, please contact your
legal, financial, tax or other professional adviser.

18. Based on the shares on issue on 12 March 2024, being 2,901,681,417 for Alumina and 179,558,990 for Alcoa. On a fully diluted share basis as of 23 February
2024, including stock options, stock units, conditional and performance rights, Alumina Shareholders would own 31.25% of the Combined Group.
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SECTION

Overview
of the Scheme
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3.1 BACKGROUND TO THE SCHEME

On 12 March 2024, Alumina announced that it had entered
into a Scheme Implementation Deed with Alcoa under which
the parties agreed to implement the Scheme between
Alumina and its shareholders. A summary of the key terms of
the Scheme Implementation Deed are set out in Annexure C
and a copy of the Scheme is set out in Annexure D. A full
copy of the Scheme Implementation Deed was released on
ASX (www.asx.com.au) and published on Alumina's website
(https://www.aluminalimited.com)."’

If the Scheme is approved by Alumina Shareholders at the
Scheme Meeting and by the Court, and if all Conditions
Precedent are satisfied or waived (where capable of waiver):

- eligible Scheme Participants will receive the Scheme
Consideration;® and

* Alumina will become a wholly owned indirect Subsidiary
= of Alcoa and will be delisted from ASX.

the Scheme is not approved, Scheme Participants will not
ceive the Scheme Consideration?' and Alumina will continue
as a standalone entity listed on ASX.

.2 KEY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE SCHEME
) Scheme Meeting

he Court has ordered that the Scheme Meeting be held at
meie. 00pm (AEST) on Thursday, 18 July 2024 at Village Roadshow
eatre, State Library of Victoria, 328 Swanston Street (access
a Entry 3 on La Trobe Street), Melbourne, Victoria, Australia
r the purposes of approving the Scheme Resolution. The
dotice of Scheme Meeting setting out the Scheme Resolution
included in Annexure F.

be passed, the Scheme Resolution must be approved by
e Requisite Majorities, being:

s/ unless the Court orders otherwise, a majority in number

(more than 50%) of Alumina Shareholders present and voting

the Scheme Meeting (either in person, online or by proxy,
attorney or, in the case of corporate Alumina Shareholders,
body corporate representative); and

oat least 75% of the total number of votes cast on the Scheme
I I Resolution at the Scheme Meeting.

Alumina Shareholders who are registered on the Alumina
Share Register at 7.00pm (AEST) on Tuesday, 16 July 2024 will
be entitled to vote on the Scheme.

Instructions on how to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting
in person, or to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on your
behalf, are set in section 4 and the Notice of Scheme Meeting
set out in Annexure F.

Voting is not compulsory. However, the Independent Alumina
Directors and Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive

Alumina Limited

Officer?? recommend that Alumina Shareholders vote in favour
of the Scheme, in the absence of a Superior Proposal and
subject to the Independent Expert continuing to conclude that
the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina Shareholders.

You should be aware that even if you do not vote, or vote
against the Scheme, the Scheme may still be implemented

if it is approved by the Requisite Majorities of Alumina
Shareholders and the Court. If this occurs, your Alumina Shares
will be transferred to Alcoa Bidder and you will receive the
Scheme Consideration?® even if you did not vote on, or voted
against, the Scheme.

The results of the Scheme Meeting will be available shortly
after the conclusion of the Scheme Meeting and will be
announced to the ASX (www.asx.com.au).

(b) Court approval of the Scheme

Alumina will apply to the Court for orders approving the
Scheme if:

- the Scheme Resolution is approved by the Requisite
Majorities of Alumina Shareholders at the Scheme Meeting;
and

- all Conditions Precedent to the Scheme have been satisfied
or waived (where capable of waiver).

Each Alumina Shareholder, or with the Court’s permission,
any other interested person, may appear at the Second Court
Hearing.

(c) Effective Date

If the Court approves the Scheme at the Second Court
Hearing, Alumina will lodge an office copy of the Court order
with ASIC. The Scheme will become Effective upon lodgement
of the Court order with ASIC and Alumina will give notice of
this event on ASX.

(d) Suspension of trading

Alumina Shares will continue to trade on ASX until the Effective
Date. Alumina intends to apply to the ASX for Alumina Shares
to be suspended from trading on ASX from close of trading on
the Effective Date.

(e) Scheme Record Date and entitlement to
Scheme Consideration

Alumina Shareholders who are registered on the Alumina
Share Register on the Scheme Record Date (currently expected
to be 7.00pm (AEST time) on Thursday, 25 July 2024) will be
entitled to receive the Scheme Consideration in respect of the
Alumina Shares they hold at that time.?*

19. On 21 May 2024, Alumina announced that it had entered into an amending deed to the Scheme Implementation Deed and ancillary documents (Amending
Deed). A full copy of the Amending Deed was released on ASX (www.asx.com.au) and published on Alumina's website (https://www.aluminalimited.com).

20. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme
Consideration. 21. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will also not receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds. 22. Alumina Shareholders should note that
Alumina's Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Ferraro, will receive certain benefits in connection with the Scheme, which are described in section
11.2 of this Scheme Booklet. These benefits include the vesting of unvested ESP Entitlements and Conditional Rights valued at A$3,038,860 and A$1,398,391
respectively, based on the value of Alumina Shares at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date. Despite this interest, Mr Ferraro considers that given

the importance of the Scheme and his role as Managing Director and CEQ, it is important and appropriate for him to provide a recommendation to Alumina
Shareholders in relation to voting on the Scheme. Additionally, the Independent Alumina Directors also consider that it is important and appropriate for Mr Ferraro
to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to the Scheme given his role in the management and operations of Alumina. 23. Ineligible
Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme Consideration.

24. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will be entitled to receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds under the Sale Facility, instead of the Scheme Consideration.
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(f) Dealings on or prior to the Scheme Record Date

For the purposes of determining which Alumina Shareholders
are eligible to participate in the Scheme, dealings in Alumina
Shares will be recognised only if:

in the case of dealings of the type to be effected using
CHESS, the transferee is registered on the Alumina Share
Register as the holder of the relevant Alumina Shares before
the Scheme Record Date; and

in all other cases, registrable transfer or transmission
applications in respect of those dealings, or valid requests

in respect of other alterations, are received by the Alumina
Share Registry before the Scheme Record Date (and the
transferee remains registered as at the Scheme Record Date).

For the purposes of determining entitlements under the
Scheme, Alumina will not accept for registration or recognise
any transfer or transmission applications in respect of Alumina
Shares received after the Scheme Record Date.

(g9) Deadlings after the Scheme Record Date

For the purpose of determining entitlements to the Scheme
Consideration, Alumina must maintain the Alumina Share
Register in its form as at the Scheme Record Date until the
Scheme Consideration has been issued to the Scheme
Participants. The Alumina Share Register in this form will
solely determine entitlements to the Scheme Consideration.

After the Scheme Record Date:

all statements of holding for Alumina Shares (other than
statements of holding in favour of Alcoa Bidder) will cease
to have effect as documents relating to title in respect of
such Alumina Shares; and

each entry on the Alumina Share Register (other than entries
on the Alumina Share Register in respect of Alcoa Bidder)
will cease to have effect except as evidence of entitlement to
the Scheme Consideration in respect of the Alumina Shares
relating to that entry.

(h) Implementation Date

Scheme Participants (other than Ineligible Foreign Shareholders)
will be issued the Scheme Consideration on the Implementation
Date (which is currently expected to be Thursday, 1 August
2024). Immediately after the Scheme Consideration is issued
to eligible Scheme Participants, the Alumina Shares will be
transferred to Alcoa Bidder.

After the Implementation Date, Alcoa must send a holding
statement or equivalent document to each Scheme Participant
(other than an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder) representing
the number of New Alcoa CDlIs, New Alcoa Preferred Shares
or New Alcoa Shares (as applicable) issued to the Scheme
Participant pursuant to the Scheme.

3.3 CITIC SHAREHOLDERS

The CITIC Shareholders are each of Bestbuy, CITIC Resources
and CITIC Australia. As at the Last Practicable Date, the CITIC
Shareholders in aggregate legally and beneficially own
548,959,208 Alumina Shares, being approximately 18.92%
of the Alumina Shares on issue.

Under the US Bank Holding Act, the CITIC Shareholders are
prevented from holding more than a 5% interest in any class
of voting securities of Alcoa. If the CITIC Shareholders were

to receive New Alcoa CDIs in respect of their entire aggregate
shareholding in Alumina, they would hold an interest of ~6% in
Alcoa’s common stock, in breach of the US Bank Holding Act.
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To the extent that the New Alcoa CDIs that the CITIC
Shareholders would receive as Scheme Consideration (less
any Alumina Shares held by any CITIC Shareholder that are
sold via the Sale Facility to fund payment of any applicable
Withholding Amount) would result in CITIC Shareholders
beneficially owning, in aggregate, in excess of 4.5% of the
outstanding shares of Alcoa common stock (including the
shares underlying the New Alcoa CDlIs) upon implementation
of the Scheme, the Scheme Consideration representing the
beneficial ownership in excess of 4.5% will instead be issued
as New Alcoa Preferred Shares to Bestbuy.

The economic rights of the New Alcoa Preferred Shares are
generally equivalent to the economic rights of the New Alcoa
CDls, except that the New Alcoa Preferred Shares will have a
liquidation preference of US$0.0001 for each share.

Please refer to sections 3.4(d) and 6.17 for further detail in
relation to the New Alcoa Preferred Shares.

3.4 SCHEME CONSIDERATION
(a) Overview

If the Scheme becomes Effective, Scheme Participants will
receive 0.02854 New Alcoa CDlIs for each Alumina Share held
on the Scheme Record Date, except for:

- Ineligible Foreign Shareholders, who will receive their pro
rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds as described in sections
3.4(h) and 3.4(i);

+ Bestbuy, who will receive Scheme Consideration as described
in sections 3.3 and 3.4(d); and

- the ADS Depositary or ADS Custodian (as applicable), who
will receive 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares for each Alumina
Share held on the Scheme Record Date as outlined in section
3.4(b).

(b) New Alcoa Shares

A New Alcoa Share is a fully paid Alcoa Share to be issued
as Scheme Consideration to CDN in connection with the
New Alcoa CDls and the ADS Depositary or ADS Custodian
(as applicable).

New Alcoa Shares will be fully paid Alcoa Shares and will be
listed and traded on NYSE in US dollars.

(c) New Alcoa CDIs

A CDl is a type of depositary receipt that allows investors to
obtain all the economic benefits of owning securities without
holding legal title to them, and are used to facilitate companies
incorporated outside of Australia listing on the ASX. Each New
Alcoa CDI will represent a beneficial interest in one New Alcoa
Share and will have economic and other rights largely equivalent
to the rights attaching to a New Alcoa Share. Alcoa CDlIs will be
quoted and traded on ASX in Australian dollars under a symbol
to be advised before implementation of the Scheme.

The underlying New Alcoa Share is held on trust and registered
in the name of CDN. CDN is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ASX
and is the legal owner of the underlying securities but the CDI
holder receives all direct economic benefits attaching to the
underlying securities.

Each New Alcoa CDI will represent a beneficial interest in one
New Alcoa Share and will have the rights that are economically
equivalent to the rights attaching to a New Alcoa Share, except
for certain differences noted in section 3.4(g).
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(d) New Alcoa Preferred Shares

A New Alcoa Preferred Share is a fully paid Alcoa Preference
Share to be issued as Scheme Consideration to Bestbuy as
outlined in section 3.3.

There will be no public market for the Alcoa Preference
Shares, nor is there expected to be any such market in the
near future. Please refer to section 6.17 for more details on
the New Alcoa Preferred Shares.

(e) Eligibility and limitations

An Alumina Shareholder is only entitled to receive the Scheme

Consideration if they hold Alumina Shares on the Scheme

Record Date (currently expected to be 7.00pm on Thursday,

25 July 2024). Ineligible Foreign Shareholders will not receive

Scheme Consideration in the form of New Alcoa CDlIs. Instead,
>ﬁ\y will receive their pro rata share of the Net Cash Proceeds
===gf the sale of the New Alcoa Shares that they would otherwise
ave been entitled to receive (in the form of New Alcoa CDls)
ee section 3.4(h)).

s outlined in section 3.3, there are specific arrangements
ip place in relation to the CITIC Shareholders to enable their
qiampliance with the US Bank Holding Act.

) Key features of Alcoa CDlIs
1) General

cept for certain differences noted in section 3.4(g) below,
e rights attaching to Alcoa CDls are economically equivalent

G) the rights attaching to Alcoa Shares, and Alcoa will generally
e

required to treat holders of Alcoa CDlIs as if they were the
Oolders of the Alcoa Shares represented by those Alcoa CDls.

wnaccordance with clauses 4.6 and 13.4(r) of the Scheme
: plementation Deed, all New Alcoa Shares, and New Alcoa

Dls, will rank equally in all respects with all other Alcoa Shares

issue.

Qﬂ Ratio

L._Each Alcoa CDI will represent one Alcoa Share.

Qii) Voting

olders of Alcoa CDIs will be sent notices of meetings of
Alcoa Stockholders at the same time as they are sent to Alcoa
Stockholders. As holders of Alcoa CDls are not registered
holders of the Alcoa Shares represented by Alcoa CDls, they
will not be automatically entitled to vote at a meeting of
Alcoa Stockholders.

However, the holder of an Alcoa CDI can direct CDN to

cast votes in a particular manner on their behalf to exercise
the votes attaching to the Alcoa Shares represented by the
holder’s Alcoa CDlIs. If a holder of an Alcoa CDI wishes to vote
at a meeting of Alcoa Stockholders in their personal capacity
(rather than directing CDN to vote), the holder must first
transmute their Alcoa CDls into the underlying Alcoa Shares
in sufficient time before the record date for the meeting.

(iv) Takeovers

Under the ASX Settlement Rules, CDN will not accept a
takeover offer in respect of any Alcoa CDlIs representing
Alcoa Shares unless instructed to do so by the holder

of the Alcoa CDis. It is CDN's responsibility to ensure that
the bidder processes those acceptances.

Alumina Limited

(v) Communications from Alcoa

Alcoa will communicate directly with holders of Alcoa CDls
with respect to corporate actions. To the extent practicable,
Alcoa will send notices and other documents (e.g. notices of
meetings) to holders of Alcoa CDls at the same time as they
are sent to Alcoa Stockholders.

(vi) Trading

Following the listing of the Alcoa CDIs on ASX, Alcoa CDls can
be traded on ASX. Alcoa CDIs will not be tradeable on NYSE. If
a holder of Alcoa CDIs wishes to trade on the NYSE, they must
convert the Alcoa CDlIs into Alcoa Shares (see section 3.4(f)(ix)).

(vii) Dividends

Dividends paid on Alcoa Shares will be distributed by direct
credit to holders of Alcoa CDls in Australian dollars, unless
they elect to receive payment in US dollars, New Zealand
dollars or in British pounds sterling by providing their banking
details for those currencies. In addition, Alcoa CDI holders
may choose to utilise Computershare’s Global Wire payment
solution to receive payment in other currencies.

Dividend record and payment dates will be the same for Alcoa
CDls and Alcoa Shares. See sections 6.6 and 7.3(e) for further
details on Alcoa’s intentions in relation to dividends.

(viii) Evidence of ownership

If New Alcoa CDls are issued to you under the Scheme, you
will receive a holding statement or confirmation advice in
respect of your Alcoa CDlIs rather than a holding statement
for the underlying Alcoa Shares. Revised holding statements
will be provided on a periodic basis if there is a change in the
number of New Alcoa CDIs held by you. New Alcoa CDIs may
be held on an issuer sponsored subregister or on a CHESS
subregister. New Alcoa CDIs issued under the Scheme will

be received:

« on the Alcoa CDl issuer sponsored subregister, to the extent
they are issued for New Alcoa Shares held on the Alcoa
issuer sponsored subregister as at the Scheme Record Date;
and

on the Alcoa CDI CHESS subregister, to the extent they
are issued for New Alcoa Shares held on the Alcoa CHESS
subregister as at the Scheme Record Date.

(ix) Conversion of New Alcoa CDIs into Alcoa Shares

Holders of Alcoa CDls may at any time (following the
Implementation Date) request to convert (or “transmute”) their
Alcoa CDls into Alcoa Shares listed on NYSE by contacting:

+ Computershare, the Alcoa CDI registry, if their Alcoa CDlIs are
held directly on the Alcoa CDI issuer sponsored subregister.
Alcoa CDI holders will be provided with a CDI cancellation
request form for completion and return to the Alcoa CDI
registry; or

their sponsoring participant (usually their broker), if their
Alcoa CDls are held on the Alcoa CDI CHESS subregister. In
this case, your sponsoring broker will arrange for completion
of the relevant form and its return to Computershare.

Computershare will then arrange for the transfer of Alcoa Shares
from CDN to the former Alcoa CDI holder and, depending on
the request made, issue the Alcoa Shares to the former Alcoa
CDI holder in book-entry form directly on the United States share
register or deliver to their account held with a participant within
The Depository Trust Company, United States central securities
depository. Trading on the ASX will no longer be possible.
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It is expected that requests for conversion will ordinarily
be processed by the next business day, provided that
Computershare is in receipt of a duly completed and valid
CDI cancellation request form. However, no guarantee can
be given about the time for this conversion to take place.

Computershare will not charge an individual Alcoa CDI
holder a fee for transmuting Alcoa CDls into Alcoa Shares,
although a cross-border transaction fee may be charged by
any intermediaries.

No trading of the underlying Alcoa Shares can take place on
NYSE until the conversion process has been completed. The
decision whether to transmute Alcoa CDIs to Alcoa Shares will
depend on your individual circumstances. You should seek
advice from your own legal, financial, tax or other professional
advisers before deciding whether to transmute Alcoa CDls to
Alcoa Shares.

It will also be possible for holders of Alcoa Shares to transmute
their Alcoa Shares into Alcoa CDls via a similar process, if so
desired. This occurs by transferring the legal title in the Alcoa
Shares to CDN, followed by the issuance of Alcoa CDIs to the
holder on either the Alcoa CDl issuer sponsored subregister or
the Alcoa CDI CHESS subregister (as selected by the holder).

(g) Differences between holding Alcoa Shares
and Alcoa CDIs

(i) Principal differences between holding Alcoa CDIs
and Alcoa Shares

The principal difference between holding an Alcoa CDI and
holding an Alcoa Share is that the holder of an Alcoa CDI has
an indirect, beneficial interest in the Alcoa Share underlying
their Alcoa CDl instead of directly owning the Alcoa Share.
This means that the holder of the Alcoa CDl is not the holder
of the underlying Alcoa Share and therefore:

« cannot directly trade the underlying Alcoa Share; and

- is a beneficial holder (rather than a registered legal holder)
of the underlying Alcoa Share.

(ii) Other differences

(A) Exercise of shareholder rights

As holders of Alcoa CDIs are not registered shareholders of
Alcoa, the rights attaching to Alcoa Shares which underline
their Alcoa CDIs must be exercised by CDN. A holder of Alcoa
CDIs may instruct CDN to exercise those rights on their behalf.
In contrast, a registered holder of Alcoa Shares can directly
exercise the rights attaching to their Alcoa Shares in such
manner as they choose. For example, as described above,

a holder of an Alcoa CDI cannot vote at an Alcoa meeting as
an Alcoa Stockholder but can direct CDN how to vote at that
Alcoa Stockholder meeting.

(B) Alcoa CDls will be quoted and trade on ASX and
Alcoa Shares will be quoted and trade on NYSE

Alcoa CDls will be tradeable on ASX only. Alcoa CDlIs
may only be traded during Australian business hours using
Australian brokers in prices quoted in AUD.

Alcoa Shares will be tradeable on NYSE only. They will not
be quoted or tradeable on ASX. Accordingly, investors who
wish to trade Alcoa Shares must first transmute their Alcoa
CDls into the underlying Alcoa Shares before being able to
trade on the open market via the NYSE. Such trades on the
NYSE must be undertaken through a broker entitled to trade
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on NYSE. It is the responsibility of Alumina Shareholders to
ensure that appropriate arrangements are in place if they wish
to transmute their Alcoa CDls into the underlying Alcoa Shares
so that they can hold and trade Alcoa Shares on NYSE.

See section 8.4 for further discussion of the liquidity of the
market for Alcoa CDls and the potential risk that they may
trade at a discount to Alcoa Shares on NYSE.

(h) Ineligible Foreign Shareholders

Ineligible Foreign Shareholders are Alumina Shareholders
whose Registered Address is a place other than Australia
and its external territories, British Virgin Islands, Norway,
Canada, Hong Kong, New Zealand, Singapore, Switzerland,
the European Union, the United Arab Emirates, the United
Kingdom or the United States.

Nominees, custodians and other Alumina Shareholders who
hold Alumina Shares on behalf of a beneficial owner resident
outside Australia, British Virgin Islands, Canada, Hong Kong,
New Zealand, Norway, Singapore, Switzerland, the European
Union, the United Arab Emirates, the United Kingdom and the
United States may not forward this Scheme Booklet to anyone
outside these countries without the consent of Alumina.

(i) Sale Facility
(i) Sale Facility Mechanics

Alcoa will, on behalf of all Ineligible Foreign Shareholders,
assist in establishing the Sale Facility, pursuant to which the
Sale Agent, on behalf of all Ineligible Foreign Shareholders,
will sell any New Alcoa Shares that an Ineligible Foreign
Shareholder would otherwise be entitled to receive in the
form of New Alcoa CDIs (Ineligible Shares).

Acting on behalf of all Ineligible Foreign Shareholders, the
Sale Agent will, as soon as reasonably practicable after the
Implementation Date (and in any event within 15 days after
the Ineligible Shares are capable of being traded on NYSE),
sell all of the Ineligible Shares (including on an aggregated
or partially aggregate basis) in the ordinary course of trading
on NYSE at such price and in such manner as the Sale Agent
reasonably determines in good faith.

The Sale Agent will then remit the proceeds of such sale (net
of any applicable brokerage, stamp duty and other selling
costs, taxes and charges) to a designated nominee of Alcoa
Bidder as soon as reasonably practicable after settlement (and
in any event within 10 Business Days). The designated nominee
of Alcoa Bidder will procure the payment of an amount equal
to the proportion of the Net Cash Proceeds of the sale to each
entitled Ineligible Foreign Shareholder in full satisfaction of
the Ineligible Foreign Shareholder’s entitlement to the relevant
New Alcoa CDls, in accordance with the following formula and
rounded to the nearest cent:

A=(B/C)xD
Where:

A is the amount to be paid to the Ineligible Foreign
Shareholder;

B is the number of Ineligible Shares attributable to, and
that would otherwise have been issued to (in the form of
New Alcoa CDls), that Ineligible Foreign Shareholder had
it not been an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder;
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Cis the number of Ineligible Shares attributable to, and
which would otherwise have been issued to all Ineligible
Foreign Shareholders collectively (in the form of New Alcoa
CDls); and

D is the Net Cash Proceeds.

The designated nominee of Alcoa Bidder will make, or procure
the making of, payments to Ineligible Foreign Shareholders by
either (in the absolute discretion of the designated nominee of
Alcoa Bidder):

« paying, or procuring the payment of, the relevant amount
in Australian dollars by electronic means to a bank account
nominated by the Ineligible Foreign Shareholder by an
appropriate authority from the Ineligible Foreign
Shareholder to the designated nominee of Alcoa Bidder; or

>{ﬁ a bank account has not been nominated by the Ineligible

s FOreign Shareholder:

C— if an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder has, before the
Scheme Record Date, made a valid election in accordance
with the requirements of the Alumina Share Registry to
receive dividend payments in Australian dollars from
Alumina by electronic funds transfer, to a bank account
nominated by the Ineligible Foreign Shareholder, paying,
or procuring the payment of, the relevant amount in
Australian dollars by electronic means in accordance

with that election;

by Global Wire Payment Service, if an Ineligible Foreign
Shareholder has elected to receive payments electronically
in their local currency using Alumina Registry’s Global Wire
Payment Service; or

otherwise, dispatching, or procuring the dispatch of, a
cheque for the relevant amount in Australian dollars to the
Ineligible Foreign Shareholder by prepaid post to their
registered address, such cheque being drawn in the name
of the Ineligible Foreign Shareholder.

ersonal use o

Qﬁligible Foreign Shareholders can nominate their bank
account or update their bank account details on the Alumina

SShare Registry website at www.investorcentre.com/au. If they

ve already registered, they can log in using their User ID and
q:lssword. If they are not a member, they will need their HIN/
SRN to register. The new user registration process requires an
account verification code to be mailed to the Shareholder’s
registered address as an additional layer of security to protect
their securityholding. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders should
allow sufficient time for delivery of the verification code so that
they can update their bank account details before the Scheme
Record Date.

Cheques will not be issued to Ineligible Foreign Shareholders
in Papua New Guinea. Ineligible Foreign Shareholders with a
registered address in Papua New Guinea must nominate a valid
bank account before the Scheme Record Date to receive the
Net Cash Proceeds directly into their bank account. If they do
not provide their bank account details, the Net Cash Proceeds
will be withheld pending receipt of payment instructions or
dealt with under the Unclaimed Money Act 2008 (VIC).

Interest will not be paid on the Net Cash Proceeds. The payment
of the Net Cash Proceeds will be in full satisfaction of the rights
of Ineligible Foreign Shareholders under the Scheme.

Alumina Limited

(ii) Value of the Sale Facility Net Cash Proceeds

None of Alcoa, Alcoa Bidder, Alumina or the Sale Agent gives
any assurances as to the price that will be achieved for the sale
of Ineligible Shares or the amount of the Net Cash Proceeds to
be received by Ineligible Foreign Shareholders.

The Net Cash Proceeds received by the Ineligible Foreign
Shareholders will depend on the price at which each Ineligible
Share can be sold by the Sale Agent at the relevant time and
the amount of any applicable brokerage, taxes and charges
incurred by the Sale Agent in connection with the sales under
the Sale Facility. Accordingly, the cash amount received by the
Ineligible Foreign Shareholder may be different (either more
or less) than the value of the New Alcoa CDlIs they would have
received if they were not an Ineligible Foreign Shareholder.

(j) Commencement of trading of New Alcoa CDls
and New Alcoa Shares

Deferred settlement trading of New Alcoa CDls is expected
to be available on ASX from Wednesday, 24 July 2024.

Trading on ASX of New Alcoa CDls is expected to commence
on a normal settlement basis on Friday, 2 August 2024.

Trading on NYSE of New Alcoa Shares is expected to
commence on the next Pittsburgh Business Day after the
Implementation Date (which is currently expected to be
Thursday, 1 August 2024 (Eastern Time)).

(k) Issuance of Scheme Consideration

Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder have entered into the Deed Poll under
which Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder have covenanted in favour of
Scheme Participants such that in accordance with the Scheme:

- Alcoa Bidder will provide or procure the provision of the
Scheme Consideration to each Scheme Participant; and

« Alcoa Bidder agrees to cause Alcoa to, and Alcoa will
at the direction of and on behalf of Alcoa Bidder (in
satisfaction of Alcoa Bidder's obligation to provide such
Scheme Consideration to the Scheme Participants), issue
the Scheme Consideration.

If the Scheme becomes Effective, the obligations of Alcoa
Bidder to provide or procure the provision of the Scheme
Consideration to the Scheme Participants will be satisfied:

+ in the case of Scheme Consideration that is required to be
provided to Scheme Participants in the form of New Alcoa
CDils, by Alcoa Bidder procuring:

— the issue to CDN to be held on trust of that number of
New Alcoa Shares that will enable New Alcoa CDls to be
issued on the Implementation Date;

— that the name and address of CDN is entered into the
Alcoa Share Register in respect of those New Alcoa Shares
no later than the Implementation Date;

— that a holding statement (or equivalent document) in the
name of CDN representing those New Alcoa Shares or
such other document evidencing the issuance of those
New Alcoa Shares to CDN is sent to CDN;

— that on the Implementation Date, each such Scheme
Participant is issued with the number of New Alcoa CDls
to which it is entitled;
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— that on the Implementation Date, the name of each such
Scheme Participant is entered in the records maintained
by Alcoa as the holder of the New Alcoa CDls issued to
that Scheme Participant on the Implementation Date;

— in the case of each such Scheme Participant who held
Alumina Shares on the CHESS subregister, that:

« the New Alcoa CDlIs are held on the CHESS subregister
on the Implementation Date; and

- on the second Business Day sending or procuring the
sending of an allotment advice that sets out the number
of New Alcoa CDlIs held on the CHESS subregister by
that Scheme Participant;

— in the case of each such Scheme Participant who held
Alumina Shares on the issuer sponsored subregister, that:

+ the New Alcoa CDls are held on the issuer sponsored
subregister on the Implementation Date; and

+ on the second Business Day sending or procuring the
sending of a holding statement to each such Scheme
Participant which sets out the number of New Alcoa
CDIs held on the issuer sponsored subregister by that
Scheme Participant;

— in the case of Scheme Consideration that is required to
be provided to Bestbuy in the form of New Alcoa Preferred
Shares, by Alcoa Bidder procuring that:

- on the Implementation Date, Bestbuy is issued with the
number of New Alcoa Preferred Shares to which it is
entitled as described in section 3.3 and the name and
address of Bestbuy is entered into the Alcoa Share
Register in respect of those New Alcoa Preferred Shares;
and

a holding statement (or equivalent document) or
evidence of book entry on the share ledger is sent to
Bestbuy which sets out the number of New Alcoa
Preferred Shares issued to pursuant to this Scheme; and

— in the case of Scheme Consideration that is required to
be provided to the ADS Depositary or the ADS Custodian,
by Alcoa Bidder procuring that:

+ on the Implementation Date, the ADS Depositary or the
ADS Custodian (as applicable) is issued with New Alcoa
Shares to which it is entitled and, the name and address
of the ADS Depositary or the ADS Custodian (as
applicable) is entered in the Alcoa Share Register with
respect to those New Alcoa Shares; and
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- on or before the date that is 5 Business Days after the
Implementation Date, a holding statement (or equivalent
document) is sent to the Registered Address of the
ADS Depositary or the ADS Custodian (as applicable)
representing the number of New Alcoa Shares issued to
the ADS Depositary or the ADS Custodian (as applicable)
pursuant to the Scheme.

The treatment of Ineligible Foreign Shareholders and the
provision of Net Cash Proceeds instead of Scheme
Consideration to them is addressed in sections 3.4(h) and 3.4(i).

(D) Fractional entitlements

If the number of Alumina Shares held by a Scheme Participant
atthe Scheme Record Date is such that the aggregate
entitlement of the Scheme Participant to New Alcoa CDls,

New Alcoa Preferred Shares or New Alcoa Shares (as applicable)
includes a fractional entitlement to a New Alcoa CDI, New Alcoa
Preferred Shares or New Alcoa Shares (as applicable), the
fractional entitlement will be rounded as follows:

« less than 0.5, it will be rounded down to zero; and

- equal to or more than 0.5, it will be rounded up to one.

If Alumina or Alcoa is of the opinion that two or more Scheme
Participants have, before the Scheme Record Date, been party
to a shareholding splitting or division in an attempt to obtain
an advantage by reference to such rounding, Alumina must
provide the relevant details of the relevant Scheme Participant
to Alcoa, and if requested by Alcoa, Alumina must give notice
to those Scheme Participants:

- setting out their names and registered addresses as shown in
the Alumina Share Register;

- stating that opinion; and

« attributing to one of them specifically identified in the notice
the Alumina Shares held by all of them.

After such notice has been given, the Scheme Participant
specifically identified in the notice as the deemed holder

of the specified Alumina Shares will, for the purposes of the
provisions of the Scheme, be taken to hold all of those Alumina
Shares and each of the other Scheme Participants whose
names and registered addresses are set out in the notice will,
for the purposes of the Scheme, be taken to hold no Alumina
Shares.
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3.5 CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Alumina Limited

The Scheme is subject to a number of Conditions Precedent set out in clause 3.1 of the Scheme Implementation Deed and

summarised below:

Condition Precedent

Status as at Last Practicable Date

FIRB approval: the Treasurer (or a delegate) advises Alcoa
that the Commonwealth of Australia has no objections to
Alcoa Bidder acquiring Alumina, or the Treasurer ceases to be
empowered to make any order under Part 3 of the FIRB Act.

Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder gave notice of the Transaction to the
Federal Treasurer on 14 March 2024. A decision is expected
by 14 June 2024, however that date may be subject to
extension by FIRB.

Alumina will release an ASX announcement to provide an
update on the status of the FIRB approval once a decision
has been received by Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder.

ACCC: the ACCC advises that it does not intend to conduct
ublic review of, intervene in, or otherwise oppose Alcoa
idder acquiring Alumina under the Scheme.

On 19 April 2024, the ACCC confirmed that it does not
intend to conduct a public review of the Transaction
pursuant to section 50 of the Competition and Consumer
Act 2010 (Cth).

-

Qrazil competition approval: the Brazil Administrative Council
or Economic Defense (CADE) provides clearance of Alcoa
GBidder acquiring Alumina under the Scheme.

V)

On 29 May 2024, CADE certified that the applicable term for
intervention or ‘call-back’ of the application had elapsed and
that consequently CADE's decision published in the Official
Gazette of Brazil on 13 May 2024 to approve the application
was final.

jlumina Shareholder approval: the Alumina Shareholders
approve the Scheme by the Requisite Majorities at the Scheme
eeting.

The Scheme Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, 18 July 2024.

Icoa Stockholder approval: the Alcoa Stockholders approve
e Alcoa Stockholder Resolution by the requisite majority in
cordance with the NYSE Listing Rules.

The Alcoa Stockholder Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
16 July 2024 (Eastern Time).

Uaourt Approval: the Court approves the Scheme in accordance
\ith section 411(4)(b) of the Corporations Act.

The Second Court Hearing is scheduled for Monday, 22 July
2024.

dg Class Ruling: Alumina receives confirmation from the

that it is prepared to issue an ATO Class Ruling for
Roll-Over Relief.

| -

The application for the Class Ruling has been lodged with
the ATO and Alumina considers that the ATO should provide
this confirmation prior to the Second Court Date.

Gegulatory intervention: no Australian or United States court
or Australian or United States Regulatory Authority has issued
Ll.gr enacted any law, order, temporary restraining order,
preliminary or permanent injunction, decree or ruling or taken
any similar action or otherwise imposed a legal restraint
preventing the implementation of the Scheme.

Neither Alumina nor Alcoa is aware of anything that would
cause this Condition Precedent not to be satisfied.

Independent Expert: the Independent Expert has issued the
Independent Expert’s Report and concluded that the Scheme
is in the best interests of the Alumina Shareholders before this
Scheme Booklet is registered with ASIC, and does not change
or withdraw its conclusion.

The Independent Expert has concluded that the Scheme is
fair and reasonable and is therefore in the best interests of
Alumina Shareholders, in the absence of a superior proposal
and has not changed or withdrawn its conclusion.

See further details in Section 11.3.

No Alumina Prescribed Event: no Alumina Prescribed Event
occurs.

Alumina is not aware of anything that would cause this
Condition Precedent not to be satisfied.

No Alcoa Prescribed Event: no Alcoa Prescribed Event occurs.

Alcoa is not aware of anything that would cause this
Condition Precedent not to be satisfied.

ASX quotation: the New Alcoa CDlIs are approved for official
quotation on ASX.

An application in respect admission of Alcoa to the Official
List of ASX (as a Foreign Exempt Listing), and approval of
the New Alcoa CDlIs for quotation on ASX, has been lodged
with ASX.

NYSE listing: the New Alcoa Shares are approved for listing on
NYSE, subject only to customary conditions.

The approval for quotation on NYSE is expected to occur
following Alcoa Stockholder approval.
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3.6 TREATMENT OF EQUITY INCENTIVES

Alumina provides equity incentives to employees in the form
of (a) ESP Entitlements under the Employee Share Plan; and (b)
Conditional Rights under the Share Rights Grant Plan
(together, the Employee Share Rights).

Under the Scheme Implementation Deed, Alumina is required
to ensure that, by the Effective Date, no Employee Share Rights
are outstanding. Accordingly, if there is a change of control,
the Alumina Board intends to exercise its discretions so that
the performance conditions for unvested ESP Entitlements are
waived and the exercise period is shortened. Further, under
the terms of the grant, all restrictions on transferring shares

to holders of Conditional Rights and dealing in the shares
transferred will lapse. This includes allowing unvested rights

to vest and freeing restricted shares of dealing restrictions. The
Board may at its option pay the value of the ESP Entitlements
and the Conditional Rights in cash.

Further detail regarding the Employee Share Rights is set
out in Alumina’s remuneration report (which is included in
Alumina’s Annual Financial Report) for the year ended

31 December 2023.

3.7 DEEMED WARRANTY BY SCHEME
PARTICIPANTS

Under the terms of the Scheme, each Scheme Participant is
taken to have warranted to Alcoa Bidder, and authorised
Alumina as its attorney and agent to warrant to Alcoa Bidder,
on the Implementation Date, that:

all their Alumina Shares (including any rights and
entitlements attaching to those shares) which are transferred
under the Scheme will, at the date of transfer, be fully paid
and free from all mortgages, charges, liens, encumbrances,
pledges, security interests (including any ‘security interests’
within the meaning of section 12(1) of (2) of the PPSA), rights
of first refusal, pre-emptive rights and any similar restriction;

.

they have full power and capacity to transfer their Alumina
Shares (together with any rights and entitlements attaching
to those shares) under the Scheme to Alcoa Bidder; and

they have no existing right to be issued any Alumina Shares,
or any options, performance rights, securities or other
instruments exercisable, or convertible, into Alumina Shares.
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3.8 DEED POLL

A Deed Poll has been entered into by Alcoa and Alcoa Bidder
in favour of the Scheme Participants, to:

- provide, or procure the provision of, the Scheme
Consideration to all Scheme Participants under the Scheme,
subject to the Scheme becoming Effective; and

- undertake all other actions attributed to Alcoa and Alcoa
Bidder under the Scheme.

A copy of the Deed Poll is included in Annexure E.

3.9 TAXATION IMPLICATIONS

A general description of the Australian taxation consequences
of the Scheme (assuming it becomes Effective) for Scheme
Participants is set out in section 9. It does not constitute tax
advice and should not be relied on as such. Each Alumina
Shareholder should seek and rely on their own independent
tax advice in relation to their particular circumstances.

3.10 DELISTING OF ALUMINA

After the Scheme has been implemented, Alumina will request
that ASX removes it from the Official List of ASX. Delisting is
expected to occur one Business Day following the
Implementation Date.
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41 YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

Your vote is important because the Scheme can only proceed
if it is approved by Alumina Shareholders at the Scheme
Meeting by the Requisite Majorities. However, voting is not
compulsory.

The Independent Alumina Directors and Alumina’s Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer® recommend that you
vote in favour of the Scheme, in the absence of a Superior
Proposal and subject to the Independent Expert continuing

to conclude that the Scheme is in the best interests of Alumina
Shareholders.? Each of the Independent Alumina Directors
and Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
intends to vote, or cause to be voted, all Alumina Shares which
they hold or control in favour of the Scheme, subject to the
same qualifications.

If you are unable to attend the Scheme Meeting in person
or online, the Alumina Directors urge you to lodge your proxy
form in one of the ways set out in section 4.5.

4.2 DETAILS OF SCHEME MEETING

The details of the Scheme Meeting are as follows:

Location  Village Roadshow Theatre, State Library of
Victoria, 328 Swanston Street (access via Entry 3
on La Trobe Street), Melbourne, Victoria, Australia

Date Thursday, 18 July 2024

Time 2.00pm (AEST)

Online link www.meetnow.global/M2QDVXW

4.3 ELIGIBILITY TO VOTE

If you are a registered Alumina Shareholder on the Alumina
Share Register at 7.00pm on Tuesday, 16 July 2024, you will be
entitled to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting.

4.4 VOTING BY JOINT HOLDERS

In the case of Alumina Shares held by joint holders, only one
of the joint holders is entitled to vote. If more than one joint
holder votes in respect of jointly held Alumina Shares, only the
vote of the Alumina Shareholder whose name appears first in
the Alumina Share Register will be counted.

4.5 HOW TO VOTE

Alumina Shareholders who are entitled to vote can vote in
the following ways:

« In person, by attending the Scheme Meeting at Village
Roadshow Theatre, State Library of Victoria, 328 Swanston
Street (access via Entry 3 on La Trobe Street), Melbourne,
Victoria, Australia.

+ Online, by attending the Scheme Meeting online at
www.meetnow.global/M2QDVXW.

37

+ By proxy, by lodging a proxy form in one of the following
ways:

— online: at www.investorvote.com.au (or www.intermediary
online.com for relevant intermediaries who participate in
the Intermediary Online service) or on their smartphone
using the QR code on the Proxy Form. Alumina Shareholders
will require their SRN or HIN and the postcode for their
shareholding to submit a proxy form online;

— by mail: in the reply-paid envelope included with a
hardcopy of this Scheme Booklet to Alumina Limited
c/- Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited,
GPO Box 242, Melbourne, Victoria, 3001, Australia;

— by hand delivery: to the Alumina Share Registry at
Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited, Yarra Falls,
452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford, Victoria, 3067, Australia
during business hours (Monday - Friday, .00am - 5.00pm);
or

— by fax: to the Alumina Share Registry (within Australia)
1800 783 447 (outside Australia) +61 (0)3 9473 2555.

Proxyholders will need to contact Computershare Investor
Services on +61 3 9415 4024 to request their unique email
invitation.

- By attorney: by appointing an attorney to attend and vote
at the Scheme Meeting on your behalf. An attorney may only
vote at the Scheme Meeting if the instrument appointing
the attorney, and the authority under which the instrument
is signed or a certified copy of the authority are provided to
Alumina prior to the Scheme Meeting (unless it has been
previously provided to Alumina). If a validly appointed
attorney intends to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting
via the online platform, that attorney will require the
appointing Alumina Shareholder’s name and postcode and
the SRN or HIN of the shareholding in order to access the
online platform.

- By corporate representative: by an individual appointed
to attend and vote at the Scheme Meeting as the corporate
representative of the Alumina Shareholder, if the Alumina
Shareholder is a body corporate. This appointment must
comply with the requirements of the Corporations Act.
The corporate representative must ensure that Alumina has
received a certificate of appointment and any authority
under which the appointment is signed, prior to the Scheme
Meeting (unless this has previously been provided to
Alumina). A form of notice of appointment can be obtained
from www.investorcentre.com. If a validly appointed
corporate representative intends to attend and vote at the
Scheme Meeting via the online platform, the corporate
representative will require the appointing Alumina
Shareholder’s name and postcode and the SRN or HIN of
the shareholding in order to access the online platform.

Proxy appointments must be received by 2.00pm (AEST) on
Tuesday, 16 July 2024. Alumina ADS Holders should refer to
section 11.4 for information on voting.

25. Alumina Shareholders should note that Alumina’s Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Mike Ferraro, will receive certain benefits in connection
with the Scheme, which are described in section 11.2 of this Scheme Booklet. These benefits include the vesting of unvested ESP Entitlements and Conditional
Rights valued at A$3,038,860 and A$1,398,391 respectively, based on the value of Alumina Shares at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date. Despite
his interest, Mr Ferraro considers that given the importance of the Scheme and his role as Managing Director and CEQ, it is important and appropriate for him

to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to voting on the Scheme. Additionally, the Independent Alumina Directors also consider that
itis important and appropriate for Mr Ferraro to provide a recommendation to Alumina Shareholders in relation to the Scheme given his role in the management
and operations of Alumina. 26. The Non-Independent Non-Executive Alumina Director abstains from making a recommendation.
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5.1 OVERVIEW OF ALUMINA

Alumina is a company registered in Victoria, Australia and
governed by the Corporations Act. Alumina Shares are listed
on ASX. Alumina also has ADSs traded on the over-the-
counter market in the United States in a program administered
by the Bank of New York Mellon as depositary.

Alumina is the 40% partner in the AWAC joint venture with

a portfolio of assets in Australia, Brazil, Spain, Saudi Arabia
and Guinea, including globally leading bauxite mines and
alumina refineries. AWAC also has a 55% interest in the
Portland aluminium smelter in Victoria, Australia. Alcoa holds
the remaining 60% interest in AWAC and is the operator of
the AWAC joint venture. Further information about AWAC is
set out in Section 6.2.

5.2 ALUMINA BOARD AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Alumina Board currently comprises the following Alumina
Directors:

Name Position

W Peter Day Chair, Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mike Ferraro Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Chen Zeng Non-Executive Director

Deborah O'Toole  Independent Non-Executive Director

John A Bevan Independent Non-Executive Director
Shirley In't Veld Independent Non-Executive Director
Alistair Field Independent Non-Executive Director

Alumina’s senior management team comprises the following
members:

Name Position

Mike Ferraro Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer

Katherine Kloeden General Counsel & Company Secretary

Galina Kraeva Chief Financial Officer

Craig Evans General Manager -
Strategy & Investor Relations

Liping Li Senior Manager - Strategy and Markets

If the Scheme does not proceed, the current senior
management and the Board of Alumina will remain. If the
Scheme is approved, the intentions of Alcoa in relation to
employees generally is set out in section 7.3(f).
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5.3 HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(a) Overview

The financial information of Alumina set out in this section 5.3
(Alumina Financial Information) comprises:

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023;

- Alumina Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022;

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023; and

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd (as Investigating
Accountant), has reviewed the:

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024;

« Alumina Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024;

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024;
and

« Alumina Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for
the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024;

in accordance with the Australian Standard on Assurance
Engagements ASAE 3450 Assurance Engagements involving
Corporate Fundraisings and/or Prospective Financial Information,
as stated in its Independent Limited Assurance Report, included
in Annexure B. Alumina Shareholders should note the scope
and limitations of the Independent Limited Assurance Report.

Alumina’s full year financial statements, including all notes
to those financial statements, and a description of Alumina’s
significant accounting policies can be found in:

+ Alumina’s Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2023 (released to the ASX on 28 March 2024);

+ Alumina's Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2022 (released to the ASX on 29 March 2023);
and

+ Alumina’s Annual Financial Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2021 (released to the ASX on 30 March 2022).

The full reports are available on Alumina’s website at https://
www.aluminalimited.com or on the ASX (www.asx.com.au).

This section 5.3 should be read in conjunction with the risks to
which Alumina is subject and the risks associated with the
Scheme, as set out in section 8.
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(b) Basis of preparation

The Alumina Financial Information is intended to assist
Alumina Shareholders in understanding the financial
performance, financial position and cash flows of Alumina.
The Alumina Board is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Alumina Financial Information.

The Alumina Financial Information has been prepared on
a going concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal
business activities and the realisation of assets and the
settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The Alumina Financial Information has been derived from
Alumina’s consolidated financial statements for the years
ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 and from Alumina'’s interim consolidated
financial statements for the quarter ended 31 March 2024.
Alumina Financial Information is presented in USD and,
=—in|ess otherwise noted, is rounded to the nearest USD million.

lumina’s consolidated financial statements for the years

ded 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and

1 December 2021, which were prepared in accordance

ith the recognition and measurement principles of Australian
G}ccounting Standards (AAS), which are consistent with

ternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
%y the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB),

ere audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, in accordance

with Australian Auditing Standards. PricewaterhouseCoopers
sued unqualified audit opinions in respect of these
ansolidated financial statements.

lumina’s interim consolidated financial report for the

uarter ended 31 March 2024 was prepared in accordance
dith International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34 Interim
(qnancial Reporting. These interim consolidated financial

atements do not include all of the information and notes

the type normally included in annual financial statements.

icewaterhouseCoopers performed a review of Alumina'’s
derim consolidated financial statements in accordance with

Table 5.3.1

Alumina Limited

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
- AU-C Sec. 930 Interim Financial Information.
PricewaterhouseCoopers issued an unqualified review report
in respect of these interim consolidated financial statements.

The Alumina Financial Information is presented in an abbreviated
form insofar as it does not include all the presentation, disclosures,
statements, or comparative information that is required by
Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements applicable to general
purpose financial reports prepared in accordance with the
Corporations Act and/or IFRS and IAS 34 (as applicable). The
respective audit opinion and review report for the year ended

31 December 2023 and quarter ended 31 March 2024 contain
an emphasis of matter, drawing attention to the sections "Basis
of preparation - going concern” and “Going concern” in the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements and the interim
consolidated statements respectively. The notes describe that
Alumina has entered into a Scheme Implementation Deed with
Alcoa and completion of the transaction will give rise to a review
event under Alumina’s syndicated revolving cash advance facility
agreement. Should a review event arise Alumina may be required
by the lenders to repay without penalty (other than break costs)
all outstanding loans together with accrued interest and other
amounts within 90 business days of notice. These conditions,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Alumina Group's ability to continue

as a going concern. The audit opinion and review report are

not modified in respect of this matter.

(c) Alumina Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss

The Alumina Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and

31 December 2021 and for the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following table:

dLUMINA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS'

LL

Quarter Quarter

Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March

US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023

Revenue from continuing operations 1 - - 0

Share of net profit/(loss) of associates (119) 120 205 (42) 1
accounted for using the equity method

General and administrative expenses (12) (13) (13) (6) (3)

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 0 - - -

Finance costs (20) (4) (4) (6) (4)

Profit/(loss) before income tax (150) 104 188 (54) (6)

Income tax expense - - - -

Profit/(loss) for the year/quarter attributable (150) 104 188 (54) (6)

to the owners of Alumina Limited

Notes: (1) The consolidated statement of profit or loss above is reclassified to align to the Alcoa presentation in section 6.11(c) and, for year ended 31 December
2023 and quarter ended 31 March 2024, for incorporation in the Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations. Refer to section 7.7(c) for
the reconciliation. This does not result in any change to the net profit/(loss) as reported in the Alumina financial statements for years ended 31 December 2023,
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and the interim financial statements for the quarters ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2024.
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Alumina predominantly derives its income from AWAC's
operations, and therefore is dependent on those market
conditions and cost factors that impact AWAC. The net profit/
(loss) of Alumina includes its equity share of AWAC net profit/
(loss) (presented as “Share of net profit/(loss) from associates
accounted for using the equity method"), it is therefore
affected by its equity share of significant items contained
within AWAC's results.

Share of net profit/(loss) of associates accounted for using the
equity method for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
$120 million, or a decrease of $85 million, or 41%, as compared
to 2021, primarily as a result of lower alumina production and
higher production costs as a result of higher caustic and energy
prices, partially offset by higher average realised alumina price
and favourable movement in fair value of energy contracts.

In 2021, the share of AWAC net profit after tax includes net
charges of $38 million of significant items, the main item

relates to negative movements in deferred tax assets valuation
allowance in Spain. In 2022, the share of AWAC net profit after
tax includes net charges of $5 million of significant items.

(d) Alumina Consolidated Balance Sheet
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Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the

equity method for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
$119 million, or a decrease of $239 million as compared to
2022, primarily as a result of lower average realized prices of
alumina and aluminium, higher production costs as a result of
the lower quality of bauxite grades in Western Australia and
negative movement in fair value of energy contracts, partially
offset by lower taxes on lower earnings and a lower net charge
for valuation allowances on certain deferred tax assets in 2023
and lower energy costs, primarily in Europe. In 2023, the share
of AWAC net profit after tax includes net charges of $58 million
of significant items, the main item relates to negative
movements in deferred tax assets valuation allowance in Brazil.

Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the equity
method for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 was $42 million,
or a decrease of $43 million as compared to the quarter ended
31 March 2023, primarily as a result of Kwinana restructuring
costs (significant item), partially offset by higher average
realised alumina price and lower cost of production as a result
of lower energy and caustic costs.

The Alumina Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is set out in the

following table:

Table 5.3.2
ALUMINA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET’

As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December
US$ millions 2024 2023 2022
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 2 4
Other assets 1 2 1
Total current assets 4 4 5
Non-current assets:
Right of use asset 2 2 2
Investment in associates 1,683 1,730 1,656
Total non-current assets 1,685 1,731 1,658
Total assets 1,689 1,735 1,663
Current liabilities:
Payables 2 3 0
Provisions and other liabilities 1 1 1
Total current liabilities 3 4 1
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E)tal equity

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
US$ millions 2024 2023 2022
Non-current liabilities:
Borrowings 363 296 110
Lease liability 1 1 1
Provisions 1 1 1
Total non-current liabilities 365 298 112
Total liabilities 368 301 113
>\t assets 1,321 1,434 1,549
Equity:
Oontributed equity 2,707 2,707 2,707
Gj'easury shares - (0) (M
U'aetained earnings 74 129 294
:oreign currency translation reserve (1,527) (1,468) (1,518)
C_Sther reserves 67 67 68
1,321 1,434 1,549

Qotes: (1) The consolidated balance sheet above is reclassified to align to the Alcoa presentation in section 6.11(d) and, for year ended 31 December 2023
d quarter ended 31 March 2024, for incorporation in the Combined Group Pro Forma Balance Sheet. Refer to section 7.7(d) for the reconciliation. This does
t result in any change to the assets and liabilities as reported in the Alumina financial statements for years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022
d 31 December 2021 and the interim financial statements for the quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

) Alumina Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Alumina Statement of Cash flows for years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and for
Lthe quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following table:

Gable 5.3.3

LLALUMINA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Quarter Quarter

Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended

31 December 31December 31December 31 March 31 March

US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities

Payments to suppliers and employees (11) (11) (13) (4) (3)

(inclusive of goods and services tax)

GST refund received 0 1 1 0 0

Dividends received from associates 30 361 191 6 6

Finance costs paid (19) (4) (3) (7) (4)

Tax paid - - (0) - -

Other 0 1 - - -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from 1 347 175 (5) (1)

operating activities
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Quarter Quarter
Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31December 31 March 31 March
US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for investments in associates (189) (212) (26) (61) (87)
Proceeds from return of invested capital - 18 28 - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for investments in associates (189) (212) (26) (61) (87)
Proceeds from return of invested capital - 18 28 - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing (189) (194) 2 (61) (87)
activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 204 164 160 72 87
Repayment of borrowings (18) (119) (155) (5) -
Payment for shares acquired by the Alumina - - (1) - -
Employee Share Plan
Dividends paid - (203) (183) - -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 186 (158) (179) 67 87
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash (2) (5) (1) 1 (1)
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 4 9 10 2 4
of the financial year
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash 0 (0) (0) - 0
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2 4 9 3 3

the financial year
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(f) Alumina Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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The Alumina Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and for the
quarters presented as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following tables:

Table 5.3.4

ALUMINA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (YEAR END)'

Common Retained Total
US$ millions stock earnings Acc OCI Equity
Balance at 31 December 2020 2,706 339 (1,310) 1,735
Net income - 188 - 188
ﬂher comprehensive income (loss) - 33 (87) (54)
?Dividends paid - (183) - (183)
ather (0) - 1 0
GBalance at 31 December 2021 2,706 377 (1,397) 1,686
Uaet income - 104 - 104
cher comprehensive income (loss) - 16 (54) (38)
C_Gividends paid - (203) - (203)
Cother 0 - 0 1
8alance at 31 December 2022 2,706 294 (1,450) 1,549
L;et (loss) - (150) - (150)
%her comprehensive income (loss) - (15) 49 34
Ik_O‘cher 0 - 1 1
Galance at 31 December 2023 2,706 129 (1,401) 1,434
LI?«LUMINA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (QUARTER END)’
Common Retained Total
US$ millions stock earnings Acc OCI Equity
Balance at 31 December 2022 2,706 294 (1,450) 1,549
Net income - (6) - (6)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - (5) 11 6
Other 0 - (0) 0
Balance at 31 March 2023 2,706 282 (1,439) 1,549
Balance at 31 December 2023 2,706 129 (1,401) 1,434
Net income - (54) - (54)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - ) (58) (59)
Other 0 - (0) 0
Balance at 31 March 2024 2,707 74 (1,460) 1,321
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Notes: (1) The consolidated statement of changes in equity is reclassified to align to the Alcoa presentation in section 6.11(f). This does not result in any change
to the changes in equity as reported in the Alumina financial statements for years ended 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023 and the
interim financial statements for the quarters ended 31 March 2023 and 2024.

5.4 MATERIAL CHANGES IN ALUMINA'S FINANCIAL POSITION

As at the Last Practicable Date, to the knowledge of the Alumina Board, and except as disclosed in this Scheme Booklet,
the financial position of the Alumina Group has not materially changed since 31 December 2023, being the latest date
of the statement of financial position available for Alumina as disclosed in Alumina’s Annual Financial Report for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

5.5 CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

As at the Last Practicable Date, the capital structure of Alumina was as follows:

Type of security Total number on issue
Alumina Shares 2,901,681,417
ESP Entitlements?’ 3,057,645
Conditional Rights?® 1,078,577

As at 31 March 2024, the debt structure of Alumina was as follows: Alumina had drawn US5$363 million of its US$500 million bank
debt facilities. The first tranche of this facility (US$100 million) matures in October 2025, the second tranche of this facility (US$150
million) matures in January 2026, the third tranche (US$150 million) matures in July 2026 and the fourth tranche (US$100 million)
matures in June 2027.

In its most recent review, in April 2024, S&P Global Ratings downgraded Alumina’s credit rating from BBB- to BB with negative
outlook.

Refer to section 7.3(j) in respect of Alcoa’s intentions regarding the Alumina financing arrangements.

5.6 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As extracted from substantial holder filings released to ASX on or before the Last Practicable Date, the following persons were
substantial holders of Alumina Shares:

Total number Voting power
Substantial holder of Alumina Shares in Alumina
Allan Gray Australia Pty Ltd 567,273,961 19.55%
CITIC Resources Australia Pty Ltd 547,459,208 19.01%

5.7 RECENT SHARE PRICE HISTORY

As at the Last Practicable Date:

- the recorded trading price of Alumina Shares on ASX was A$1.90;

+ the 30-trading day volume weighted average price of Alumina Shares was A$1.70; and

« the lowest and highest closing prices of Alumina Shares during the previous 30-trading days were A$1.51 and A$1.90,
respectively.

As at the 23 February 2024, being the last trading day prior to the announcement of the Transaction to ASX on 26 February 2024:

+ the recorded trading price of Alumina Shares on ASX was A$1.02;

« the 30-trading day volume weighted average price of Alumina Shares was A$1.08; and

- the lowest and highest closing prices of Alumina Shares during the previous 30-trading days were A$0.98 and A$1.17,

respectively.

The current price of Alumina Shares on ASX can be obtained from the ASX website (www.asx.com.au) or
https://www.aluminalimited.com/investors/share-price/.

27. See section 3.6 for more detail in relation to the treatment of equity incentives. 28. See section 3.6 for more detail in relation to the treatment of equity
incentives.
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Alumina Share price over the 12 months before the Last Practicable Date
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05.8 ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

G is fundamental to Alumina’s purpose of delivering long-term value to stakeholders. Alumina’s key stakeholders, in the
ontext of ESG, include any person or organisation that directly impacts, or is impacted by, its and AWAC's activities. This includes
community groups and non-government organisations.

| us

a

ustainability governance structure

For person

Industry

Industry relationships and
membership of industry
groups independently

stomers, suppliers, governments, employees, shareholders,

Nov 23 Dec23 Jan24  Feb24 Mar24  Apr24  May24

Sustainability
Committee

Engagement
with Alcoa

and via Alcoa. ESG Team

Independent
experts

AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY/OVERSIGHT

Governance and reporting

Management accountabilities. Reporting including internal
reporting, sustainability reporting, TCFD, accounting (AASB/
SASB), training, safety, community, indigenous peoples.

Metrics and targets

Including assessment, analysis &
suitability (quantitative and qualitative).

Risk management

Including sustainability materiality assessment, sustainability
risk identification & assessment, mitigation, management

& monitoring.

Strategy

Including sustainability roadmap, business impact,
opportunities & investment e.g. assessing energy and GHG
abatement options/opportunities such as hydrogen.
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(a) Governance

Alumina has implemented governance practices, supported
by an experienced leadership team to oversee and implement
its approach to ESG.

The Alumina Board oversees Alumina’s ESG matters through
a Sustainability Committee. All members of the Board sit on
this committee, except for Mr Michael Ferraro who generally
attends Sustainability Committee meetings in his capacity
as CEO.

Other Board Committees also consider ESG matters where
relevant: for example, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee assesses potential sustainability risks and
opportunities for shareholders through the Risk Management
Framework. Executive-level responsibility for sustainability
topics sits with our CEO, who is briefed monthly on key
metrics and current issues. The multi-disciplined ESG team

is comprised of four members and is led by Alumina’s
General Counsel and Company Secretary.

In its role as non-operator of the joint venture, Alumina has
filled a support role, monitoring and engaging with Alcoa
on key environment, sustainability and safety issues relating
to AWAC. See section 5.8(b) for further information relating
to some of the key AWAC focus areas.

(b) Areas of focus
(i) Health and safety

AWAC's operations inherently pose health and safety hazards.
AWAC is committed to prioritising health and safety, promoting
a universal safety culture, supported by risk management and
safety systems that aim to prevent all forms of accidents and
injuries. The health and wellbeing of employees is monitored
to preventillnesses and help them perform at their best.

Alcoa’s EHS Policy sets out the expectation that its systems
comply with all laws, Alcoa relies on internal systems to
improve standards for the company and suppliers where
unacceptable risks are identified.

(ii) Impoundment management

The by-products of mining and refining can pose potential
risks to surrounding communities, so it is a priority for AWAC
to manage these safely and effectively at active, inactive and
closed sites. AWAC's operations generate hazardous waste
which is contained in tailing facilities, residue storage areas
and other impoundments.

AWAC has implemented protocols relating to the design,
construction, operation, and closure of storage impoundments.
AWAC follows Alcoa's mandated Global Impoundment Policy,
which is aligned with Alcoa’s internal standards, all applicable
local legal requirements, the Global Industry Standard on
Tailings Management, and the International Council of Mining
and Metals mandated requirements. AWAC works to minimise
its impact and, when possible, rehabilitate the land for further
productive use.
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(iii) Climate change

Climate change is a systemic and material risk that is expected
to pose challenges in the future management of AWAC
operations in regard to energy usage, GHG emissions, carbon
pricing policies and regulations and market demand.

Alcoa’s global strategy, which is implemented by AWAC, is

to reduce GHG emissions using the hierarchy of mitigation:
eliminate, reduce, substitute and offset. This strategy was
designed to align with achieving a below 2°C global warming
scenario by 2050.

Alcoa has an ambition to reach net-zero emissions (Scope 1
and Scope 2) by 2050, with interim targets to achieve a

30 percent reduction by 2025 and a 50 percent reduction
by 2030, using its 2015 baseline. AWAC's ability to reach net
zero is contingent on certain factors, including:

- advancements in technologies to commercial viability;

- the availability of cost competitive renewable energy
generation, which will be required to power new
technologies and displace fossil fuels; and

+ government policy settings that support investment in
decarbonisation and options to offset remaining emissions.

AWAC's proportion of the 2022 emissions (reflecting its equity
share) amounted to 8.4 Mt of GHG, which represents a 47%
decrease compared to the 2010 baseline of 15.8 Mt of GHG.

All of AWAC's alumina refineries are in the first quartile for
emissions intensity, with an average emissions intensity of
0.510 tonnes of COse per tonne of alumina produced. This is
compared to the global average of 1.26 tonnes of CO.e per
tonne of alumina produced (excluding AWAC).

(iv) Biodiversity and Mine Rehabilitation

AWAC's operations are disruptive to natural environments. It is
important to aim to minimise environmental footprint, protect
biodiversity, and sustainably rehabilitate the land that is used
for the environment and for local communities.

(A) Biodiversity

AWAC's commitment and approach to managing biodiversity
impacts and dependencies are detailed in Alcoa’s Biodiversity
Policy and Biodiversity Standard. For new sites and major
expansion projects Alcoa’s goal is to achieve ‘No net loss of
biodiversity’. AWAC recognises designated protected areas,
and does not explore, mine, or otherwise operate in World
Heritage sites.

AWAC's approach to biodiversity management is guided by
the mitigation hierarchy, prioritising avoidance and minimisation
of impacts. A key mitigation focus in areas disturbed by bauxite
mining is to progressively return the land to an agreed post-
mining condition, including restoring native vegetation.

AWAC has developed and implemented biodiversity action
plans at all operating sites identified as adjacent to protected
areas or within those of high biodiversity value. All other
locations have a plan in effect or in development.
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(B) Mine rehabilitation

Planning for rehabilitation begins in the early stages of a mine's
development. This includes engagement with community
stakeholders and local governments where appropriate. To
minimise environmental footprint, AWAC aims to progressively
rehabilitate disturbed areas during the mine’s operational life
and where possible, restore the land back to productive use.

(v) Water Stewardship

Water is a key raw material within AWAC's operations,

particularly for ore processing, cooling, dust suppression and

potable uses. Due to its valuable and often scarce nature —

intensified by the growing impacts of climate change — water

stewardship is an important material issue for AWAC and its

stakeholders. AWAC strives to sustainably manage the water
>e\sources in and around its facilities.

===A\WAC's priorities for water management are outlined in
Icoa’s Water Stewardship Policy, supported by its Water and
astewater Management Standard, which is aligned with the
ternational Council of Mining and Metals' Position Statement
on Water Stewardship.

ane Standard requires location-specific water management
lans that consider:

climate change and water stress;

+ current and alternative water sources;
I .
cGwa‘cer quality;
security of water supplies;
water reduction, substitution, reuse and recycling programs;

Owater resource contamination risks and mitigating actions,
considering local context and receiving water bodies;

y_- other water impacts, such as erosion, acidification and

G)salinisation; and

< action plans for higher-risk aspects, which are reviewed
t least every five years.

L _(vi) Local Commitment with Communities

WAC's operations can have both positive and negative
I I impacts on the communities in which it operates.

ective stakeholder engagement, community partnerships
and local investment are therefore essential to its continuing
operations. AWAC's community impact strategy aims to
understand the needs and aspirations of local communities
and support their wellbeing. In this, AWAC is guided by
Alcoa’s Values, Code of Conduct and a Social Management
System (SP360).

(c) Reporting and performance

Transparency is paramount to maintaining trust, and
stakeholder expectations and reporting requirements are
increasing.

In order to communicate ESG performance to stakeholders,
Alumina produces an annual Sustainability Update. This
Sustainability Update references the Global Reporting Initiative
Standards 2021, and the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board Metals & Mining Standard. Alumina has also drawn on
elements of the International Integrated Reporting Framework.

Alumina Limited

5.9 DIRECTORS' INTENTIONS FOR THE BUSINESS

The Corporations Regulations require a statement by the
Alumina Directors of their intentions regarding the continuation
of Alumina’s business, major changes, if any, to be made to
Alumina’s business or any future employment of Alumina'’s
current employees.

If the Scheme is implemented, Alcoa will acquire and control
Alumina. On the Implementation Date, the Alumina Board

is expected to be reconstituted with nominees of Alcoa. The
Alcoa Board will be reconstituted as described in section 7.5.
Accordingly, it is not possible for the Alumina Directors to
provide a statement of their intentions after the Scheme is
implemented regarding the above matters. The current
intentions of Alcoa with respect to these matters are set out
in section 7.3.

If the Scheme is not implemented, the Alumina Directors
intend to continue to operate Alumina in the ordinary course
of business and for Alumina to remain listed on ASX.

5.10 PUBLICLY AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Alumina is a listed disclosing entity for the purposes of the
Corporations Act and is subject to periodic reporting and
disclosure obligations under the Corporations Act and the
ASX Listing Rules. Broadly, these require Alumina to announce
price sensitive information as soon as it becomes aware of the
information that a reasonable person would expect to have a
material effect on the price or value of Alumina Shares, subject
to certain exceptions. Alumina is also required to prepare and
lodge with ASIC and ASX both annual and half-year
consolidated financial statements.

Publicly disclosed information about all ASX-listed entities,
including Alumina, is available on the ASX website at
www.asx.com.au. Alumina’s annual and interim reports and
public announcements are also available on the Alumina
website at https://www.aluminalimited.com/announcements/.

Copies of documents lodged with ASIC in relation to Alumina
may be obtained from, or inspected via ASIC's online registry
portal ASIC Connect at www.asicconnect.gov.au, or at an ASIC
service centre. ASIC may charge a fee for these services.
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6.1 BACKGROUND AND HISTORY

Alcoa is a global industry leader in bauxite, alumina and
aluminium products, with a vision to reinvent the aluminium
industry for a sustainable future. Alcoa is built on a foundation
of strong values and operating excellence dating back more
than 135 years.

Alcoa became an independent, publicly traded company

on 1 November 2016 following its separation from its former
parent company, Alcoa Inc. (which then became known as
“Arconic Inc.,” now known as “Howmet Aerospace Inc.”). Alcoa
is listed on the NYSE under the symbol "AA” (NYSE: AA).

Alcoa is active in all aspects of the upstream aluminium
industry with bauxite mining, alumina refining, and aluminium
smelting and casting. Alcoa has direct and indirect ownership

of assets in 27 locations across nine countries on six continents.

_Lp%he financial year ended 31 December 2023, Alcoa’s total
lobal revenue was US$10,551 million. Alcoa’s consolidated
tal assets were valued at US$14,155 million and its total

unity was approximately US$5,845 million.

qj.Z ALCOA'S BUSINESS AND ASSETS

m Cautionary statement regarding Foreign Estimates

Alcoa's disclosures of Foreign Estimates are not reported

in accordance with the JORC Code. The technical

information contained in this Scheme Booklet relating to

Alcoa's mining projects has been prepared in accordance
C with Subpart 1300.

O A competent person has not done sufficient work to

classify the Foreign Estimates as Mineral Resources or Ore
Reserves in accordance with the JORC Code. It is uncertain
that following evaluation and/or further exploration work
that the Foreign Estimates would be able to be reported as
Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves in accordance with the
JORC Code.

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina will apply to be
S delisted from the Official List of the ASX. Alcoa has applied
O for admission to the Official List of the ASX as a Foreign

Exempt Listing. If admitted as a Foreign Exempt Listing,

Alcoa will be exempt from complying with ASX Listing

Rule 5.12 and will instead continue to comply with Subpart

1300 in respect of resources and reserves reporting.

As such, Alcoa has no intention to present the Foreign

Estimates in accordance with the JORC Code, or otherwise

to verify them for this purpose.

Alcoa’s mineral reserves and mineral resources are reported
on an attributable basis and the mineral resources are
exclusive of reserves.

See the disclosures required by ASX Listing Rule 5.12 in
section 6.2(i).

A comparison of the differences in resource categorisation
under the JORC Code and Subpart 1300 is set out in
section 11.11(b).

Alumina Limited

"o

The terms “mineral resource,” “measured mineral resource,”
“indicated mineral resource,” “inferred mineral resource,”
"mineral reserve,” “proven mineral reserve” and “probable
mineral reserve” are defined and used in accordance with
Subpart 1300. Under Subpart 1300, mineral resources may

not be classified as “mineral reserves” unless the determination
has been made by a qualified person (as defined thereunder)
that the mineral resources can be the basis of an economically
viable project. Part or all of the mineral deposits (including any
mineral resources) in these categories may never be converted
into mineral reserves. Further, except for the portion of mineral
resources classified as mineral reserves, mineral resources do
not have demonstrated economic value. Estimates of inferred
mineral resources have too high of a degree of uncertainty as
to their existence and may not be converted to a mineral
reserve. Therefore, it should not be assumed that all or any part
of an inferred mineral resource exists, that it can be the basis of
an economically viable project or that it will ever be upgraded
to a higher category. Likewise, it should not be assumed that
all or any part of measured or indicated mineral resources will
ever be converted to mineral reserves.

In accordance with Subpart 1300, Alcoa’s management
engaged SLR International Corporation as the qualified
persons to prepare technical report summaries for the
disclosure of mineral resources and reserves at Darling Range
and Juruti. The resources and reserves tables below by mining
property were derived, for the most part, from the technical
report summaries relating to such properties prepared in
compliance with ltem 601(b)(96) and subpart 1300 of
Regulation S-K by the qualified persons, which have no
affiliation with or interest in Alcoa or its mining properties.

(a) Overview of Alcoa's assets

Alcoa’s operations comprise two reportable business segments:
Alumina and Aluminium. Across these two business segments,
certain assets are held by AWAC Entities (while the balance is
held by Alcoa). Refer to section 6.2(e)ii) for a full list of AWAC
Entities’ assets.

(i) Alumina

The Alumina segment primarily consists of a series of affiliated
operating entities held in AWAC. Further detail on the Alumina
segment is set out at section 6.2(b).

(ii) Aluminium

The Aluminium segment currently consists of:

+ Alcoa’s worldwide smelting and cast house system; and

+ a portfolio of energy assets in Brazil, Canada and the
United States.

Further detail on the Aluminium segment is set out at
section 6.2(c).
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Alcoa’s assets and properties include those both within AWAC and those outside AWAC. The following map shows the locations
of Alcoa's operations as of the Last Practicable Date:
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(b) Alumina

(i) Overview

(A) Products, pricing and customers

Alcoa’s alumina sales are made to customers globally and are typically priced by reference to published spot market prices. Alcoa
produces smelter grade alumina and non-metallurgical grade alumina. Alcoa’s largest customer for smelter grade alumina is its
own aluminium smelters, which in 2023 accounted for approximately 32% of its total alumina shipments. A small portion of the
alumina (non-metallurgical grade) is sold to third-party customers who process it into industrial chemical products. This segment
also includes AWAC's 25.1% share of Ma'aden Bauxite and Alumina Company (MBAC).

In 2023, Alcoa-operated mines, mines operated by partnerships in which Alcoa, including AWAC, has equity interests, and
bauxite offtake agreements supplied 83% of volume to Alcoa refineries and the remaining 17% was sold to third-party customers.
Alcoa-operated mines produced 36.3 Mdmt of bauxite and mines operated by partnerships produced 4.7 Mdmt of bauxite on a
proportional equity basis, for a total Alcoa bauxite production of 41.0 Mdmt.

Alcoa primarily sells alumina through contracts containing two pricing components: (1) the APl price basis and (2) a negotiated
adjustment basis that takes into account various factors, including freight, quality, customer location, and market conditions, as
well as through fixed price spot sales. In 2023, approximately 95% of Alcoa’s smelter grade alumina shipments to third parties
were sold on an adjusted API price or fixed price spot basis.

(B) Alcoa's five-year review

In October 2019, Alcoa announced a five-year review of its production assets that included a range of potential outcomes for
these facilities to improve cost positioning, including curtailment, closure, or divestiture. The review includes 4 million metric tons
of global refining capacity, of which 2,305,000 metric tons of capacity has been permanently closed since the announced review.
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(C) Capacity table
Bauxite production
Alcoa’s and/or Alcoa'’s proportion of AWAC's bauxite production (Mdmt) for the year ended 31 December 2023 was:

Country Property (Region) 2023
Australia Darling Range (Western Australia) 30.9
Brazil Juruti (Para State) 5.0
Pocos de Caldas (Minas Gerais) 0.4

Guinea Boké (Sangaredi) 3.6
>Siudi Arabia Al'Ba'itha (Al Qassim) 1.1

)]
_CI'OTAL 41.0

Olumina production
Alcoa’s alumina refining facilities and its worldwide alumina capacity stated in Mtpy as of 31 December 2023 are shown in the

llowing table:
m Nameplate Capacity Alcoa Consolidated
jountry Facility (000 Mtpy)¥ Capacity (000 Mtpy)3°
Eustralia (AofA) Kwinana 2,190 2,190
C Pinjarra 4,700 4,700
(@) Wagerup 2,879 2,879
@razil Pocos de Caldas 390 390
D S&o Luis (Alumar) 3,860 2,084
Qp‘ain San Ciprian 1,600 1,600
OTAL 15,619 13,843

I I Equity Interests
Saudi Arabia Ras Al Khair (MBAC) 1,800 452

(D) Resources and reserves

As of 31 December 2023, Alcoa’s individually material mining properties, as determined in accordance with Subpart 1300, are its
bauxite mining properties in the Darling Range, Western Australia (Darling Range) and Juruti, Brazil (Juruti).

The information contained in this section 6.2(b)(i)(D) for Alcoa was prepared in accordance with the requirements of the SEC in
Subpart 1300. Accordingly, the resources and reserves estimates for Alcoa were prepared in accordance with Subpart 1300 and
do not purport to be reported in accordance with or otherwise compliant with the JORC Code.

Because the estimates have not been prepared in accordance with the JORC Code, they are classified as Foreign Estimates under
the ASX Listing Rules. If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina will apply to be delisted from the Official List of the ASX. Alcoa has
applied for admission to the Official List of the ASX as a Foreign Exempt Listing. If admitted as a Foreign Exempt Listing, Alcoa

will be exempt from complying with ASX Listing Rule 5.12 and will instead comply with NYSE Listing Rules in respect of resources
and reserves reporting. As such, Alcoa has no intention to present the Foreign Estimates in accordance with the JORC Code or
otherwise to verify them for this purpose.

29. Nameplate Capacity is an estimate based on design capacity and normal operating efficiencies and does not necessarily represent maximum possible
production. 30. Alcoa Corporation Consolidated Capacity represents Alcoa’s share of production from these facilities. For facilities wholly-owned by AWAC, Alcoa
takes 100% of the production.
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In relation to the reliability of the Alcoa Foreign Estimates contained in this Scheme Booklet, it should be noted that:

the Alcoa Foreign Estimates are not reported in accordance with the JORC Code;

a Competent Person has not done sufficient work to classify the Foreign Estimates as Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves
in accordance with the JORC Code;

it is currently uncertain whether, following evaluation and/or further exploration work, the Alcoa Foreign Estimates will be
able to be reported as Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves in accordance with the JORC Code;

the Alcoa Foreign Estimates have not been published with all the supporting data and such Alcoa Foreign Estimates have
not been verified by independent third parties;

Alcoa’s mineral reserves are reported on an attributable basis; and

Alcoa’s mineral resources are reported exclusive of reserves and on an attributable basis.
For further information about the reporting standards applicable to Alcoa, see section 11.11.

Mineral resources (attributable)

See summary of attributable bauxite mineral resources exclusive of mineral reserves at 31 December 2023 below. In the table,
Tis Tonnage, A is Alumina, and S is Silica.

Measured and

Measured Indicated Indicated Inferred

T A S T A S T A S T A S
Property (Region) (Mdmt)” (%) (%) | Mdmt) (%) (%) | (Mdmt)” (%) (%) | (Mdmt)” (%) (%)
Darling Range (WA)3? 93.0 304 1.5 105.4 30.8 1.3 198.4 30.6 1.4 106.9 323 1.2
Juruti (Pard State)*® 5.7 445 5.3 58.5 453 4.4 64.2 453 4.5 563.6 457 4.7
Pocos de Caldas 2.4 390 4.7 10.6  37.1 5.6 131 374 5.5 214 352 5.9
(Minas Gerais)**
Boké (Sangaredi)®® - - - 1,350.7 466 2.3 1,350.7 46.6 2.3 168.1 45.8 2.4
Al'Ba’itha (Al Qassim)3¢ - - - - - - - - - 0.7 483 11.7

Mineral reserves (attributable)

The following table shows only the AWAC and/or Alcoa share (proportion) of mineral reserves. These estimates are periodically
updated to reflect past bauxite production, updated mine plans, new exploration information, and other geologic or mining data.
Given Alcoa’s extensive bauxite resources, the abundant supply of bauxite globally, and the length of Alcoa's rights to bauxite, it is
not cost-effective to establish bauxite reserves that reflect the total size of the bauxite resources available to Alcoa. Certain totals
may not sum due to rounding.

30. Alcoa Corporation Consolidated Capacity represents Alcoa'’s share of production from these facilities. For facilities wholly-owned by AWAC, Alcoa takes 100%
of the production. 31. This table shows only the AWAC and/or Alcoa share (proportion) of mineral resources. The reference point for the mineral resource is the

in situ predicted dry tonnage and grade of material to be delivered to the refinery stockpile following the application of mining design parameters. Metallurgical
recovery factors are not applicable to the mineral resource estimate as the Darling Range operations do not include a conventional processing plant, only
crushing. The metallurgical recovery of the three refineries (Kwinana, Pinjarra, and Wagerup) are beyond the boundaries of the mining operations. Certain totals
may not sum due to rounding. 32. Alumina for the Darling Range is stated as Available Alumina (as A.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,).
Further, mineral resources are estimated using a reasonable market expectation of arms-length sales of bauxite from Darling Range, approximately US$21 per ton.
Darling Range mineral resources are estimated at a = 27.5% A.Al,O, and <3.5% R.SiO, cut-off grade and at a minimum mining thickness of 1.5 m. 33. Alumina for
Juruti is stated as Available Alumina (as A.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,). Juruti mineral resources are estimated at a pit discard cut-off
value based on a benefit calculation that determines whether a block is economically viable and has a minimum thickness of 1 meter (m). Further, mineral
resources are estimated using a long-term bauxite price of approximately US$35 (wet-base) per ton, representing a 30% increase over the mineral reserve bauxite
price. 34. Alumina for Pogos de Caldas is stated as Available Alumina (as A.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,). Pogos de Caldas mineral
resources are estimated at a pit discard cut-off value based on a benefit calculation that determines whether a block is economically viable. 35. Alumina for Boké
is stated as Total Alumina (as T.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Total Silica (as T.SiO,). Boké resources are estimated at a = 41% T.AL,O, and <10% T.SiO, cut-off grade.
Tonnage reported on a 3% moisture basis. 36. Alumina for Al Ba'itha is stated as Total Available Alumina (as TAA) and Silica is stated as Total Silica (as T.SiO2). Al
Ba'itha mineral resources are estimated at a > 40% TAA cut-off grade and a minimum mining thickness of 1.0 m.
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See summary of attributable bauxite mineral reserves at 31 December 2023. In the table, T is Tonnage, A is Alumina, and S is Silica.

Proven Probable Total
T A S T A S T A S
Property (Region) (Mdmt)¥ (%) (%) | (Mdmt)¥ (%) (%) | (Mdmt)¥ (%) (%)
Darling Range (WA)3® 48.0 291 1.6 296.0 31.9 1.3 3441 315 1.3
Juruti (Para State)** 46.2 47.6 35 34.7 463 35 80.9 471 3.5
Pocos de Caldas (Minas Gerais)*° 0.9 411 3.4 1.8 38.9 3.9 2.7 39.6 3.8
Boké (Sangaredi)*! 76.5 47.0 1.9 3.8 48.9 2.5 80.3 471 1.9
>|§Ba'itha (Al Qassim)*? 16.3 50.0 8.2 30.9 468 103 47.3 47.9 9.6

Qi) Darling Range bauxite mining

e Darling Range bauxite deposits comprise the mining centres of (i) Huntly, located approximately 80 km to the southeast of
Perth and (ii) Willowdale, located approximately 100 km south-southeast of Perth. The Darling Range bauxite deposits are owned

®d operated by AofA.

e Huntly and Willowdale mining centres/regions are separate open pit, surface mines and are both located within Mining Lease
L1SA. Mining infrastructure in the Darling Range is generally concentrated in the Myara area in the northwest of the Huntly
ining centre, and at the Larego area (20 km southeast of the Wagerup refinery) in the centre of the Willowdale mining centre.

=ilease refer to section 6.2(f) for further information regarding the Darling Range bauxite mining.

i) Juruti

Ghe Juruti bauxite mine is located in the west of Para State in northern Brazil. The Juruti bauxite mine is owned and operated
AWAB.

e Juruti bauxite mine represents an established mining operation which commenced commercial production of bauxite in
009. The Juruti bauxite mine produces both a washed and unwashed bauxite product, however, all tonnage is presented on
S== zero-moisture basis. Bauxite processing takes place at a dedicated plant facility located at the Juruti mine site which has been
perating since 2009 and comprises a simple comminution (crushing and screening) and washing circuit designed to remove
ine particles from the ore.

ease refer to section 6.2(g) for further information regarding the Juruti bauxite mining.

av) Pogos de Caldas Bauxite Mine

ocos de Caldas is an open-cut mine where bauxite is derived from the weathering of nepheline syenite and phonolite. Pogos
de Caldas is owned and operated by Alcoa Aluminio. The Pocos de Caldas facility includes a cast house.

37. This table shows only the AWAC and/or Alcoa share (proportion) of mineral reserves. The reference point for the mineral reserve is the refinery processing
plant gate, with crushing, washing (as applicable), and transportation being the only process employed. Metallurgical recovery factors are not applicable to the
mineral reserve estimate as the Darling Range operations do not include a conventional processing plant, only crushing. The metallurgical recovery of the three
refineries (Kwinana, Pinjarra and Wagerup) are beyond the boundaries of the mining operations. Certain totals may not sum due to rounding. 38. Alumina for the
Darling Range is stated as Available Alumina (as A.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,). Darling Range mineral reserves are estimated at variable
cut-off grades, dependent on operating costs and ore quality for blending to meet refinery target grades. Mineral reserves are estimated using a reasonable
market expectation of arms-length sales of bauxite from Darling Range, approximately US$21 per ton. 39. Alumina for Juruti is stated as Available Alumina (as
A.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,). Juruti mineral reserves are estimated at a pit discard cutoff value based on a benefit calculation that
determines whether a block is economically viable. Further, mineral reserves are estimated using a one-year weighted average bauxite price of approximately
US$27 per ton, based on contractual agreements with an Alumina segment refinery. 40. Alumina for Pogos de Caldas is stated as Available Alumina (as A.Al,O,)
and Silica is stated as Reactive Silica (as R.SiO,). Pogos de Caldas mineral reserves are estimated at a pit discard cut-off value based on a benefit calculation that
determines whether a block is economically viable. 41. Alumina for Boké is stated as Total Alumina (as T.Al,O,) and Silica is stated as Total Silica (as T.SiO,). Boké
reserves are estimated at a = 45% T.ALLO, and <10% T.SiO, cut-off grade. Tonnage reported on a 3% moisture basis. 42. Alumina for Al Ba'itha is stated as Total
Available Alumina (as TAA) and Silica is stated as Total Silica (as T.SiO,). Al Baitha mineral reserves are estimated at a > 40% TAA cut-off grade.
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(v) CBG Bauxite Mine

AWAC has a 45% interest in the bauxite consortium, Halco.
Halco owns a 51% interest in Compagnie des Bauxites de
Guinée (CBG), which is a joint venture between Boké
Investment Company (51%) and the Government of Guinea
(49%) for the operation of a bauxite mine in the Boké region
of Guinea.

(vi) Ma'aden Bauxite Mine

Alcoa entered into a joint venture with the Saudi Arabian
Mining Company (Ma'aden), which was formed by the
government of Saudia Arabia to develop its mineral resources
and create a fully integrated aluminium complex in Saudi
Arabia. Ma'aden is listed on Tadawul. Ma’aden holds a 74.9%
interest in the Ma'aden JV. The Ma'aden JV is currently

comprised of two entities: MBAC and MAC (see section 6.2(c)).

AWAC holds a 25.1% interest in MBAC, which holds the
Ma'aden bauxite mine and refinery. Alcoa holds a 25.1%
interest in MAC which holds the smelter (see section 6.2(b)(x)).

MBAC owns an alumina refinery with a capacity of 1.8 million
Mtpy. The alumina refinery is located within the Ras Al Khair
industrial zone on the east coast of Saudi Arabia.

(vii) Kwinana Alumina Refinery

The Kwinana alumina refinery has an annual nameplate
production capacity of 2.19 million Mtpy and produces
smelter-grade alumina (approx. 80% of production) and
non-metallurgical alumina (approx. 20% of production).
The Kwinana Alumina Refinery is owned and operated
by AofA.

In January 2024, Alcoa announced the full curtailment of

the Kwinana refinery to be completed in the second quarter
of 2024. Current mine plans do not accommodate this
curtailment but will be amended to include a staged reduction
of supply to the refinery through the third quarter of 2024.
The refinery has been operating at approximately 80% of its
nameplate capacity since January 2023.

(viii) Pinjarra Alumina Refinery

The Pinjarra alumina refinery was commissioned in 1972

and, as one of the world's largest alumina refineries, has an
annual nameplate production capacity of 4.7 million Mtpy.
The Pinjarra alumina refinery is owned and operated by AofA.

The Pinjarra alumina refinery is supplied bauxite via an
overland conveyor from the Huntly Bauxite Mine east of
North Dandalup.

(ix) Wagerup Alumina Refinery

The Wagerup alumina refinery commenced operations in
1984. The Wagerup alumina refinery has an annual nameplate
production capacity of 2.879 million Mtpy. The Wagerup
alumina refinery is owned and operated by AofA.

The Wagerup alumina refinery is supplied bauxite ore via an
overland conveyor from Alcoa’s Willowdale bauxite mine.

(x) Pogos de Caldas Alumina Refinery

The Pocos de Caldas alumina refinery, located in Minas Gerais,
Brazil, is owned and operated by Alcoa Aluminio and was
commissioned in 1965. The Pocos de Caldas alumina refinery
has an annual nameplate production capacity of 390,000 Mtpy
of alumina.
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(xi) Alumar Alumina Refinery

Alumar is an unincorporated joint venture for the operation of
(among other things) a refinery in northern Brazil. The refinery
is owned by AWAB (39.96%), Rio Tinto (10%), Alcoa Aluminio
(14.04%), and South32 (36%). AWAB is part of the AWAC group
of companies and is ultimately owned 60% by Alcoa and 40%
by Alumina. The Alumar alumina refinery has a capacity of
2.084 million Mtpy.

During 2023, the Alumar refinery experienced several
challenges impacting production levels, maintenance, and
production costs.

(xii) San Ciprian Alumina Refinery

AWAC owns 100% of the San Ciprian alumina refinery. The San
Ciprian alumina refinery has an annual nameplate production
capacity of 1.6 million Mtpy. Bauxite for the refinery is primarily
supplied by CBG.

In 2022, production at the San Ciprién refinery was reduced to
approximately 50% of the 1.6 million Mtpy of annual capacity
to mitigate the financial impact of high natural gas costs.

Refer to section 6.2(b)(xii) for further information on the
San Ciprian facility.

Around 70% of San Ciprian’s alumina is supplied to Alcoa’s
aluminium smelter in Spain historically (which is currently
fully curtailed). Remaining production is largely sold as
non-metallurgical.

(c) Aluminium

(i) Overview

(A) Products, pricing and customers

As mentioned in section 6.2(a), this business segment currently
consists of:

« Alcoa’s worldwide smelting and cast house system; and

- a portfolio of energy assets in Brazil, Canada, and the
United States.

The smelting operations produce molten primary aluminium,
which is then formed by the casting operations into either
common alloy ingot (e.g., t-bar, sow, standard ingot) or into
value add ingot products (e.g., foundry, billet, rod, and slab).

Contracts for primary aluminium vary widely in duration, from
multi-year supply contracts to spot purchases. Pricing for
primary aluminium products is typically comprised of three
components:

- the published LME aluminium price for commodity grade
P1020 aluminium;

- the published regional premium applicable to the delivery
locale; and

- a negotiated product premium that accounts for factors such
as shape and alloy.

This business segment also includes Alcoa’s 25.1% share of
MAC, a smelting joint venture in Saudi Arabia.

The energy assets supply power to external customers in
Brazil and the United States, as well as internal customers in
the aluminium segment (Baie-Comeau (Canada) smelter and
Warrick (Indiana) smelter) and, to a lesser extent, the alumina
segment (Brazilian refineries).
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(B) Alcoa’s five-year review

Alcoa'’s five-year review of its production assets first announced in October 2019 includes 1.5 million metric tons of smelting
capacity. The portfolio review includes evaluations to improve cost positioning, including curtailments, closures or divestitures.

As of 31 December 2023, Alcoa had approximately 465,000 Mtpy of idle smelting capacity relative to total Alcoa consolidated
capacity of 2.645 million Mtpy. The idle capacity includes 228,000 Mtpy of idle capacity at the San Cipriadn smelter, 84,000 Mtpy
of idle capacity at the Alumar smelter, 80,000 Mtpy of idle capacity at the Warrick smelter, 42,000 Mtpy of idle capacity at the
Portland smelter, and 31,000 Mtpy of idle capacity at the Lista smelter.

(C) Capacity table
Summary of Alcoa’s primary aluminium facilities and its global smelting capacity stated in Mtpy at 31 December 2023:
Nameplate Capacity Alcoa Consolidated Capacity
Country Facility (000 Mtpy)*? (000 Mtyp)*
Australia Portland 358 197
m—Rrazil Pocos de Caldas® N/A N/A
O S0 Luis (Alumar) 447 268
Canada Baie-Comeau, Québec 324 324
m Bécancour, Québec 467 350
3 Deschambault, Québec 287 287
Eeland Fjardaal 351 351
Eorway Lista 95 95
@) Mosjzen 200 200
(‘L?pain San Ciprian 228 228
q.l)nited States Massena West, NY 130 130
Q Evansville, IN (Warrick) 215 215
| -
dOTAL 3,102 2,645
I I Equity Interests
Saudi Arabia Ras Al Khair (MAC) 804 202

(ii) Portland Smelter

The Portland aluminium smelter opened in 1986 and is a joint venture between AofA (55%), CITIC Nominees Pty Limited (22.5%)
and Marubeni Aluminium Australia Pty Limited (22.5%). AofA, which is owned by AWAC, manages the day-to-day operations at the
Portland aluminium smelter. As of 31 December 2023, the Portland aluminium smelter produces 22.5-kilogram aluminium ingot.

In the fourth quarter of 2023, Alcoa began the restart of 16,000 Mtpy of previously curtailed capacity at the Portland smelter. The
smelter had previously been operating at approximately 75% of the site’s total annual capacity since March 2023 due to instability
and challenges related to the production of rodded anodes. The site was operating at approximately 79% of its capacity as of

31 December 2023.

43. Nameplate Capacity is an estimate based on design capacity and normal operating efficiencies and does not necessarily represent maximum possible
production. 44. Alcoa'’s consolidated capacity is its share of Nameplate Capacity based on its ownership interest in the respective smelter. 45. The Pocos de
Caldas facility is a casthouse and does not include a smelter.
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(iii) Alumar Smelter

Alumar also operates a smelter in Brazil. The smelter and cast
house are owned by Alcoa Aluminio (60%) and South32 (40%).
Alcoa manages the facility.

In September 2021, Alcoa announced plans to restart its 60%
share of the Alumar smelter, equivalent to 268,000 Mtpy of
aluminium capacity. Production began in the second quarter
of 2022. During 2023, Alcoa continued the controlled pace
for the restart of the Alumar smelter in S3o Luis, Brazil. The site
was operating at approximately 69% of the site’s total annual
capacity as of 31 December 2023.

(iv) Baie-Comeau, Deschambault and Bécancour
Smelters

Alcoa operates the Baie Comeau, Deschambault and
Aluminerie de Bécancour Inc. (ABI) smelter in Québec, Canada.
Alcoa Canada Co. and Alcoa-Aluminerie de Deschambault L.P.
own the Baie Comeau and Deschambault smelters, respectively.
The ABI smelter is a joint venture between Alcoa and Rio Tinto
located in Bécancour, Québec. Alcoa owns 74.95% of the joint
venture through its 50% equity investment in Pechiney Reynolds
Quebec, Inc., which owns a 50.1% share of the smelter, and two
wholly-owned Canadian subsidiaries, which own 49.9% of the
smelter. Rio Tinto owns the remaining 25.05% interest in the
joint venture through its 50% ownership in Pechiney Reynolds
Quebec, Inc.

Alcoa's Baie-Comeau smelter purchases approximately 25%
of its electricity needs from Manicouagan. Manicouagan owns
and operates the 335 megawatt McCormick hydroelectric
project, which is located on the Manicouagan River in the
Province of Québec, Canada. Manicouagan is a joint venture
between affiliates of Alcoa and Hydro-Québec. Alcoa owns
40% of the joint venture. Otherwise, all electricity consumed
by the three smelters in Québec is purchased under contracts
with Hydro-Québec that expire in December 2029 and
February 2036.

(v) Fjarédaal Smelter

Alcoa has one aluminium smelting and casting facility in
Iceland. Alcoa’s Fjardaal Smelter located in East Iceland is
owned and operated by Alcoa Fjardaal.

(vi) Lista and Mosjgen Smelters

Alcoa operates two aluminium smelting and casting facilities
in Norway, the Lista and Mosj@en Smelters which are owned by
Alcoa Norway AS.

On 30 August 2022, Alcoa announced the curtailment of one-
third of its production capacity (31 Kmt) at the Lista Smelter.

(vii) San Cipridn Smelter

Alcoa owns 100% of the San Ciprian smelter, which is
co-located in the same complex as the San Cipriédn alumina
refinery.

In March 2024, Alcoa completed the restart of approximately
6 percent of total pots at the San Ciprian smelter, which was
curtailed in January 2022 as a result of an agreement with the
workers’ representatives in December 2021. In February 2023,
under the terms of an amended viability agreement, Alcoa
agreed to a phased restart of the smelter beginning in January
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2024, to operate an initial complement of approximately

6 percent of total pots, and to restart all pots by 1 October
2025. While Alcoa has met its commitments to enter into
power purchase agreements for the necessary capacity, that
capacity has not been fully permitted by the government or
built by the power provider, putting an on-time restart at
significant risk and causing the smelter to incur substantial
operating losses for longer, all of which is rendering the
smelter economically unviable. At the refinery, operating
losses continue despite the mitigating action taken by Alcoa
in the third quarter of 2022 to curtail capacity to 50 percent.

As a result of the extended duration of the adverse economic
environment, in December 2023, Alcoa began engagement
with government stakeholders and workers' representatives

of the San Cipridn smelter and refinery regarding the sustained
and ongoing financial losses in order to find a long-term
solution for the combined operations. Although both purchase
prices for energy and sales prices improved during the first
quarter of 2024, the San Ciprian complex remains unviable

for the long-term based on current and forward market
assumptions for delivered energy in Spain and sales prices,
and near-term government support remains unlikely. While
continuing to optimize the smelter and refinery operations and
preserve cash, and as part of Alcoa’s efforts to find a long-term
solution for the complex, Alcoa initiated a process for the
potential sale of the complex during the first quarter of 2024
and anticipates completing the bid process by June 2024. Any
long-term solution requires the support of the government
and workers’ representatives.

The refinery and smelter incurred significant losses in the first
quarter of 2024 and in prior years, which have been funded
with internal credit lines that are now nearing their limits (with
less than $100 available to be drawn), and which the operations
have no ability to repay. Based on current economic conditions,
and barring reaching an acceptable outcome on either achieving
economic viability or completing a sale of the complex, the
San Cipridn operations are expected to incur substantial losses
in the remainder of 2024 and Alcoa anticipates that available
funding will be exhausted in the second half of 2024. At that
point, Alcoa will not provide additional funding and difficult
decisions will have to be considered regarding the future of
the San Cipridn complex.

(viii) Massena West and Warrick Smelters

Alcoa owns two smelters in the United States. The Massena
West smelter is located in New York and the Warrick smelter is
located in Indiana.

During the first quarter of 2024, Alcoa completed the restart
of 54,000 Mtpy of capacity at the Warrick smelter that began
in October 2023. During the fourth quarter of 2023, Alcoa
approved the permanent closure of 54,000 Mtpy of previously
curtailed capacity (which had not operated since 2016) to
prepare the site for future capital investments for improved
casting capabilities.

(ix) Ma'aden smelter

MAC owns and operates the Ma'aden aluminium smelter
which is located within the Ras Al Khair industrial zone on
the east coast of Saudi Arabia. Alcoa owns a 25.1% interest
in MAC, and Ma'aden owns a 74.9% interest.
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(x) Energy

Alumina Limited

In 2023, Alcoa generated approximately 9% of the power used at its smelters worldwide and generally purchased the remainder

under long-term arrangements.

Summary of electricity generation capacity and 2023 generation of facilities in which Alcoa has an ownership interest:

Alcoa Corporation

Country Facility Consolidated Capacity (MW) 2023 Generation (MWh)
Brazil Barra Grande 150 1,315,097
Estreito 155 1,360,074
Machadinho 126 1,057,770

>\‘ Serra do Facédo 60 525,600

Eanada Manicouagan 133 1,161,190
Gnited States Warrick 657 3,640,522
1,281 9,060,253

G"SOTAL

(,ane figures in this table are presented in megawatts (MW) and megawatt hours (MWh), respectively.

;d) Research & Development

aﬁ ELYSIS™
YSISTM Partnership (ELYSIS) is between wholly owned
ubsidiaries of Alcoa (48.235%), Rio Tinto Alcan Inc. (Rio Tinto)
8.235%), and Investissement Québec (3.53%), a company
holly owned by the Government of Québec, Canada. The
Ugurpose of ELYSIS is to advance larger scale development
nd commercialisation of its patent-protected technology
at eliminates direct greenhouse gas emissions from the
aditional aluminium smelting process and, instead emits
Q:ygen. Alcoa first developed the inert anode technology
the aluminium smelting process that served as the basis
for the formation of ELYSIS. Development scale quantities of
uminium produced by ELYSIS have been sold for commercial
urposes, including to RONAL Group for the wheels for the
udi eTron GT. ELYSIS has also supplied metal to Apple Inc.,
Ll_a.non—equity investor in the technology, for use in some of its
products such as the 16-inch MacBook Pro and the iPhone SE.

(e) AWAC

AWAC is a global, unincorporated joint venture between
Alcoa and Alumina. AWAC consists of a number of affiliated
entities that own, operate or have an interest in bauxite mines
and alumina refineries, as well as an aluminium smelter, in
seven countries. Alcoa owns 60% and Alumina owns 40% of
these entities, directly or indirectly.

(i) AWAC governance

Alcoa provides the operating management for AWAC, which
is subject to direction provided by the AWAC Strategic
Council. The AWAC Strategic Council consists of five members,
three of whom are appointed by Alcoa (of which one is the
Chair of the AWAC Strategic Council) and two of whom are
appointed by Alumina (of which one is the Deputy Chair of the
AWAC Strategic Council). Matters are decided by a majority
vote with certain matters requiring approval by at least 80%

of the members, including: changes to the scope of AWAC;
changes in the AWAC dividend policy; equity calls in
aggregate greater than US$1 billion in any year; sales of all or
a majority of the AWAC assets; loans from AWAC entities to

Alcoa or Alumina; certain acquisitions, divestitures, expansions,
curtailments or closures; certain related-party transactions;
financial derivatives, hedges or swap transactions; a decision
by AWAC Entities to file for insolvency; and changes to pricing
formula in certain offtake agreements which may be entered
into between AWAC Entities and Alcoa or Alumina.

In addition, the governing documents of AWAC provide:

Exclusivity: subject to certain exceptions, AWAC is the
exclusive vehicle for each of Alcoa and Alumina’s investments,
operations or participation in the bauxite and alumina
business, and they will not compete with AWAC in those
businesses. Subject to satisfaction of certain conditions, these
restrictions terminate on a change of control of either party.

Equity calls: the cash flow of AWAC and borrowings are the
preferred sources of funding, though an equity call can be
made on 30 days’ notice where required, subject to certain
limitations.

Dividend policy: AWAC will generally be required to
distribute at least 50% of the prior calendar quarter’s net
income of each AWAC Entity, and certain AWAC Entities
will also be required to pay a distribution every three
months equal to the amount of available cash above
specified thresholds and subject to the forecast cash needs
of the AWAC Entity.

Leveraging policy: debt of AWAC is subject to a limit of 30%
of total capital (defined as the sum of debt (net of cash) plus
any non-controlling interest plus shareholder equity).

(ii) AWAC operations

AWAC Entities’ assets include the following interests (see
further details at section 6.2(b) and 6.2(c)):

+ 100% of the bauxite mining and alumina refining operations
of Alcoa’s affiliate, AofA;

+ 100% of the Juruti bauxite deposit and mine in Brazil;

45% interest in Halco, a bauxite consortium that owns a
51% interest in CBG, a bauxite mine in Guinea;

39.96% interest in the S&o Luis refinery in Brazil;
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- 55% interest in the Portland, Australia smelter that AWAC
manages on behalf of the joint venture partners;

25.1% interest in the mine and refinery in Ras Al Khair,
Saudi Arabia;

100% of the refinery and alumina-based chemicals assets
at San Ciprian, Spain;

100% of Alcoa Steamship Company LLC, a company that
procures ocean freight and commercial shipping services
for Alcoa in the ordinary course of business;

.

100% of the refinery assets at the closed facility in Point
Comfort, Texas, United States; and,

+ 100% interest in various assets formerly used for mining
and refining in the Republic of Suriname.

(f) Alumina - further information regarding
Darling Range bauxite mining

(i) Land tenure and permitting

Huntly currently supplies bauxite to the Kwinana and Pinjarra
refineries (approximately 25 million tonnes per annum), while
Willowdale supplies the Wagerup refinery (approximately

10 million tonnes per annum).

The ML1SA lease allows for exploration and mining of bauxite
within the tenement boundaries. AofA seeks annual approvals
from the Western Australian government for rolling five-year
MMPs for Huntly and Willowdale bauxite mines. Other
secondary permits and approvals are also required.

Constraints on mining activities within the ML1SA concession
are in place which, among others, prevent mining within:

200 m of the top water level margin of any water reservoirs;
Serpentine Pipehead Dam Catchment; 10 m of a Black
Cockatoo nesting tree or Black Cockatoo significant tree;
National Parks; Aboriginal Heritage Sites; Old Growth Forest;
formal Conservation Areas; and 50 m of granite outcrop
(greater than 1 ha) and Mining Avoidance Zones around the
Western Australian forest towns of Dwellingup and Jarrahdale.
Mineral resources and mineral reserves have not been defined
in these restricted areas.

Additionally, the 2023-2027 MMP requires additional
constraints including: a reduction in mining activities inside
higher risk areas within drinking water catchments; no new pit
clearing in areas with an average pit slope greater than 16%
within any Reservoir Protection Zone (RPZ, 2 km from reservoir
top water level); an acceleration of forest rehabilitation and

a reduction in open mining areas; and a maximum annual
clearing footprint of 800 ha.

Outcomes of and compliance with the management and
monitoring programs are tracked within Alcoa’s Environmental
Management System and reported within Alcoa’s Annual
Environmental Review Report.

(ii) Geology and exploration

Systematic exploration for bauxite within the region
commenced in the 1960s and is currently conducted on a
continuous basis to maintain sufficient mineral resources and
mineral reserves to meet refinery supply. Current mine plans
include further exploration throughout all areas where Alcoa
has mining permits to sustain future production.

(iii) Mining and processing

The Huntly and Willowdale mines employ conventional open
pit surface mining practices and equipment.
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The process plant for the Darling Range operations consists

of two separate crushing facilities at the Huntly and Willowdale
mines, respectively. Both facilities crush the run-of-mine ore
and convey the crushed ore to three separate refineries
located at Pinjarra, Kwinana, and Wagerup.

The process plant is a dry crushing operation and therefore
water is not required as a consumable for the plant. Alcoa’s
Darling Range mining operations do not produce mine waste
in the same manner as other mining operations and waste
dumps are not constructed.

(iv) Environmental and social

Alcoa’s mine sites are monitored in accordance with the
conditions of Government authorisations and its operational
licenses at Huntly and Willowdale. Outcomes of and
compliance with the management and monitoring programs
are tracked within Alcoa’s environmental management system
and reported within a triennial environmental review report.

Alcoa works proactively with key regulatory agencies to
address operational incidents and implement operational
improvements to reduce releases to the environment.

In December 2023, the Western Australian government
granted an exemption under section 6 of the WA EPA that
allows Alcoa to continue its mining operations while the WA
EPA assesses the environmental impact of parts of the MMP.
Compliance against the exemption under section 6 of the
WA EPA is monitored on a weekly basis by an independent
compliance monitor and reported monthly to the Department
of Water and Environmental Regulation. At the request of the
Western Australian government, Alcoa has committed to
provide a bank guarantee for approximately US$68 million
(A$100 million) demonstrating Alcoa’s confidence that its
operations will not impair drinking water supplies.

Alcoa is modernising its environmental approvals framework
for the Huntly bauxite mine and referred future mining plans to
access Myara North and Holyoake to the WA EPA for
assessment in 2020.

Approvals are also required from the Commonwealth
Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment
and Water.

(g) Alumina - further information regarding Juruti
(i) Land tenure and permitting

All exploration and mining activities are managed by the
National Mining Agency, Agencia Nacional de Mineracao
(ANM), under the Mining Code. Permits are granted by the
ANM and fall into two categories:

« Exploration Permits: granted to support ongoing exploration
activities.

+ Mining Concession: following a successful mining plan
submission, enabling exploitation once environmental
licenses are granted.

Alcoa submits an annual environmental report in compliance
with the Juruti operating licences and approvals.

(ii) Geology and Exploration

Systematic exploration for bauxite within the region has
persisted since Alcoa’s ownership and is currently conducted
on a continuous basis to establish optimal mine plans to
achieve a uniform quality of bauxite production. Current mine
plans include further exploration throughout all areas where
Alcoa has mining permits to sustain future production.
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(h) Overview of Alcoa Bidder

Alumina Limited

Alcoa Bidder is an Australian proprietary company limited by shares that was incorporated on 6 March 2024 and is a wholly
owned indirect Subsidiary of Alcoa. Prior to the Scheme, it has not and will not conduct any business and does not currently own
any assets or have any liabilities. If the Scheme is implemented, Alcoa Bidder will directly hold all the shares in Alumina.

(i) ASX Listing Rule 5.12 Disclosures

ASX
Listing ASX
Rule explanation

Alcoa commentary

5.12.1 The source and date of the
historical estimates or foreign
estimates.

The foreign estimates in respect of Alcoa’s operations and properties were
prepared by Alcoa. The mineral resources and mineral reserves are prepared

in accordance with Subpart 1300. The source of Alcoa’s foreign estimates is the
Alcoa FY23 Annual Report, which has been publicly disclosed and filed with the
SEC. A copy of the Alcoa FY23 Annual Report is available on the Alcoa website
at https://investors.alcoa.com/sec-filings. The foreign estimates are effective as
of 31 December 2023 and, as far as Alcoa is concerned, are the most recent
available mineral resources and mineral reserves estimates for Alcoa’s operations
and projects.

N
(V)

Whether the historical
estimates or foreign estimates
use categories of mineralisation
other than those defined in
Appendix 5A (JORC Code) and
if so, an explanation of the
differences.

For personal use, only

The Alcoa foreign estimates of mineral resources and mineral reserves have been
prepared using the categories of mineralisation set forth in Subpart 1300. Alcoa
considers the foreign estimates to be consistent with the requirements of Subpart
1300.

The reporting requirements prescribed by Subpart 1300 and with which Alcoa’s
reporting complies, and the Australian standards have similar goals in terms of
conveying an appropriate level of confidence in the disclosures being reported,
but embody different approaches and definitions and differ in several respects.
For example, the terms “Ore Reserve”, “Proved Ore Reserve”, "Probable Ore
Reserve”, "Mineral Resource”, “"Measured Mineral Resource”, “Indicated Mineral
Resource” and “Inferred Mineral Resource” are Australian mining terms as defined
in the JORC Code, and their definitions differ from the definitions of the terms

"ou "o "o

“mineral reserve”, “proven mineral reserve”, “probable mineral reserve”, “mineral
resource”, "measured mineral resource”, “indicated mineral resource” and “inferred
mineral resource” as included in the Subpart 1300. Additionally, the JORC Code
allows (i) Measured and Indicated Mineral Resources to be reported inclusive of
Mineral Resources modified to produce its Ore Reserves and (ii) the inclusion of
Inferred Mineral Resources in an estimate of Ore Reserves, on the condition that
such Inferred Resources are treated as waste material for the purpose of financial
evaluation. By contrast, Subpart 1300 requires mineral resources to be reported
exclusive of mineral reserves and does not allow the inclusion of inferred mineral
resources or unclassified material in an estimate of mineral reserves.

a
-
N
w

The relevance and materiality of
the historical estimates or foreign
estimates to the entity.

The Alcoa foreign estimates are material to the Combined Group as they form a
significant portion of the overall mineral reserve and mineral resource inventory.

5.12.4 The reliability of historical
estimates or foreign estimates
to the entity.

The foreign estimates are considered reliable by Alcoa for the following reasons:

+ the foreign estimates for Darling Range and Juruti have been reported in the
Alcoa FY23 Annual Report by an individual who is considered to be a qualified
person as defined in Subpart 1300;

« the balance of the foreign estimates were prepared using the results of the
procedure performed by the qualified persons (which have no affiliation with
or interest in Alcoa or its mining properties); and

« the methodologies for preparing the mineral resources and mineral reserves
have not changed significantly in comparison to previous reporting.
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ASX
Listing ASX
Rule explanation Alcoa commentary
5.12.5 To the extent known, a summary The work programs on which the foreign estimates are based include:
of work programs on which the - in respect of the Darling Range site, an SLR geologist and an SLR mining
historical estimates or foreign engineer were accompanied by various Alcoa personnel to undertake site visits
estimates are based and a and inspections of various aspects of the Huntly and Willowdale mining areas.
summary of the key assumptions, Further discussions on reconciliation, geological modelling, long term mine
mining and processing parameters planning and permitting were undertaken between SLR qualified persons and
and methods used to prepare the personnel from Alcoa. Alcoa also provided permission to document the site visit
historical or foreign estimates. with video, photos, and audio which were shared with other SLR team members.
Further, an SLR environmental practitioner attended the Huntly site visit
to review pertinent items such as the site constraints and other aspects of
rehabilitation (as part of the broader modifying factor review);

- in respect of the Juruti site, the SLR qualified persons visited the site and
reviewed the procedures related to geology and mining; and visited the core
shed, tailings facilities, mine operation, processing plant, internal laboratory,
exploration areas, examined drill holes and ore faces in the mine and had
meetings with the key persons for the main areas to discuss the workflow and
methodology adopted for the mineral resources and mineral reserves in Juruti.
During the site visit, the most relevant information was collected and discussed
with Alcoa’s technical staff, and it was used as the basis for the qualified persons’
technical report; and

- the balance of the foreign estimates were prepared using the results of the
procedures performed by the SLR qualified persons (which have no affiliation
with or interest in Alcoa or its mining properties) in accordance with Subpart
1300.

Key geological, mining and metallurgical assumptions used in the estimation

of mineral resources and mineral reserves are based on extensive operating

experience and historical performance for the operating sites and at least pre-

feasibility studies (as defined in Subpart 1300) for the projects. The key assumptions
are included in section 6.2 as footnotes to the Mineral resources (attributable) and

Mineral reserves (attributable) tables. More detailed information has been provided

for Alcoa’s material sites in Technical Report Summary documents that have been

filed with the SEC and are publicly available.

5.12.6  Any more recent estimates or No more recent estimates have been completed on Alcoa's operations and
data relevant to the reported projects since the mineral reserves and mineral resources disclosed in the Alcoa
mineralisation available to the FY23 Annual Report.
entity.

5.12.7 The evaluation and/or Alcoa intends for all future mineral reserves and mineral resources estimates
exploration work that needs released for Alcoa and Alumina operations and projects to be prepared in
to be completed to verify the accordance with Subpart 1300.
historical estimates or foreign
estimates as mineral resources or
ore reserves in accordance with
ASX Listing Rules Appendix 5A
(JORC Code).

5.12.8  The proposed timing of any Ongoing evaluation work is planned to be completed during 2024 and will be

evaluation and/or exploration
work that the entity intends to
undertake and a comment on
how the entity intends to fund
that work.

reported in Alcoa's mineral reserves and mineral resources update included in the
Alcoa Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2024. There is no intention
to verify Alcoa's reserves and resources estimates for Alcoa in accordance with
the JORC Code
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ASX

Listing ASX

Rule explanation Alcoa commentary

5.12.9  Acautionary statement Alcoa cautions that mineral resources and mineral reserves for the Alcoa

y

proximate to, and with equal
prominence as, the reported
historical estimates or foreign
estimates stating that:

The estimates are historical
estimates or foreign estimates
and are not reported in
accordance with the JORC
Code;

A competent person has not
done sufficient work to classify
the historical estimates or
foreign estimates as mineral
resources or ore reserves in
accordance with the JORC
Code; and

It is uncertain that following
evaluation and/or further
exploration work that the
historical estimates or foreign
estimates will be able to be
reported as mineral resource or
ore reserves in accordance with
the JORC Code.

operations and projects are not reported in accordance with the JORC Code.

A competent person has not yet completed sufficient work to classify the foreign
estimates of mineral resources or mineral reserves as Mineral Resources or Ore
Reserves in accordance with the JORC Code.

It is currently uncertain whether, following evaluation and/or further exploration
work, these foreign estimates will be able to be reported as Mineral Resources or
Ore Reserves in accordance with the JORC Code.

12.10

aonal use onl

A statement by a named
competent person or persons
that the information in the market
announcement provided under
rules 5.12.2t0 5.12.7 is an
accurate representation of the
available data and studies for
the material mining project.
The statement must include the
information referred to in rule
5.22(b) and (c).

Refer to section 11.11(c).

For pers
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6.3 CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Alcoa’s business currently functions through a number of
different entities. Alcoa is the parent company of the Alcoa
Group. The “significant subsidiaries” (as defined in Regulation
S-X of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
of Alcoa as of 31 December 2023 are set out below. Of these,
the AWAC Entities are marked with an asterisk.

Country Facility
Alcoa Aluminio S.A. Brazil
Alcoa Australian Holdings Pty Ltd Australia

Alcoa Holland B.V. Netherlands

Alcoa Nederland Holding B.V. Netherlands

Alcoa of Australia Limited (AofA)* Australia
Alcoa USA Corp. Delaware
Alcoa USA Holding Company Delaware
Alcoa-Lauralco Management Company  Canada

Aluminerie Lauralco B.V. Netherlands

Reynolds Metals Company, LLC Delaware

6.4 STRATEGY

Alcoa’s business strategy is designed to create shareholder
value while aligning with its purpose, vision, and values.

In the near term, Alcoa has an acute focus on the strategic
priority of reducing complexity and developing a portfolio

of mining, refining, and smelting assets that is profitable, safe,
stable, low cost, low carbon emitting and supported by a
strong balance sheet. To achieve this, Alcoa is prioritising
maintaining a lean overhead structure, operating with
excellence, and actively managing its asset portfolio.

+ In 2019, Alcoa announced a five-year strategic portfolio
review of its smelting and refining capacity to improve cost
positioning or curtail, close or divest 1.5 million and 4 million
metric tons of smelting and refining capacity, respectively.
Through January 2024, Alcoa continued to make progress on
the portfolio review completing its review of refining capacity
and reaching approximately 93% of its target for smelting
capacity. This focus on operational stability and portfolio
transformation results in a reduction in complexity and
improved cash generation to support Alcoa’s capital
allocation framework. The Transaction is consistent with
Alcoa's strategy: it will simplify governance within the group
by the acquisition of the minority partner in AWAC, resulting
in greater operational flexibility and strategic optionality.

Alcoa maintains two additional strategic priorities for
creating value into the long term: advance sustainably and
drive returns. To advance sustainably, Alcoa seeks to increase
value from a leading sustainability position, which includes
the industry’s most comprehensive suite of products made
with lower carbon emissions. The Sustana™ brand, includes
EcoDura™ aluminium (recycled content), EcoLum™
aluminium (low carbon), and EcoSource™ alumina (also low
carbon). These products create a differentiated position for
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Alcoa, serve growing markets focused on lowering carbon
emissions, and provide competitive advantages that Alcoa
can build on.

Alcoa has the goal of being the lowest emitter of carbon
dioxide among all global aluminium companies, per ton of
emissions in both smelting and refining, and aims to move
its aluminium asset portfolio to a first quartile cost position
relative to other aluminium producers upon completion of
Alcoa’s portfolio review. In 2023, Alcoa exceeded its target
of 85% of its smelting portfolio being powered by renewable
energy, attaining 87%.

« Alcoa is developing targeted growth opportunities that
leverage its competitive advantages to meet the evolving
demands of stakeholders and customers and create lasting
sources of value. Through active research and development
projects, Alcoa is seeking to innovate breakthrough
technologies to revolutionise its impact and that of its
customers. These have the potential to drive value by
reducing costs, improving efficiency, and reducing
greenhouse gas emissions in both alumina refining and
aluminium smelting. The roadmap of technologies under
development includes:

— The ELYSIS partnership uses an aluminium smelting
technology that eliminates direct greenhouse gas
emissions from the traditional smelting process, instead
emitting pure oxygen as a byproduct. The research and
development program is being ramped up to commercial
scale and commercial-grade research and development
scale quantities of aluminium produced by ELYSIS.

— The ASTRAEA™ process is a proprietary technology under
development that can purify post-consumer aluminium
scrap, regardless of alloy combination, and beneficiate
it up to high purity levels that exceed what is produced
at most primary aluminium smelters operating today,
permitting use in high tolerance applications, such as
aerospace.

— The Refinery of the Future initiative aims to achieve
alumina refining with no direct greenhouse gas emissions
and reduced fresh water use through adapting various
processes and new technologies under development for
alumina refining. The various components of this initiative
are in early research stages.

6.5 CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Alcoa's four core values - Act with Integrity, Operate with
Excellence, Care for People, and Lead with Courage - provide
the foundation for Alcoa’s approach to corporate responsibility,
including environmental, social and governance matters.
Alcoa strives to achieve its strategic priorities by taking steps
to maintain its social license to operate, reduce risk exposure
through Alcoa’s enterprise risk management programs, and
improve profitability through product differentiation and
innovation. Through the enterprise risk management process
and operations risk management process, Alcoa identifies
and evaluates a broad spectrum of risks across all aspects

of its business. Using a multi-dimensional process, risks are
evaluated, monitored, and prioritised based on the likelihood
of an occurrence, level of impact, and mitigating factors.

Alcoa’s policies and practices demonstrate its work towards
minimizing environmental impacts while maximizing

value across its global operations in ways that align with
stakeholders’ needs and expectations. Alcoa’s approach

to ESG-related programs and initiatives is developed by

its management team, with the Board and its committees
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overseeing these programs and related risks. Alcoa monitors ESG risks and opportunities at the corporate level that are relevant
to its stakeholders and the success of its business strategy and which are used as inputs to Alcoa’s enterprise risk management
program. The Alcoa Board maintains overall oversight of its risk management processes, and management reports regularly on
specific risks.

Alcoa has implemented a number of ESG-related policies and practices including:

- Third party certification of operations: Alcoa has earned Performance Standard certifications from the Aluminium Stewardship
Initiative for 18 of its operating locations.

« Inclusion and culture: Alcoa was named to the 2023 Bloomberg Gender-Equality Index. Alcoa has formed numerous employee
inclusion groups, including the Alcoa Women'’s Network (AWN), Alcoans Working Actively for Racial-Ethnic Equality (AWARE),
Employees at Alcoa for LGBT+ Equality (EAGLE), and Alcoans moving Beyond Limiting Expectations (ABLE) that are designed to
promote a more inclusive workplace.

- Ethics and compliance: Alcoa has a company-wide ethics and compliance program that emphasises the importance of Alcoa’s
core value to Act with Integrity. Alcoa's Code of Conduct and Ethics and other policies apply to Company directors, officers, and
employees. See section 6.10 for further details.

nvironment: Alcoa strives to reduce its environmental footprint by improving efficiencies, protecting resources, and reducing
€ MiSSIONS.

CSafety: Alcoa'’s safety strategy centers on fatality and injury prevention, risk management, and safety leadership.

Health: Alcoa has various programs and initiatives that are designed to prevent occupational disease through health hazards
controls and support personal health and well-being through Alcoa’s workplace initiatives and services.

quocial Performance: Alcoa has a social performance management system deployed at locations globally that is designed to
manage social risks, protect human rights, minimise negative impacts from operations, build stronger relationships with local
stakeholders and identify growth opportunities.

:.6 DIVIDEND FRAMEWORK AND HISTORY

===y October 2021, Alcoa announced the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend and Alcoa has declared and paid a quarterly cash
ividend of US$0.10 per Alcoa Share since then. Alcoa currently intends to continue its quarterly cash dividend. Dividends are
bject to authorisation by the Alcoa Board. The details of any future cash dividend declaration, including the payment and
ﬂnount of such dividend and the timing and establishment of the record and payment dates, will be determined by the Alcoa
Qoard. Alcoa’s decision of whether to pay future cash dividends and the amount of any such dividends will be based on matters
eemed relevant by the Alcoa Board, such as Alcoa’s financial position, results of operations, cash flows, capital requirements,
usiness conditions, the requirements of applicable law, and other factors the Alcoa Board may deem relevant.

| -
.7 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

) Alcoa Board profiles

s of the date of this Scheme Booklet, the Alcoa Board comprises the following directors:

ame and
sition Profile

LI-HIary Anne Ms. Citrino has served as Senior Advisor of Blackstone, a multinational private equity, alternative asset
Citrino management and financial services corporation, since 2015, and was Senior Managing Director of
Director Blackstone from 2004 until 2015. At Blackstone, she advised a broad range of clients in the consumer

products industry. Before joining Blackstone, she spent more than 20 years advising clients at Morgan
Stanley, where she served as a Managing Director.

Ms. Citrino serves as a Director of HP Inc., a multinational information technology public company that
develops personal computers, printers, related supplies, and 3D printing solutions. Ms. Citrino also serves
on the board of private companies, including Trilliant Food and Nutrition, LLC, a vertically integrated coffee
manufacturer, ZO Skin Health, a skincare company, and Spanx, Inc., an apparel retailer.

Pasquale (Pat)  Mr. Fiore was Managing Director of Réseau express métropolitain, a Montreal light rail system, from 2021
Fiore to 2023. From 2020 to 2021, Mr. Fiore was a consultant for GNL Québec, where he previously served as
President from 2018 to 2020, and oversaw the development of a liquified natural gas facility. Mr. Fiore held
several positions with Rio Tinto from 2006 until his retirement in 2015, including Major Project Sponsor for a
multi-billion dollar smelter modernisation project, Interim Chief Financial Officer of its aluminium business,
President and Chief Executive Officer of its Global Bauxite and Alumina business in Australia, and Chief
Operating Officer of the Atlantic Bauxite and Alumina business. Mr. Fiore also held several positions at
QIT-Fer et Titane, a Canadian mining company, prior to and following its acquisition by Rio Tinto.

Director

Mr. Fiore serves as Chair of STAS Inc., a private company specialising in the development, fabrication, and
commercialisation of process equipment for the aluminium industry. Mr. Fiore also serves as a Director on
the board of Fe3dback, a private music streaming company. He has been a professional engineer in the
Order of Professional Engineers of Québec since 1982.
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Thomas J.
Gorman

Director

Mr. Gorman served as Chief Executive Officer of Brambles Ltd, an Australian-listed global supply chain
logistics company, from 2009 until his retirement in 2017, having joined Brambles Ltd as President of
Europe, Middle East, and Africa operations in 2008. Mr. Gorman served as the President of Ford Australia
from 2004 to 2008 and oversaw the establishment of an Asia-Pacific engineering centre of excellence in
Australia. Mr. Gorman joined the Ford Motor Company in 1987 and held several senior executive positions
over his 21-year career at Ford, including positions in Europe, North America, and Australia.

Mr. Gorman serves as a Director of Orora Limited, a public packaging company based in Australia, Sims
Limited, a metal recycling company based in Australia, and Worley Limited, a public engineering consulting
company based in Australia. Mr. Gorman also serves as Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Maine
Chapter of The Nature Conservancy.

James A.
Hughes

Director

Mr. Hughes has served as Managing Partner of EnCap Investments L.P. (EnCap), a private equity firm
focusing on energy investments, since 2019. He formerly served as Chief Executive Officer and Managing
Director of Prisma Energy Capital, a private entity focused on investments in energy storage, from 2017 until
its acquisition by EnCap in 2019. He was the Chief Executive Officer and Director of First Solar, Inc., a global
provider of comprehensive photovoltaic solar solutions from 2012 to 2016. From 2007 to 2011, Mr. Hughes
was Chief Executive Officer and Director of AEI Services LLC, a private company that owned and operated
power distribution, generation, and transportation businesses in emerging markets, and prior to that, he
engaged in investing that focused on micro-cap investments in distressed manufacturing assets. Previously,
he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Prisma Energy International and in various executive
positions with Enron Corporation.

Mr. Hughes serves as a Director of TPl Composites, Inc., a public company that manufactures wind blades
for the wind energy market and PNM Resources, Inc., a public electric utility holding company based in

New Mexico. Mr. Hughes is a former Chairman and former Director of the Los Angeles Branch of the Federal
Reserve Bank of San Francisco. He is currently a member of the Energy Advisory Council of the Federal
Reserve Bank of Dallas.

Roberto O.
Marques

Director

Mr. Marques has served as a Senior Advisor at The Carlyle Group, a global diversified private investment
firm, since 2023. Mr. Marques was a director of Natura & Co Holding SA (Natura & Co) from 2016 through
2022, during which time he served as the Executive Chair of the board of directors from 2017 to 2022.

Mr. Marques was Group Chief Executive Officer of Natura & Co from 2020 to 2022. From 2015 to 2017,

Mr. Marques was Executive Vice President and President, North America at Mondelez International Inc. Prior
to that, Mr. Marques held various global and regional senior executive positions at Johnson & Johnson in
Latin American, North America, and Europe.

Mr. Marques serves as the Chairman of Beautycounter and serves as a Director of Compana Pet Brands,
both Carlyle privately held companies. Additionally, he serves as a board member of We Mean Business
Coalition, a non-profit organisation focused on climate change actions, and the United States Tennis
Association Foundation.

William F.
Oplinger
President, CEO
and Director

Mr. Oplinger has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Alcoa since September 2023. Mr. Oplinge
served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer of Alcoa from February 2023 until September
2023. From 2016 to February 2023, Mr. Oplinger was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Alcoa. Prior to this, Mr. Oplinger served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alcoa Inc.,

r

Alcoa’s former parent company, 2013 to 2016. Mr. Oplinger joined Alcoa Inc. in 2000 and held key positions in

financial analysis and planning and as Director of Investor Relations. Mr. Oplinger also held principal positions
in Alcoa Inc.'s Global Primary Products division, including as Controller, Operational Excellence Director, Chief
Financial Officer, and Chief Operating Officer.

Mr. Oplinger serves on the advisory board of Ridgeline Royalties, a supplier of royalty and stream financing
for miners of certain metals.

Carol L.
Roberts

Director

Ms. Roberts was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of International Paper Company (IP), a
global packaging and paper company, from 2011 until her retirement in 2017. Ms. Roberts has over 35 years
of industrial manufacturing experience, having worked in multiple facilities and across various functions at IP.
Before being named Chief Financial Officer in 2011, Ms. Roberts led IP's largest business, the Industrial
Packaging Group. Ms. Roberts also served as IP’s Vice President of People Development, during which she
developed human resources programs that had a major impact on IP's talent management and employee
engagement. Ms. Roberts served in a variety of operational and technical roles since beginning her career
with [P in 1981 as an associate engineer.

Ms. Roberts serves as a Director of V.F. Corporation, a global apparel and footwear public company. Ms. Roberts
serves on the Board of Trustees for the University of Memphis and on the board of Divergent 3D, a private
company, which utilises cutting edge technology, including 3D printing, for vehicle manufacturing.
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Name and
Position Profile
Jackson Ms. Roberts has served as Senior Advisor of ESG matters to each of the investment firms Hunter Point Capital
(Jackie) P. and Capitol Meridian Partners since 2021. Ms. Roberts was the Chief Sustainability Officer of AppHarvest Inc.,
Roberts an applied technology company developing and operating indoor farms, from 2020 to 2022. Ms. Roberts held
Director various executive roles at The Carlyle Group from 2014 to 2020, including as Managing Director and Chief
Sustainability Officer. Ms. Roberts previously held various positions over seventeen years at the Environmental
Defense Fund. Ms. Roberts has also served as a senior faculty fellow at Harvard Business School. She began
her career as an engineer for the US Environmental Protection Agency.
Ms. Roberts serves on the boards of PurposeBuilt Brands, LLC and The Conservation Innovation Fund.
Ms. Roberts also serves on the Steering Committee of the Smart Surfaces Coalition and on the Sustainability
Advisory Council at American University's Kogod School of Business.
Steven W. Mr. Williams has served as Chairman of the Board since 2021. Mr. Williams was the Chief Executive Officer
illiams and director of Suncor Energy, a Canadian integrated energy company, from 2012 until his retirement in
m—Rirector, 2019, and he served as President of Suncor Energy from 2011 to 2018. His career with Suncor Energy began

on-Executive
hairman of
e Board of

Directors

in 2002 when he was appointed Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and Chief Financial
Officer. He also served at Suncor Energy as Executive Vice President, Oil Sands, from 2003 to 2007 and as
Chief Operating Officer, from 2007 to 2011. Mr. Williams has more than 40 years of international energy
industry experience, including 18 years at Esso/Exxon.

Mr. Williams currently serves as Chairman of Enbridge Inc., a multinational pipeline and energy public
company and Smiths Group plc, a multinational, diversified engineering public company. Mr. Williams is a
fellow of the Institution of Chemical Engineers, a member of the Institute of Directors, and is a member of
the National Associate of Corporate Directors. He is one of 12 founding Chief Executive Officer’s of Canada’s
Qil Sands Innovation Alliance, and a former member of both the advisory board of Canada’s Ecofiscal
Commission and the Board of the Business Council of Canada.

Qnal use

—0or pers

rnesto
edillo

irector

Dr. Zedillo has been a professor at Yale University since 2002, where he is the Frederick Iseman '74 Director
of the Yale Center for the Study of Globalisation, Professor in the Field of International Economics and
Politics, Professor of International and Area Studies, Professor Adjunct of Forestry and Environmental Studies,
and Senior Fellow at the Jackson School of Global Affairs. He was a Distinguished Visiting Fellow at the
London School of Economics in 2001. Dr. Zedillo was President of Mexico from 1994 to 2000. He served

in the Federal Government of Mexico as Secretary of Education (1992-1993), Secretary of Economic
Programming and the Budget and board member of various state-owned enterprises, including PEMEX,
Mexico's national oil company (1988-1992), and Undersecretary of the Budget (1987-1988). Prior to that
time, Dr. Zedillo served as deputy manager of economic research and deputy director of the central bank
of Mexico and was the founding General Director of the Trust Fund for the Coverage of Exchange Risks.

He also taught economics at the National Polytechnic Institute and El Colegio de Mexico.

Dr. Zedillo belongs to the international advisory boards of Iberdrola, a multinational renewable energy
private company based in Spain, and NTT Data (previously Everis), an information technology services and
consulting private company also based in Spain.

(b) Alcoa Executive Officer profiles

As of the date of this Scheme Booklet, the Alcoa Executive Officers are the following individuals:

Name and

Position Profile

William F. Please see summary above in section 6.7(a).
Oplinger

President and
CEO

Molly S.
Beerman
Executive Vice

President and
CFO

Ms. Beerman has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Alcoa since 1 February
2023. Prior to this, Ms. Beerman was Senior Vice President and Controller of Alcoa from November 2019
through January 2023 and Vice President and Controller from December 2016 through October 2019.

Ms. Beerman was Director, Global Shared Services Strategy and Solutions from November to December
2016.1n 2016, Ms. Beerman held a consulting role with the Finance Department of Alcoa Inc. From 2012

to 2015, Ms. Beerman served as Vice President, Finance and Administration for a non-profit organisation
focused on community issues. Prior to that, Ms. Beerman was employed by Alcoa Inc. from 2001 to 2012,
having held several roles in the finance function and eventually becoming the director of global procurement
center of excellence from 2008 to 2012. Ms. Beerman is a certified public accountant.

Alumina Limited
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Name and

Position Profile

Renato Mr. Bacchi is Executive Vice President and Chief Commercial Officer. Mr. Bacchi has served as Executive Vice
Bacchi President and Chief Commercial Officer of Alcoa since 1 August 2023. He leads Alcoa’s sales and trading,

Executive Vice
President and
Chief
Commercial
Officer

marketing, supply chain, commercial operations, procurement, and transformation and oversees Alcoa’s
global energy assets and innovation and technology programs. Mr. Bacchi was Executive Vice President and
Chief Strategy and Innovation Officer of Alcoa from February 2023 to August 2023. Previously, he was
Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer from February 2022 through January 2023, Senior Vice
President and Treasurer from November 2019 through January 2022, and Vice President and Treasurer from
November 2016 through October 2019. Prior to the separation of Alcoa from Alcoa Inc. in 2016, Mr. Bacchi
served as the Assistant Treasurer of Alcoa Inc. from October 2014 through October 2016 and as the Director,
Corporate Treasury from 2012 to 2014. Prior to this time, Mr. Bacchi held various roles of increasing
responsibility in areas including finance, strategy, procurement, energy and sales. Mr. Bacchi joined Alcoa
Inc. in Brazil in 1997.

Nicol
Gagstetter

Executive Vice
President and
Chief External
Affairs Officer

Ms. Gagstetter is Executive Vice President and Chief External Affairs Officer. Ms. Gagstetter has served as
Executive Vice President and Chief External Affairs Officer of Alcoa since 1 October 2023. Ms. Gagstetter

is responsible for global external affairs, communications, and sustainability, and she oversees the Alcoa
Foundation. Ms. Gagstetter was the Global Head of Environment and Social, Copper Industrial Assets at
Glencore International AG, a commodity trading and mining company, from August 2021 through
September 2023. Previously, she held a variety of progressive leadership roles and positions across external
affairs, sustainability, and marketing in Rio Tinto's Commercial, Minerals, and Copper groups from 2008

to 2021.

Andrew
Hastings

Executive Vice
President and

Mr. Hastings is Executive Vice President and General Counsel. Mr. Hastings has served as Executive Vice

President and General Counsel of Alcoa since 1 September 2023. Mr. Hastings has overall responsibility for
Alcoa’s global legal, compliance, governance, and security matters. Prior to joining Alcoa, Mr. Hastings was
Senior Vice President and General Counsel at Lundin Mining Corporation, a mine owner and operator, from

General February 2019 through August 2023. Previously, Mr. Hastings held progressive legal and commercial roles

Counsel at Barrick Gold Corporation, a mining company, most recently as Vice President, Joint Venture Governance
from May 2018 to February 2019.

Tammi A. Ms. Jones is Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer for Alcoa, focusing on all aspects

Jones of human resource management, including talent and recruitment, compensation and benefits, training

Executive Vice
President and

and development and labour relations. Ms. Jones has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Human
Resources Officer of Alcoa since 1 April 2020. Ms. Jones oversees all aspects of human resources

Chief Human management, including talent and recruitment, compensation and benefits, diversity, inclusion, and equity,

Resources training and development, and labour relations. Ms. Jones served as Vice President, Compensation and

Officer Benefits of Alcoa from January 2019 through March 2020 and was the Director, Organisational Effectiveness
from April 2017 to December 2018. From April 2015 through March 2017, Ms. Jones served as Human
Resources Director, Aluminium (at Alcoa Inc. until the separation of Alcoa from Alcoa Inc. in 2016), and she
served as Human Resources Director for Alcoa Inc. Wheels and Transportation Products from April 2013 to
April 2015. Ms. Jones joined Alcoa Inc. in 2006 and held a variety of human resource positions at Alcoa Inc.,
including Human Resources Director, Europe Building & Construction and Human Resources Director, UK
and Ireland in Alcoa Inc.'s Building and Construction Systems division.

Matthew T. Mr. Reed is Executive Vice President and Chief Operations Officer. Mr. Reed has served as Executive Vice

Reed President and Chief Operations Officer of Alcoa since 1 January 2024. Mr. Reed is responsible for the daily

Executive Vice
President and
Chief
Operations
Officer

operations of Alcoa’s global bauxite, alumina, and aluminium assets. Mr. Reed was previously Vice President
Operations, Australia and President, Alcoa of Australia from June 2023, when he joined Alcoa, through
December 2023. Prior to joining Alcoa, Mr. Reed was the Operations Executive (Chief Operations Officer) of
OZ Minerals Limited, a mining company based in South Australia, from September 2021 through May 2023.
He was General Manager, Projects at OZ Minerals Limited from January 2021 through August 2021.
Previously, Mr. Reed was the Executive Managing Director (COO) at SIMEC Mining, a mining company based
in South Australia, from September 2017 through December 2020.




68  Scheme Booklet

6.8 INTERESTS OF THE ALCOA DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
(a) Shareholding interests in Alumina

Alumina Limited

As at the Last Practicable Date, none of the Alcoa Directors or Alcoa Executive Officers had any Relevant Interest or voting power

in any Alumina Shares.

(b) Shareholding interests in Alcoa

The below table sets out the ownership of Alcoa Shares by each Alcoa Directors and the Alcoa Executive Officers as of the Last

Practicable Date:

Total Beneficial

Percentage of Class

Additional Underlying

Name Ownership* Beneficially Owned Stock Units*’ Total
Alcoa Directors
%ven W. Williams 87,965 * 4,017 91,982
Qlary Anne Citrino 44,426 * 4,017 48,443
Qasquale (Pat) Fiore 28,522 * 4,017 32,539
G?;nomas J. Gorman 11,088 * 4,017 15,105
%mes A.Hughes 41,391 * 4,017 45,408
—
_Roberto Marques 3,561 * 4,017 7,578
caarol L. Roberts 41,391 * 17,588 58,979
ackson (Jackie) P. Roberts 7,433 * 4,017 11,450
Uarnesto Zedillo 45,064 * 45,751 90,815
Blcoa Executive Officers
(-Dlilliam F. Oplinger*® 85,294 * 145,127 230,421
L _Molly S. Beerman 42,827 * 44,340 87,167
Qenato Bacchi 44,834 * 36,350 81,184
LIT\licoI Gagstetter 0 * 18,860 18,860
Tammi A. Jones 7,550 * 42,940 50,490
Matt Reed 0 * 28,230 28,230
Andrew Hastings 0 * 21,680 21,680
Total (16 individuals) 491,346 * 428,985 920,331

*Indicates that the percentage of beneficial ownership does not exceed 1%, based on 179,561,504 Alcoa Shares outstanding as of 31 May 2024.

46. This column shows beneficial ownership of Alcoa Shares as calculated under SEC Rules. This column includes vested share units held by non-employee Alcoa
Directors that are payable upon separation from service from the Alcoa Board. This column includes, for Alcoa Executive Officers, share equivalent units held in
Alcoa's retirement savings plan that confer voting rights through the plan trustee with respect to Alcoa Shares. This column also includes Alcoa Shares that may
be acquired under employee Incentive Options that are exercisable as of 31 May 2024 or will become exercisable within 60 days thereafter. Non-employee Alcoa
Directors do not have Incentive Options. This column does not include RSUs granted to the Alcoa Executive Officers that will not or could not be earned and/or
paid within 60 days of 31 May 2024. 47. For Alcoa Executive Officers and non-employee Alcoa Directors, respectively, this column includes deferred share units
held under the Deferred Compensation Plan for executives and deferred share units (acquired due to certain Alcoa Directors’ service on the board of Alcoa’s
former parent company). Deferred share units are payable in cash and do not have voting rights. For non-employee Alcoa Directors, this column includes
unvested RSUs, which have time-based vesting and are payable following an Alcoa Director’s separation from service from the Alcoa Board, pursuant to the terms
of Alcoa’s policies. For Alcoa Executive Officers, this column includes unvested time-based RSUs that will not or could not be earned and/or paid within 60 days
of 30 April 2024. For Alcoa Executive Officers, this column does not include performance-based RSUs, which, in addition to service-based vesting criteria, have
performance-based criteria that render the total amount of shares ultimately issuable indeterminable until such awards are deemed earned and payable by the
Compensation and Benefits Committee after the end of the applicable performance period. 48. Mr. Oplinger also is an Alcoa Director.
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6.9 ALCOA EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

All employees and non-employee Alcoa Directors and of

its Subsidiaries (collectively, Alcoa Employees), have the
opportunity to be selected to participate in the Alcoa Incentive
Plan to obtain rights to shares of Alcoa Shares or other
property. Under the Alcoa Incentive Plan, such Alcoa
Employees may be granted, among other awards, a stock
option (Incentive Option) that gives them the right to purchase
a specified number of Alcoa Shares, provided that certain
vesting and other requirements are satisfied, or Restricted
Stock Units (RSUs) that will enable them to acquire Alcoa
Shares. Up to 30 million Alcoa Shares may be issued under
the Alcoa Incentive Plan.

(a) Incentive Options

An Incentive Option granted under the Alcoa Incentive Plan
gives the Alcoa Incentive Plan Participant the right, but not
the obligation, to purchase Alcoa Shares at a fixed price. The
Incentive Options may be exercised once the vesting period
is satisfied and any other conditions are met. The number of
Alcoa Shares subject to an Incentive Option will be set out
in a stock option agreement that is provided to employees
who receives an offer of an Incentive Option under the
Alcoa Incentive Plan.

During the Incentive Option vesting period, the Alcoa Incentive
Plan Participant must generally remain in the continuous
employ or service of Alcoa or one of its Subsidiaries, although
an exception is made in the event that the Alcoa Incentive Plan
Participant’s employment or service is terminated due to death
and other specified reasons set forth in the option agreement.
Once an Incentive Option is vested, it may be exercised by

the Alcoa Incentive Plan Participant, provided that the Alcoa
Incentive Plan Participant remains in the employ or service

of Alcoa or one of its Subsidiaries as provided in the option
agreement.

Alcoa has notissued any new Incentive Options since 2020.

(b) RSUs

An RSU granted under the Alcoa Incentive Plan represents
Alcoa'’s unsecured promise to issue one Alcoa Share to the
Alcoa Incentive Plan Participant upon vesting of the RSU. The
number of Alcoa Shares subject to an RSU will be set out in
an RSU agreement that is provided to employees who receive
an offer of an RSU under the Alcoa Incentive Plan. There is no
minimum number of shares that must be granted pursuant

to an RSU. During the RSU vesting period, the Alcoa Incentive
Plan Participant must remain in the continuous employ or
service of Alcoa or one of its Subsidiaries, although certain
exceptions are made in the event the Alcoa Incentive Plan
Participant’s death or for other specified reasons set forth

in the RSU agreement. Alcoa Incentive Plan Participants will
generally not be required to pay any consideration to receive
the shares issuable once an RSU is vested.
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For Performance based RSUs (PRSU), performance hurdles are
typically based on achievement against cumulative three-year
performance targets related to the following metrics:

- Relative TSR (35%),
« Average ROE (35%), and
- Carbon Intensity (30%).

If vesting of RSUs is subject to a performance condition, the
performance period is three years which may consist of a
single performance period or multiple interim periods
determined by the Compensation and Benefits Committee.

If vesting of RSUs is not subject to performance conditions, as
of 2024, RSUs will vest rateably in one-third increments on the
first, second and third anniversary dates of the relevant grant
date. The maximum award level is 200% of the target award.

The following table sets out the typical performance periods
for the PRSUs authorised for issuance under the Alcoa
Incentive Plan as at 21 February 2024.

Grant Date Grant Price Performance Period
26 January 2022 USD$60.75 1 January 2022 -
31 December 2024
22 February 2023 USD$48.98 1 January 2023 -
31 December 2025
21 February 2024 UsD$27.96 1 January 2024 -

31 December 2026

(c) Nature of the Offer

The Incentive Options and RSUs generally may not be
transferred and may be exercised by or vest in the Alcoa
Incentive Plan Participant only. The Alcoa Incentive Plan
Participant may freely transfer the Alcoa Shares acquired
upon exercise of the Incentive Option or vesting of the RSUs;
however there may be certain restrictions on any such Alcoa
Shares as deemed advisable by the Compensation and
Benefits Committee, including minimum holding period
requirements, restrictions under applicable securities laws,
or under the requirements of any stock exchange or market
upon which such shares are then listed and/or traded.

(d) Option and RSU Price

The price of each Alcoa Share subject to an Incentive Option
(the Option Price) will be fixed by the Compensation and
Benefits Committee at the time the Incentive Option is
granted. The Option Price will be not less than 100% of the
closing price of Alcoa Shares as reported on the NYSE on the
date that the Incentive Options are granted. The Option Price
may be adjusted in the event of a reorganisation or change in
capitalisation of Alcoa.
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The following table sets out the Alcoa Shares authorised for issuance under the Alcoa Incentive Plan as at 31 December 2023:

A

B

c

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options,

Plan Category warrants and rights*

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance under
equity compensation plans (excluding

warrants and rights®®

securities reflected in column A)®

Equity compensation plans 3,936,806

US$26.73

10,455,239

6.10 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Alcoa Board has established the following standing
committees: audit committee (Audit Committee), a
compensation and benefits committee (Compensation
Benefits Committee), a governance and nominating
==Tommittee (Governance and Nominating Committee), and
a safety, sustainability and public issues committee (Safety,
qustainability and Public Issues Committee).

n accordance with NYSE Listing Rules, each of the Audlit,
Gjompensation and Benefits, and Governance and Nominating
ommittees are composed entirely of independent directors.
udlt Committee members must meet additional
dependence standards under the US federal securities laws,
jEC Rules and NYSE Listing Rules. The Alcoa Board may, from
time to time, establish or maintain additional or alternative
mmittees that it determines to be necessary or appropriate.
opies of Alcoa’s Corporate Governance Guidelines and
oard committee charters can be found on Alcoa’s website
https://investors.alcoa.com/governance/governance-
00cuments/default.aspx.

Ua:) Audit Committee

e Audit Committee is, among other things, responsible for
e following:

vierseeing the integrity of Alcoa’s financial statements and
internal controls;

e compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

the consideration and review of the independent auditors’
I I qualifications and independence;

- overseeing Alcoa’s compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

Alcoa’s policies related to financial risk, including risk
assessment, major risk exposures, and the steps
management has taken to monitor and control these
exposures;

Alcoa’s risk management and strategy relating to
cybersecurity, including cybersecurity developments
and threats and the process for assessing, managing
and mitigating material cybersecurity risks and threats;

the performance of Alcoa’s internal audit function and
independent auditors; and

preparing the audit committee report required by the rules
of the SEC to be included in Alcoa’s proxy statement.

(b) Compensation and Benefits Committee

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is, among other
things, responsible for the following:

reviewing and approving the compensation of Alcoa’s
officers, including the Chief Executive Officer;

.

overseeing the administration of Alcoa’s compensation and
benefits plans;

.

reviewing Alcoa’s strategies related to human capital
management;

overseeing the management succession planning for Alcoa’s
officers (except the Chief Executive Officer); and

preparing the compensation committee report required
by the rules of the SEC to be included in Alcoa’s proxy
statement.

(c) Governance and Nominating Committee

The Governance and Nominating Committee is, among other
things, responsible for the following:

identifying individuals qualified to become Alcoa Board
members and recommending such individuals to the Alcoa
Board for nomination for election to the Alcoa Board;

making recommendations to the Alcoa Board regarding
director appointments to committees of the Alcoa Board;

developing, recommending, and annually reviewing the
Corporate Governance Guidelines and overseeing corporate
governance matters;

reviewing and recommending director compensation to the
Alcoa Board; and

coordinating an annual review of the Alcoa Board's
performance.

(d) Safety, Sustainability and Public Issues
Committee

The Safety, Sustainability and Public Issues Committee is,
among other things, responsible for the following:

providing guidance on matters relating to Alcoa'’s corporate
and social responsibility, including but not limited to safety
and health, good corporate citizenship, environmental
sustainability, and social issues;

considering current and emerging safety and health,
environmental and sustainability, social, and political trends
and major global legislative and regulatory developments or
other government relations, trade, or public policy issues;

49. Represents shares underlying awards that have been granted under the terms of the Alcoa Incentive Plan. Table amounts are comprised of: 148,608 shares
issuable pursuant to Incentive Options; 2,217,812 RSUs (employee time-based RSUs and deferred fee RSUs); and 1,570,386 PRSUs (assuming maximum
achievement). 50. Reflects the weighted-average exercise price of Incentive Options, and does not take into account RSUs or PRSUs, as such awards have no
exercise price. 51. This number only reflects Alcoa Shares available for issuance under the Alcoa Incentive Plan. Under the terms of the Alcoa Incentive Plan, any
award, other than an option or stock appreciation right (SAR), will count as 1.63 shares against the remaining pool from 10 May 2017 and thereafter. Incentive

Options and SARs will be counted as one share for each Incentive Option or SAR.
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« advising the Alcoa Board and management on significant
public policy issues that are pertinent to Alcoa and its
stakeholders; and

- overseeing Alcoa’s policies and practices relating to its
political activities and charitable activities.

6.11 HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(a) Overview

The financial information of the Alcoa set out in this section
6.11 (Alcoa Financial Information) comprises:

+ Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Operations for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023;

- Alcoa Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024,
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022;

- Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023; and

- Alcoa Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021 and the quarters ended 31 March 2024
and 31 March 2023.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd (as Investigating
Accountant), has reviewed the:

+ Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Operations for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024;

- Alcoa Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024;

- Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024;
and

+ Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity for the
years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2021, and the quarter ended 31 March 2024

in accordance with the Australian Standard on Assurance
Engagements ASAE 3450 Assurance Engagements involving
Corporate Fundraisings and/or Prospective Financial
Information, as stated in its Independent Limited Assurance
Report, included in Annexure B. Alumina Shareholders should
note the scope and limitations of the Independent Limited
Assurance Report.

Alcoa’s consolidated financial statements, including all notes
to the consolidated financial statements and a description
of Alcoa'’s significant accounting policies can be found in the
following as filed with the SEC:

+ Alcoa’s Annual Report for the financial year ended
31 December 2023 (filed with the SEC on 21 February
2024); and

+ Alcoa’s Quarterly Report for the quarters ended 31 March
2024 filed with the SEC on 2 May 2024.
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The full reports for the years ended 31 December 2023,

31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 and the quarters
ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are available on
Alcoa’s website at https://investors.alcoa.com/home/default.
aspx or the SEC website at www.sec.gov.

This section 6.11 should be read in conjunction with the risks
to which Alcoa is subject and the risks associated with the
Scheme, as set out in section 8.

(b) Basis of preparation

The Alcoa Financial Information is intended to present Alumina
Shareholders with information to assist them in understanding
the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of
Alcoa. Alcoa management is responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the Alcoa Financial Information.

The Alcoa Financial Information has been prepared on a going
concern basis, which assumes continuity of normal business
activities and the realisation of assets and the settlement of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

The Alcoa Financial Information has been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
of U.S. GAAP. The accounting policies used in preparation of
the Alcoa Financial Information are consistent with those set
out in Alcoa’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 December
2023.

The Alcoa Financial Information has been derived from
Alcoa’s consolidated financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2023, 31 December 2022, and 31 December
2021 and from Alcoa’s consolidated financial statements for
the quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. The
Alcoa Financial Information is presented in USD and, unless
otherwise noted, is rounded to the nearest USD million.

Alcoa'’s consolidated financial statements for the years ended
31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021, which were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP,
were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm for Alcoa in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Audit Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB). PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
issued unqualified audit opinions on these consolidated
financial statements.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements for the
quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 were
prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and the applicable
rules and regulations of the SEC for interim financial
information. Accordingly, they do not contain all of the
information and footnotes required by U.S. GAAP for full
financial statements. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP performed
the review of Alcoa'’s interim consolidated financial statements
filed with the SEC in accordance with the standards of the
PCAOB.

The Alcoa Financial Information is presented in an abbreviated
form insofar as it does not include all the presentation,
disclosures, statements, or comparative information that is
required by U.S. GAAP applicable for full financial statements
or financial statements prepared in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC.
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(c) Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Operations

The Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Operations for the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022, and 31 December
2021 and the quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following table:

Table 6.11.1

Alumina Limited

ALCOA STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

Quarter Quarter
Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March

US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023

Sales 10,551 12,451 12,152 2,599 2,670

Cost of goods sold (exclusive of expenses 9,813 10,212 9,153 2,404 2,404
>e]ow)

Eelling, general administrative, and other 226 204 227 60 54
Oxpenses
Iiesearch and development expenses 39 32 31 11 10
ovision for depreciation, depletion, and 632 617 664 161 153
mortization
—

Restructuring and other charges, net 184 696 1,128 202 149
cmterest expense 107 106 195 27 26
gther expenses (income), net 134 (118) (445) 59 54
(ﬁ)tal costs and expenses 11,135 11,749 10,953 2,924 2,850
ESOSS) income before income taxes (584) 702 1,199 (325) (180)
C'g'ovision for (benefit from) income taxes 189 664 629 (18) 52
hNet (loss) income (773) 38 570 (307) (232)
Oess: Net (loss) income attributable to (122) 161 141 (55) (m

I I noncontrolling interest’
Net (loss) income attributable to Alcoa (651) (123) 429 (252) (231)

Corporation

(1) Noncontrolling interest relates to Alumina’s minority 40% interest in Alcoa controlled entities. Refer to Table 7.7.2 where this has been adjusted on a Combined

Group Pro Forma basis.

Overview of results
2023

Net loss attributable to Alcoa for the year ended 31 December
2023 was $651 million, an increase of $528 million as compared
to 2022.

Sales decreased $1,900 million in 2023 compared to 2022
primarily as a result of lower average realised prices of
aluminum and alumina, lower shipments across both
segments, lower trading activities and a decrease in value
add product sales, partially offset by higher volumes and
price from bauxite offtake and supply agreements.

Cost of goods sold decreased by $399 million in 2023, as
compared to 2022. Cost of goods sold as a percent of Sales
decreased 11 percentage points as compared to 2022 due to
lower average realised prices of aluminum and alumina; higher
production costs primarily related to operating certain of the

Australian refineries with lower grade bauxite, the partial
curtailment of the San Ciprian refinery, and increased
maintenance; and a decrease in value add sales. These were
partially offset by lower energy costs and favourable currency
impacts.

In 2023, Restructuring and other charges, which netted to
$184 million, decreased by $512 million compared to 2022.
The charges in 2023 primarily related to $101 million for the
permanent closure of the previously curtailed Intalco
aluminum smelter, and $53 million for the updated viability
agreement for the San Ciprian aluminum smelter.

Other expenses were $134 million in 2023, a decrease of
$252 million compared to Other income recognised in 2022.
This was driven by mark-to-market results on derivative
instruments primarily due to the absence of prior year gains
driven by elevated power prices in 2022, a decrease in equity
earnings from the Ma'aden aluminum joint venture and higher



For personal use only

equity losses from the Ma'aden bauxite and alumina joint
venture. These were partially offset by lower pension expense
primarily due to a decrease in recognised net actuarial losses
subsequent to pension annuity transactions and favourable
currency revaluation impacts.

The provision for income taxes of $189 million in 2023
decreased by $475 million from 2022 primarily due to lower
income in the jurisdictions where taxes were paid. Additionally,
tax expense in 2023 included a charge of $152 million to
record a full valuation allowance against deferred tax assets of
Alcoa World Alumina Brasil Ltda. (AWAB), partially offset by the
full reversal of the valuation allowance of $58 million recorded
against the deferred tax assets of the Alcoa’s subsidiaries in
Iceland. Tax expense in 2022 included charges of $217 million
to record a full valuation allowance against the deferred tax
assets of Alcoa Aluminio (Aluminio) and $30 million primarily
to write off the deferred tax assets of Alcoa Norway ANS due to
a legal entity restructuring, partially offset by a tax benefit of
$33 million due to changes in the utilization of the tax holiday
rate in AWAB.

Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interest is
entirely attributable to Alumina and its 40% interest in AWAC.
Refer to Section 5.3(c) where this is discussed.

2022

Net loss attributable to Alcoa for the year ended 31 December
2022 was $123 million, a decrease of $552 million as compared
to 2021.

Sales increased $299 million in 2022 compared to 2021
primarily as a result of higher average realised prices of
aluminum and alumina, an increase in value add product sales,
higher shipments from the Alumar smelter and Portland
smelter due to restarts and favourable changes to customer
mix in the Alumina segment. These increases were partially
offset by lower trading activities, lower shipments, the absence
of sales from the divested Warrick Rolling Mill, decreased sales
from the San Cipridn smelter due to the smelter curtailment
and decreased sales from lower pricing at the Brazil hydro-
electric facilities as 2021 drought conditions elevated prices

in the prior period.

Cost of goods sold increased $1,059 million in 2022 compared
to 2021. Cost of goods sold as a percentage of sales increased
7 percentage points in 2022 compared to 2021 primarily as a
result of higher raw material costs due to inflation pressures
and multiple supply chain disruptions, higher energy costs,
primarily in Europe and higher costs associated with
maintenance, transportation, direct material usage and labour.
These were partially offset by higher average realised prices

of aluminum and alumina and an increase in value add product
sales.

Restructuring and other charges, net decreased by $432 million
compared to 2021. The charges in 2022 primarily related to
$632 million for U.S. pension group annuity contracts and lump
sum settlements, $79 million for the agreement reached with
the workers of the divested Avilés and La Corufia facilities

and $58 million for an asset impairment related to the sale

of Alcoa’s interest in the MRN mine and $29 million for the
permanent closure of the previously curtailed magnesium
smelter in Addy (Washington). These were partially offset by

an $83 million reversal of Brazil state VAT valuation allowance
associated with the restart of the Alumar smelter.

Other income of $118 million in 2022 decreased $327 million
from 2021 primarily as a result of the absence of gains on the
sale of the former Rockdale site, the former Eastalco site, and
the Warrick Rolling Mill and a decrease in equity earnings from

73

the Ma'aden bauxite and alumina joint venture and aluminum
joint venture. These were partially offset by favourable
mark-to-market results on derivative instruments due to higher
power prices in 2022.

The Provision for income taxes in 2022 was $664 million,

an increase of $35 million compared to 2021. The increase in
tax expense was primarily attributable to a charge to record

a full valuation allowance of $217 million against the deferred
tax assets of Alcoa Aluminio (Aluminio), and a charge of

$30 million primarily to write off the deferred tax assets of
Alcoa Norway ANS due to a legal entity restructuring in 2022.
This increase was partially offset by a tax benefit of $33 million
recognised due to changes in the utilization of the tax holiday
rate in AWAB, lower income in some of the jurisdictions where
Alcoa records taxes, and a valuation allowance of $103 million
recorded in 2021 against the net deferred tax assets of
Aldmina Espafiola, S.A (Espafola).

Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interest is
entirely attributable to Alumina and its 40% interest in AWAC.
See section 5.3(c).

2021

Net income attributable to Alcoa for the year ended
31 December 2021 was $429 million, an increase of $599
million as compared to 2020.

Sales increased $2,866 million in 2021 as compared to 2020
primarily as a result of higher average realised prices for
aluminum and alumina, the restart of the Bécancour smelter,
higher value add product sales and favourable pricing at the
Brazil hydro-electric facilities. This was partially offset by the
absence of sales from the divested Warrick Rolling Mill and
the curtailment of the Intalco (Washington) smelter.

Cost of goods sold increased $1,184 million in 2021 compared
to 2020. Cost of goods sold as percentage of sales decreased
10.5 percentage points compared to 2020 primarily as a result
of higher average realized prices for aluminum and alumina,
higher value add product sales and favourable pricing at the
Brazil hydro-electric facilities. This was partially offset by higher
market energy prices, primarily due to a new gas contract
commencing June 2020 for the Australia alumina refineries
and higher market energy prices in Europe and Brazil and
higher market prices for raw materials primarily due to inflation
and isolated supply chain issues.

Restructuring and other charges, net increased by $1,024 million
in 2021 compared to 2020. The charge in 2021 primarily
related to $858 million for U.S. pension group annuity contracts
and lump sum settlements, $80 million for the permanent
closure of the previously curtailed Wenatchee (Washington)
smelter, $63 million for Suriname pension group annuity
contract, $62 million for the temporary curtailment of the San
Ciprian (Spain) smelter, $47 million for the settlement of certain
pension benefits and $27 million for the permanent close of
the anode portion of the Lake Charles (Louisiana) facility.

Other income of $445 million increased $453 million primarily
as a result of the gain on the sale of non-core assets including
the former Rockdale site, the former Eastalco site, and the
Warrick Rolling Mill, higher equity earnings primarily from the
Ma'aden aluminum joint venture and lower non-service costs
related to pension and OPEB. These were partially offset by the
absence of a gain related to the divestiture of the Gum Springs
waste treatment facility recognised in 2020.

The Provision for income taxes in 2021 was $629 million, an
increase of $442 million compared to 2020. The increase in
taxes was primarily attributable to the overall higher income
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before taxes as discussed above. Additionally, a valuation allowance of $103 million was recorded in 2021 against the net
deferred tax assets of Alimina Espafiola, S.A (Espafola). In 2020, Alcoa generated losses in jurisdictions where it maintains a full
tax valuation reserve resulting in no tax benefit. Accordingly, taxes in the jurisdictions where Alcoa records and pays tax expense
represent a higher effective rate on income before taxes.

Net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interest is entirely attributable to Alumina and its 40% interest in AWAC. Refer to
Section 5.3(c) where this is discussed.

Quarter ended March 2024

Net loss attributable to Alcoa for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 was $252 million, a decrease of $21 million as compared to
the quarter ended 31 March 2023.

Sales decreased $71 million primarily as a result of lower average realised price of aluminum, lower volumes and price from
bauxite offtake and supply agreements and a decrease in value add product sales partially offset by higher shipments of alumina
and aluminum.

Cost of goods sold remained the same at $2,404 million. Cost of goods sold as percent of sales increased 2 percentage points
x’n;pared to the first quarter of 2023 primarily as a result of a lower average realized price of aluminum, higher production costs,
rimarily in the Alumina segment partially offset by favourable raw material costs and lower energy costs in both Aluminum and

=i
umina.

d:structuring and other charges, net of $202 million increased by $53 million compared to the quarter ended 31 March, 2023.
e charge in the first quarter of 2023 primarily related to $197 million for the curtailment of the Kwinana alumina refinery.

Gyet (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interest is entirely attributable to Alumina and its 40% interest in AWAC. Refer to
ection 5.3(c) where this is discussed.

) Alcoa Consolidated Balance Sheet
Alcoa Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 and 31 December 2023 and 2022 is set out in the following table.

C_G:lble 6.11.2

ELCOA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

O As at As at As at
(,DS$ millions 31 March 2024 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
LS

ssets

urrent assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,358 944 1,363
-
Oeceivables from customers 869 656 778
LIcher receivables 132 152 131
Inventories 2,048 2,158 2,427
Fair value of derivative instruments 22 29 134
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 452 466 417
Total current assets 4,881 4,405 5,250
Properties, plants, and equipment, net 6,577 6,785 6,493
Investments 969 979 1,122
Deferred income taxes 295 333 296
Fair value of derivative instruments 1 3 2
Other noncurrent assets 1,605 1,650 1,593

Total assets 14,328 14,155 14,756
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US$ millions

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 December 2023
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As at
31 December 2022

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable, trade 1,586 1,714 1,757
Accrued compensation and retirement costs 331 357 335
Taxes, including income taxes 94 88 230
Fair value of derivative instruments 205 214 200
Other current liabilities 746 578 481
Long-term debt due within one year 79 79 1
Total current liabilities 3,041 3,030 3,004
Long-term debt, less amount due within one year 2,469 1,732 1,806
Accrued pension benefits 267 278 213
Accrued other postretirement benefits 437 443 480
Asset retirement obligations 718 772 711
Environmental remediation 197 202 226
Fair value of derivative instruments 925 1,092 1,026
Noncurrent income taxes 134 193 215
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 606 568 486
Total liabilities 8,794 8,310 8,167
Equity

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock 2 2 2
Additional capital 9,184 9,187 9,183
Accumulated deficit (1,564) (1,293) (570)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,628) (3,645) (3,539)
Total shareholders’ equity 3,994 4,251 5,076
Noncontrolling interest’ 1,540 1,594 1,513
Total equity 5,534 5,845 6,589
Total liabilities and equity 14,328 14,155 14,756

Notes: (1) Noncontrolling interest relates to Alumina’s minority 40% interest in Alcoa controlled entities.
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(e) Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows

Alumina Limited

The Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and 31 December

2021 and for the quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following table:

Table 6.11.3

ALCOA STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

Quarter Quarter
Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31December 31 March 31 March
US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023
Cash from Operations
Net (loss) income (773) 38 570 (307) (232)
justments to reconcile net (loss) income to
===gash from operations:
depreciation, depletion, and amortization 632 617 664 161 153
Qeferred income taxes (22) 219 147 (63) (24)
mquity loss (income), net of dividends 201 4 (138) 23 93
jestructuring and other charges, net 184 696 1,128 202 149
Ret loss (gain) from investing activities-asset sales 18 10 (354) 11 18
Eet periodic pension benefit cost 6 54 47 3 1
Gock-based compensation 35 40 39 10 10
(Lpremium paid on early redemption of debt - - 43 - -
&SS (gain) on mark-to-market derivative financial 26 (44) (24) 2 (18)
("Jntracts
LOther 78 53 49 20 48
Qhanges in assets and liabilities, excluding effects
of divestitures and foreign currency translation
justments:
Decrease (increase) in receivables 104 (59) (414) (212) 40
Decrease (increase) in inventories 243 (547) (639) 71 17
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and 39 44 (41) (6) 4
other current assets
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, trade (74) 189 354 (98) (273)
Decrease in accrued expenses (133) (173) (38) (22) (45)
(Decrease) increase in taxes, including (146) (152) 301 18 (13)
income taxes
Pension contributions (24) (17) (579) (6) (4)
(Increase) decrease in noncurrent assets (210) (87) (160) 9 (29)
Decrease in noncurrent liabilities (93) (63) (35) (39) (58)
Cash provided from (used for) operations 91 822 920 (223) (163)
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Quarter Quarter
Year ended Year ended Year ended ended ended
31 December 31December 31December 31 March 31 March
US$ millions 2023 2022 2021 2024 2023
Financing Activities
Additions to debt 127 4 495 965 25
Payments on debt (72) (1) (1,294) (221) (1)
Proceeds from the exercise of employee 1 22 25 - 1
stock options
Repurchase of common stock - (500) (150) - -
> Dividends paid on Alcoa common stock (72) (72) 19) (19) (18)
C Payments related to tax withholding on stock- (34) (19) (1) (15) (34)
O based compensation awards
Financial contributions for the divestiture (52) (33) (17) (7) (14)
G) of businesses
m Contributions from noncontrolling interest 188 214 21 61 86
3 Distributions to noncontrolling interest (30) (379) (215) (6) (6)
('U Other 1 (4) (3) (4) 1
C Cash provided from (used for) financing activities 57 (768) (1,158) 754 40
O Investing Activities
&) Capital expenditures (531) (480) (390) (101) (83)
q) Proceeds from the sale of assets and businesses 4 5 966 1 1
Additions to investments (70) (32) (11) (17) (20)
| -
O Sale of investments - 10 - - -
|1 Other 12 2 - - -
Cash (used for) provided from investing activities (585) (495) 565 (117) (102)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and 10 (9) (13) (6) 2
cash equivalents and restricted cash
Net change in cash and cash equivalents and (427) (450) 314 408 (223)
restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,474 1,924 1,610 1,047 1,474
at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash 1,047 1,474 1,924 1,455 1,251

at end of period
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(f) Alcoa Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity
The Alcoa Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity for the years ended 31 December 2023, 31 December 2022 and

Alumina Limited

31 December 2021 and for the quarters ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are set out in the following tables:

Table 6.11.4

ALCOA STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY (FOR THE YEAR ENDED)

Accumulated other Non-
Common Additional Accumulated Comprehensive  controlling Total
US$ millions stock capital deficit (loss) income interest equity
Balance at 31 December 2020 2 9,663 (725) (5,629) 1,705 5,016
Net income - - 429 - 141 570
>ﬁ1er comprehensive income (loss) - - - 1,037 (39) 998
Etock-based compensation - 39 - - - 39
Qet effect of tax withholding for - 25 - - - 25
ompensation plans and exercise of
Géock options
(_léepurchase of common stock - (150) - - - (150)
4
Dividends paid on Alcoa common - - (19) - - (19
Eock ($0.10 per share)
Eontributions - - - - 21 21
Oistributions - - - - (215) (215)
(Lather - - - - (M (M
q.aalance at 31 December 2021 2 9,577 (315) (4,592) 1,612 6,284
qgt income - - (123) - 161 38
- o
dther comprehensive income (loss) - - - 1,053 (93) 960
I I Stock-based compensation - 40 - - - 40
Net effect of tax withholding for - 3 - - - 3
compensation plans and exercise of
stock options
Repurchase of common stock - (440) (60) - - (500)
Dividends paid on Alcoa common - - (72) - - (72)
stock ($0.10 per share)
Contributions - - - - 214 214
Distributions - - - - (379) (379)
Other - 3 - - (2) 1
Balance at 31 December 2022 2 9,183 (570) (3,539) 1,513 6,589
Net income - - (651) - (122) (773)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - (106) 46 (60)
Stock-based compensation - 35 - - - 35
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Accumulated other Non-

Common Additional Accumulated Comprehensive  controlling Total
US$ millions stock capital deficit (loss) income interest equity
Net effect of tax withholding for - (33) - - - (33)
compensation plans and exercise of
stock options
Dividends paid on Alcoa common - - (72) - - (72)
stock ($0.10 per share)
Contributions - - - - 188 188
Distributions - - - - (30) (30)
Other - 2 - - (1) 1
Balance at 31 December 2023 2 9,187 (1,293) (3,645) 1,594 5,845
ALCOA STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED EQUITY (FOR THE QUARTER ENDED)

Accumulated other Non-

Common Additional Accumulated Comprehensive  controlling Total
US$ millions stock capital deficit (loss) income interest equity
Balance at 31 December 2022 2 9,183 (570) (3,539) 1,513 6,589
Net loss - - (231) - (1) (232)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - (116) 15 (101)
Stock-based compensation - 10 - - - 10
Net effect of tax withholding for - (33) - - - (33)
compensation plans and exercise of
stock options
Dividends paid on Alcoa common - - (18) - - (18)
stock ($0.10 per share)
Contributions - - - - 86 86
Distributions - - - - (6) (6)
Other - 2 - - (1) 1
Balance at 31 March 2023 2 9,162 (819) (3,655) 1,606 6,296
Balance at 31 December 2023 2 9,187 (1,293) (3,645) 1,594 5,845
Net loss - - (252) - (55) (307)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - 17 (53) (36)
Stock-based compensation - 10 - - - 10
Net effect of tax withholding for - (15) - - - (15)
compensation plans and exercise of
stock options
Dividends paid on Alcoa common - - (19) - - (19)

stock ($0.10 per share)
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Accumulated other Non-
Common Additional Accumulated Comprehensive  controlling Total
US$ millions stock capital deficit (loss) income interest equity
Contributions - - - 61 61
Distributions - - - (6) (6)
Other - - - (m 1
Balance at 31 March 2024 2 9,184 (1,564) (3,628) 1,540 5,534

6.12 MATERIAL CHANGES IN ALCOA'S
FINANCIAL POSITION

the knowledge of Alcoa Directors, there have been no
mdterial changes to the financial position of Alcoa and Alcoa
droup since 31 March 2024.

.13 CREDIT FACILITIES AND OTHER EXISTING
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

G_aa) Revolving Credit Facility

n 27 June 2022, Alcoa and ANHBV (as borrower) entered
ito an amendment and restatement agreement (the Third

mendment and Restatement) (as amended and restated,
the Revolving Credit Facility) that provided additional

E&xibility to Alcoa and ANHBYV by:
extending the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility
Cfrom November 2023 to June 2027;

Oreducing the aggregate commitments under the facility from
US$1,500 million to US$1,250 million;

U)releasing the collateral package that had previously secured
S ihe Revolving Credit Facility, which would have continued so
long as certain credit ratings were maintained;

increasing the maximum leverage ratio from 2.75 to 1.00
be 3.25 to 1.00, which increases following material
acquisitions for four consecutive fiscal quarters following

Qan acquisition;

providing a debt to capitalisation ratio not to exceed .60 to
1.00 to replace the maximum leverage ratio upon a ratings
upgrade to investment grade by Moody'’s Investor Service
(Moody's) or Standard and Poor’s Global Ratings (S&P); and

- providing flexibility for dividends and other restricted
payments, to make investments and to incur additional
indebtedness.

The Revolving Credit Facility implemented a sustainability
adjustment to the applicable margin and commitment fee that
may result in a positive or negative adjustment based on two
of Alcoa’s existing sustainability metrics.

On 26 July 2022, Moody's upgraded the rating of ANHBV's
senior unsecured notes to Baa3 (investment grade).

In addition to the financial covenants, the Revolving Credit
Facility included several customary affirmative and negative
covenants (applicable to Alcoa and certain Subsidiaries
described as restricted), that, subject to certain exceptions,
include limitations on (among other things): indebtedness,
liens, investments, sales of assets, restricted payments,
entering into restrictive agreements, a covenant prohibiting
reductions in the ownership of AWAC Entities and certain
other specified restricted Subsidiaries of Alcoa, below an
agreed level. The Revolving Credit Facility also contains

customary events of default, including failure to make payments
under the Revolving Credit Facility, cross-default and cross-
judgment default, and certain bankruptcy and insolvency
events.

(i) Amendment No. 1

On 17 January 2024, Alcoa, ANHBV and certain Subsidiaries
of Alcoa entered into Amendment No. 1 (Amendment No. 1)
to the Revolving Credit Facility (Amended Revolving Credit
Facility). The Amended Revolving Credit Facility provides
additional flexibility to Alcoa and ANHBV by temporarily:

reducing the minimum interest coverage ratio required
thereunder from 4.00 to 1.00 to be 3.00 to 1.00; and

providing for a maximum addback for cash restructuring
charges in Consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Revolving
Credit Facility) of US$450 million,

in each case for the 2024 fiscal year.

As of 1 January 2025, the minimum interest coverage ratio
requirement will revert to 4.00 to 1.00 and the maximum
addback for cash restructuring charges in Consolidated
EBITDA will revert to 15% of Consolidated EBITDA.

The requirement that Alcoa maintain a debt to capitalisation
ratio not to exceed .60 to 1.00 was not changed by
Amendment No. 1. In connection with Amendment No. 1,
Alcoa also agreed to provide collateral for its obligations
under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility, which will
require it to execute all security documents to re-secure
collateral under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility by,
subject to certain exceptions, a first priority security interest
in substantially all assets of Alcoa, ANHBY, the material United
States domiciled wholly owned Subsidiaries of Alcoa and the
material non-United States domiciled wholly owned
Subsidiaries of Alcoa located in Australia, Brazil, Canada,
Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Norway, and Switzerland
including equity interests of certain Subsidiaries that directly
hold equity interests in AWAC Entities.

The collateral would be released if, on or after 1 January 2025,
Alcoa or ANHBYV (as applicable):

+ has at least two of the following three designated ratings:
— Baa3 from Moody'’s;
— BBB- from S&P; and
— BBB- from Fitch Ratings, and

- does not have any designated rating lower than:
— Bal from Moody's;
— BB+ from S&P; and
— BB+ from Fitch Ratings.
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The Amended Revolving Credit Facility contains customary
affirmative covenants, negative covenants, and events of
default substantially comparable to the Revolving Credit
Facility (other than those that are described above and other
minor changes). The representations, warranties and covenants
contained in the Amended Revolving Credit Facility were
made only for purposes of Amendment No. 1 and as of
specific dates and were solely for the benefit of the parties

to the Amended Revolving Credit Facility.

As of 31 March 2024, Alcoa was in compliance with all financial
covenants. Alcoa may access the entire amount of commitments
under the Revolving Credit Facility. There were no borrowings
outstanding at 31 December 2023 and 2022, and no amounts
were borrowed during 2023 and 2022 under the Revolving
Credit Facility. There remains no borrowings outstanding as of
31 March 2024.

(b) Receivables Purchase Agreement Facility

In 2023, a wholly-owned special purpose entity of Alcoa
entered into a receivables purchase agreement facility with

a financial institution (Receivables Purchase Agreement).
Alcoa utilises the Receivables Purchase Agreement facility

to sell up to US$130 million of certain receivables through

a special purpose entity (SPE) to the financial institution on a
revolving basis. Alcoa guarantees the performance obligations
of its Subsidiaries, and unsold customer receivables are
pledged as collateral to the financial institution to secure the
sold receivables. At 31 December 2023, the SPE held unsold
customer receivables of US$104 million pledged as collateral
against the sold receivables. Alcoa continues to service the
customer receivables that were transferred to the financial
institution. As Alcoa collects customer payments, the SPE
transfers additional receivables to the financial institution
rather than remitting cash. In 2023, Alcoa sold gross customer
receivables of US$591 million, and reinvested collections of
US$477 million from previously sold receivables, resulting in
net cash proceeds from the financial institution of US$114
million. Cash collections from previously sold receivables yet
to be reinvested of US$99 million were included in accounts
payable as of 31 December 2023.

(c) Japanese Yen Revolving Credit Facility

In April 2023, Alcoa entered into a one-year unsecured
revolving credit facility for US$250 million (available to be
drawn in Japanese yen) (the Japanese Yen Revolving Credit
Facility). Subject to the terms and conditions under the facility,
Alcoa or ANHBV may borrow funds. The facility included
covenants that are substantially the same as those included

in the Revolving Credit Facility as described above at section
6.13(a).

On 17 January 2024, Alcoa and ANHBV entered into
Amendment No. 1 to the Japanese Yen Revolving Credit
Facility (Amended Japanese Yen Revolving Credit Facility)
which contains changes that are substantially the same as
those included in the Amended Revolving Credit Facility (as
described above at section 6.13(a)). Also in connection with
this amendment, Alcoa agreed to provide collateral for its
obligations with the same conditions as the Amended
Revolving Credit Facility.

As of 31 March 2024, Alcoa was in compliance with all
financial covenants. Alcoa may access the entire amount
of commitments under the facility. During the first quarter
of 2024, $201 million (29,686 JPY) was borrowed and
$196 million (29,686 JPY) was repaid.
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(d) 2031 Notes

On 21 March 2024, ANHBV (as issuer) completed a Rule 144A
debt issuance for US$750 million aggregate principal amount
of 7.125% Senior Notes due 2031 (the 2031 Notes) with the
following terms:

- net proceeds were approximately US$737 million, reflecting
a discount to the initial purchasers as well as issuance costs.
The discount, as well as costs to complete the financing, were
deferred and are being amortised to interest expense over
the term;

« interest is paid semi-annually in March and September, which
will begin on 15 September 2024;

- the agreement contains customary affirmative and negative
covenants, as set out at section 6.13(h) below;

- option to redeem on at least 10 days’, but not more than
60 days/, prior notice to the holders under multiple scenarios,
including, in whole or in part, at any time, or from time to
time after 15 March 2027, at a redemption price up to
103.563% of the principal amount, plus any accrued and
unpaid interest;

- subject to repurchase upon the occurrence of a change in
control repurchase event (as defined in the indenture) at a
repurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued
and unpaid interest.

Alcoa intends to use the net proceeds to finance and/or
refinance, in whole orin part, new and/or existing qualifying
projects that meet certain eligibility criteria within its Green
Finance Framework. The net proceeds will also support Alcoa'’s
cash position and ongoing cash needs, including with respect
to its previously announced portfolio actions.

(e) 2029 Notes

In March 2021, ANHBYV, completed a Rule 144A debt issuance
for US$500 million aggregate principal amount of 4.125%
Senior Notes due 2029 (the 2029 Notes) with the following
terms:

- net proceeds were approximately US$493 million, reflecting
a discount to the initial purchasers as well as issuance costs.
The discount, as well as costs to complete the financing, were
deferred and are being amortised to interest expense over
the term;

« interest is paid semi-annually in March and September, which
commenced 30 September 2021;

- the agreement contains customary affirmative and negative
covenants, as set out at section 6.13(h) below;

- option to redeem on at least 10 days’, but not more than
60 days’, prior notice to the holders under multiple scenarios,
including, in whole or in part, at any time, or from time to
time after 31 March 2024, at a redemption price up to
102.063% of the principal amount, plus any accrued and
unpaid interest; and

- subject to repurchase upon the occurrence of a change in
control repurchase event (as defined in the indenture) at a
repurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued
and unpaid interest.

Alcoa used the net proceeds of the 2029 Notes, together with
cash on hand, to contribute US$500 million to its US defined
benefit pension plans applicable to salaried and hourly
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employees on 1 April 2021, to redeem in full US$750 million
aggregate principal amount of Alcoa’s outstanding 6.75%
Senior Notes due 2024 on 7 April 2021 and to pay transaction-
related fees and expenses.

(f) 2027 Notes

In July 2020, ANHBV completed a Rule 144A debt issuance for
US$750 million aggregate principal amount of 5.500% Senior
Notes due 2027 (the 2027 Notes) with the following terms:

- net proceeds were approximately US$736 million, reflecting
a discount to the initial purchasers as well as issuance costs.
The discount, as well as costs to complete the financing, were
deferred and are being amortised to interest expense over
the term;

- interest is paid semi-annually in June and December, which
>\ommenced on 15 December 2020;

the agreement contains customary affirmative and negative
covenants, as set out at section 6.13(h) below;

option to redeem on at least 15 days’, but not more than

60 days', prior notice to the holders under multiple scenarios,
q)including, in whole or in part, at any time, or from time to

time after 15 June 2023, at a redemption price up to

102.750% of the principal amount, plus any accrued and

unpaid interest; and

+ subject to repurchase upon the occurrence of a change in
s CONtrol repurchase event (as defined in the indenture) at a
cGrepurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued
and unpaid interest.

Olcoa used the net proceeds of the 2027 Notes for general
(,Irporate purposes, including adding cash to its balance
eet.

| -

Q) 2028 Notes

QMay 2018, ANHBV completed a Rule 144A debt issuance for
US$500 million aggregate principal amount of 6.125% Senior
L. Notes due 2028 (the 2028 Notes) with the following terms:

Onet proceeds were approximately US$492 million, reflecting
a discount to the initial purchasers as well as issuance costs.
LLThe discount, as well as costs to complete the financing, were
deferred and are being amortised to interest expense over
the term;

- interest is paid semi-annually in November and May, which
commenced 15 November 2018;

- the agreement contains customary affirmative and negative
covenants, as set out at section 6.13(h) below;

- option to redeem on at least 30 days’, but not more than
60 days', prior notice to the holders under multiple scenarios,
including, in whole or in part, at any time, or from time to
time after May 2023, at a redemption price up to 103.063%
of the principal amount, plus any accrued and unpaid
interest; and

« subject to repurchase upon the occurrence of a change in
control repurchase event (as defined in the indenture) at a
repurchase price in cash equal to 101% of the aggregate
principal amount of the notes repurchased, plus any accrued
and unpaid interest.

Alcoa used the net proceeds of the 2028 Notes, together with
cash on hand, to make discretionary contributions to certain
US defined benefit pension plans.

Alumina Limited

(h) General terms of the 2027 Notes, 2028 Notes,
2029 Notes and 2031 Notes

The agreements governing the 2027 Notes, 2028 Notes, 2029
Notes and 2031 Notes contain customary affirmative and
negative covenants, such as limitations on liens, limitations on
sale and leaseback transactions, and a prohibition on a
reduction in the ownership of AWAC Entities below an agreed
level. The negative covenants in the agreements are less
extensive than those in the Amended Revolving Credit Facility
as set out in section 6.13(a) above. For example, the indentures
do notinclude a limitation on restricted payments, such as
repurchases of common stock and dividends to stockholders.

The 2027 Notes, the 2028 Notes, the 2029 Notes and 2031
Notes are senior unsecured obligations of ANHBV and do
not entitle the holders to any registration rights pursuant to
a registration rights agreement. ANHBV does not intend to
file a registration statement with respect to resales of or an
exchange offer for the notes. The notes are guaranteed on a
senior unsecured basis by Alcoa and its Subsidiaries that are
guarantors under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility (the
Subsidiary Guarantors and, together Notes with Alcoa, the
Guarantors). Each of the Subsidiary Guarantors will be
released from their guarantees upon the occurrence of
certain events, including the release of such Guarantor from
its obligations as a Guarantor under the Amended Revolving
Credit Facility.

The 2027 Notes, the 2028 Notes, the 2029 Notes and 2031
Notes rank equally in right of payment with each other and
with all of ANHBV'S future senior unsecured indebtedness;
rank senior in right of payment to any future subordinated
obligations of ANHBYV; and are effectively subordinated to
ANHBV's existing and future secured indebtedness, including
under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and Amended
Japanese Yen Revolving Credit Facility, to the extent of the
value of property and assets securing such indebtedness.
The guarantees of the notes rank equally in right of payment
with each other and with all the Guarantors’ existing and
future senior unsecured indebtedness; rank senior in right
of payment to any future subordinated obligations of the
Guarantors; and are effectively subordinated to the
Guarantors' existing and future secured indebtedness,
including under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility and
Amended Revolving Credit Facility and Amended Japanese
Yen Revolving Credit Facility, to the extent of the value of
property and assets securing such indebtedness.

(i) Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credit

Alcoa and its Subsidiaries have outstanding bank guarantees
and letters of credit related to, among others, energy contracts,
environmental obligations, legal and tax matters, leasing
obligations, workers compensation, and customs duties. The
total amount committed under these instruments, which
automatically renew or expire at various dates between 2024
and 2025, was US$294 million (includes US$86 million issued
under a standby letter of credit agreement - see below) at

31 December 2023.

In December 2023, AofA committed to provide a bank
guarantee for approximately US$68 million (A$100 million)
which demonstrates Alcoa’s confidence that its operations
will not impair drinking water supplies.

In August 2017, Alcoa entered into a standby letter of credit
agreement, which expires on 27 June 2024 (amended in
August 2018, May 2019, May 2021, June 2022 and January
2024), with three financial institutions. The agreement provides
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for a US$200 million facility used by Alcoa for matters in the ordinary course of business. Alcoa’s obligations under this facility are
secured in the same manner as obligations under the Amended Revolving Credit Facility. Additionally, this facility contains similar
representations and warranties and affirmative, negative, and financial covenants as the Amended Revolving Credit Facility. As of
31 December 2023, letters of credit aggregating US$86 million were issued under this facility.

6.14 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at the Last Practicable Date, Alcoa’s issued securities consist of:

- 179,561,504 Alcoa Shares;

.+ 2,240,228 Time-based RSUs;

« 659,135 PRSUs; and

+ 144,636 Incentive Options.

Allissued Alcoa Shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

Alcoa's time-based RSUs, PRSUs, and Incentive Options do not carry any voting rights or rights to dividends.

The following table sets out the outstanding shares in the capital of Alcoa as at the Last Practicable Date.

Number of Shares on a

>

-

O Number of Shares Price fully diluted basis
G) Alcoa Shares 179,561,504 Us$44.27 179,561,504
m Time-based RSUs 2,240,228 US$0.00 2,240,228
3 PRSUs 659,135 US$0.00 659,135
CG 2015 Incentive Options 1,249 US$34.83 266
C 2016 Incentive Options 29,654 US$15.10 19,539
8 2017 Incentive Options 11,922 US$37.68 1,775
S= 2018 Incentive Options 29,620 US$53.30 0
g 2019 Incentive Options 17,142 US$27.96 6,315
- 2020 Incentive Options 55,049 US$16.29 34,793
L? Total 182,523,556

(a) Preferred Stock

As at the date of this Scheme Booklet, Alcoa is authorised to issue 100 million shares of preferred stock at a par value of US$0.01
per share.

As at the date of this Scheme Booklet, Alcoa had no issued preferred stock.

(b) Common Stock
Alcoa is authorised to issue 750 million shares of common stock at a par value of US$0.01 per share.
As at the Last Practicable Date, Alcoa had 179,561,504 issued and outstanding Alcoa Shares.

Under its employee stock-based compensation plan, Alcoa issued 1,089,040 Alcoa Shares in 2024 (as at the Last Practicable
Date), 1,503,373 Alcoa Shares in 2023, 1,434,543 Alcoa Shares in 2022, and 1,305,979 Alcoa Shares in 2021. Alcoa issues new
shares to satisfy the exercise of stock options and the conversion of stock units. As at the Last Practicable Date, 551,002,105
Alcoa Shares were available for issuance.
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6.15 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Last Practicable Date, in accordance with the latest
13G/A filed with the SEC, the substantial shareholders of Alcoa
Shares were:

Substantial Alcoa Number of Voting Power

Stockholders Alcoa Shares in Alcoa
The Vanguard Group 17,959,035 10.06%
BlackRock, Inc. 21,622,197 12.1%

6.16 RIGHTS ATTACHING TO ALCOA SHARES
Alcoa Shares allow Alcoa Stockholders to participate in:

ividends: when Alcoa announces its financial results, it may

=== decide to give a portion of its profits back to stockholders in

the form of dividends. Pursuant to the Alcoa Bylaws, holders

of preferred stock may have a preference as to dividends
Oover stockholders that hold common stock in Alcoa. See
section 6.14(a) for further details.

Voting: as an Alcoa Stockholder, holders of Alcoa Shares will
mbe entitled to vote at Alcoa’s annual meetings where each of
their Alcoa Shares will count as one vote.

Liquidation Proceeds: in the event of liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of Alcoa, Alcoa Stockholders are entitled to
share rateably in all assets remaining after payment of or
CGprovisions for Alcoa’s liabilities, subject to prior rights or
preferred stock, if any, then outstanding.

oNo Pre-emptive, Redemptive or Conversion Provisions:
Alcoa Shares are not entitled to pre-emptive rights and are
not subject to conversion or redemption, subject to Alcoa
Stockholders that hold preferred stock. Refer to section
6.14(a) for more information in relation to preferred stock.

rther an Alcoa Stockholder will have the right to receive
ain information from Alcoa, such as Alcoa’s annual report to
Alcoa Stockholders. Alcoa can make such information available
r Alcoa Stockholders at its office and/or via its website.

6.17 NEW ALCOA PREFERRED SHARES
(a) Overview

A New Alcoa Preferred Share is a fully paid non-voting
convertible preferred share in the capital of Alcoa, established
by the Certificate of Designation and subject to the Alcoa
Certificate of Incorporation and the Alcoa Bylaws. As at the
Last Practicable Date, Alcoa has notissued any preferred stock.
Please refer to section 6.17(b) for a summary of the key terms
of the New Alcoa Preferred Shares.

(b) Rights and obligations of New Alcoa
Preferred Shares

The designations, powers, rights and preferences and the
qualifications, limitations and restrictions of the New Alcoa
Preferred Shares are set out in the Certificate of Designation.

The shares of New Alcoa Preferred Shares will be subject to
the following terms, among others:

- the New Alcoa Preferred Shares will have no voting rights,
except as may be required by applicable law and except as
specified in the Certificate of Designation;

Alumina Limited

each share of New Alcoa Preferred Shares will be convertible
into one Alcoa Share (the Conversion Ratio), subject to
adjustment under certain circumstances as set out in the
Certificate of Designation, upon transfer to a non-affiliate of
the CITIC Shareholders;

the New Alcoa Preferred Shares will participate in dividends
(other than stock dividends which shall adjust the Conversion
Ratio) paid on the shares of Alcoa Shares to the same extent
as the Alcoa Share; and

the New Alcoa Preferred Shares will rank senior to Alcoa
Shares in the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of Alcoa to the extent of a liquidation preference of $0.0001
for each Alcoa Preference Share and, after the payment of
such liquidation preference, rank pari passu with the Alcoa
Share.

(c) Risk factors

Risk factors applicable to Alumina Shareholders that will
receive New Alcoa CDls under the Scheme also apply to
Bestbuy to the extent it receives New Alcoa Preferred Shares
(see section 8). There may be additional risk factors applicable
to Bestbuy associated with the New Alcoa Preferred Shares. In
particular, there will be no public market for the trading of New
Alcoa Preferred Shares, nor is there expected to be any such
market in the near future. The ability to dispose of New Alcoa
Preferred Shares will also be restricted under the Certificate of
Designation, which will result in New Alcoa Preferred Shares
being substantially illiquid and may also affect the value of
Alcoa Shares.

The key material differences between New Alcoa Preferred
Shares and Alcoa Shares are described in section 6.17(b)
above.

This is a summary of certain risks associated with New
Alcoa Preferred Shares to be issued to Bestbuy as Scheme
Consideration. It is not intended to be, and is not, an
exhaustive list of the risks associated with the Scheme.

6.18 RECENT SHARE PRICE HISTORY

The below chart shows the performance of Alcoa Shares on
NYSE over the last 12 months.
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As at the close of trading on the Last Practicable Date:

- the last recorded trading price of Alcoa Shares on NYSE
was US$44.27;

- the lowest and highest closing prices of Alcoa Shares
during the previous 3 months were US$26.91 and US$44.54,
respectively.

As at 23 February 2024, being the last trading day before
Alumina and Alcoa announced that they had entered into the
Transaction Process Deed, the closing price of Alcoa Shares
on NYSE was US$26.52.

6.19 ALCOA SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On 20 July 2022, Alcoa announced that the Alcoa Board
approved an Alcoa Share repurchase program under which
Alcoa may purchase shares of its outstanding common stock
up to an aggregate transactional value of US$500 million,
depending on Alcoa’s continuing analysis of market, financial,
and other factors. As at 31 December 2023, Alcoa was
authorised to repurchase up to a total of US$500 million, in the
aggregate, of its outstanding shares of common stock under
the program. This program may be suspended or discontinued

at any time and does not have a predetermined expiration date.

Alcoa intends to retire repurchased shares of common stock.

6.20 LITIGATION

In the ordinary course of its business, Alcoa is involved in a
number of lawsuits and claims, both actual and potential.

In addition to the matters discussed below, various other
lawsuits, claims, and proceedings have been or may be
instituted or asserted against Alcoa, including those pertaining
to environmental, safety and health, commercial, tax, product
liability, intellectual property infringement, employment,
employee and retiree benefit matters, and other actions and
claims arising out of the normal course of business. While the
amounts claimed in these other matters may be substantial,
the ultimate liability is not readily determinable because of the
considerable uncertainties that exist. Accordingly, it is possible
that Alcoa’s liquidity or results of operations in a particular
period could be materially affected by one or more of these
other matters. However, based on facts currently available,
Alcoa’s management believes that the disposition of these
other matters that are pending or asserted will not have a
material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate, on
the financial position of Alcoa.

St. Croix Proceedings - Abednego and Abraham cases

In January 2010, Howmet Aerospace Inc (formerly known as
Alcoa, Inc.) was served with a multi-plaintiff action complaint
involving several thousand individual persons claiming to
be residents of St. Croix alleging personal injury or property
damage from Hurricane Georges or winds blowing material
from the SCA facility on the island of St. Croix (US Virgin
Islands).

In 2012, Howmet Aerospace Inc was served with a separate
multi-plaintiff action alleging claims essentially identical to
those set forth in the Abednego v. Alcoa complaint.

In 2015, the Superior Court dismissed all plaintiffs’ complaints
without prejudice, permitting the plaintiffs to re-file the
complaints individually. In 2017, the court issued an order that
consolidated all timely complaints into the Red Dust Claims
docket. Following this order, a total of approximately 430
complaints were filed and accepted by the court, which
included claims of approximately 1,360 individuals. In
November 2018, the Red Dust Claims docket was transferred
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to the Complex Litigation Division within the Superior Court
of the Virgin Islands. The Court issued an amended case
management order dividing the complaints filed in the Red
Dust docket into groups of 50 complaints, designated Groups
Athough | in March 2022. The parties selected 10 complaints
from Group A to proceed to trial as the Group A lead cases.
In November 2023, the Court issued an amended case
management order with regard to the Group A lead cases
scheduling trials to begin in July 2024. Trials with regard to
the Group A lead cases will continue through March 2025.
Concurrently, the Court is considering discovery issues with
respect to other group cases.

As part of the arrangements governing the separation of
Alcoa Corporation from Alcoa Inc. in 2016, Alcoa Corporation
indemnifies Alcoa Inc. (now Howmet Aerospace Inc) from any
losses arising from pre-existing litigation (which relevantly
includes the St. Croix Proceedings). This proceeding relates to
a former AWAC asset.

Alcoa remains unable to reasonably predict an outcome or
to estimate the range of reasonably possible loss in the Red
Dust Claims docket cases.

ATO dispute

See section 8.3(i) (Changes in tax laws or exposure to
additional tax liabilities could affect future profitability) for
information in relation to the dispute between AofA and the
ATO in relation to transfer pricing of certain historic third-party
alumina sales.

6.21 NO PRE-TRANSACTION BENEFITS

Except as otherwise provided in this Scheme Booklet, during
the period of 4 months before the date of this Scheme Booklet,
neither Alcoa nor any of its Associates gave, or offered to give,
a benefit to another person which was likely to induce the
other person, or an Associate of the other person to:

« vote in favour of the Scheme; or

- dispose of Alumina Shares.

and which will not be provided to all Scheme Participants
under the Scheme.

6.22 ALCOA'S INTERESTS IN ALUMINA SHARES

As at the Last Practicable Date, none of Alcoa or any of its
Associates (including Alcoa Bidder or AAC Investments) had
any Relevant Interest or voting power in any Alumina Shares.

6.23 DEALING IN ALUMINA SHARES IN
PREVIOUS 4 MONTHS

Except for the Scheme Consideration to be provided under
the Scheme and as described in this Scheme Booklet and
consideration under the AG Share Sale Agreement (which
was terminated on 21 May 2024), none of Alcoa nor any of its
Associates has provided, or agreed to provide, consideration
for any Alumina Shares under any purchase or agreement
during the period of four months before the date of this
Scheme Booklet.

6.24 NO OTHER MATERIAL INFORMATION

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Scheme Booklet, there
is no other information that is material to the making of a
decision in relation to the Scheme, being information that is
within the knowledge of any director of Alcoa, at the date of
this Scheme Booklet, which has not previously been disclosed
to Alumina Shareholders.
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71 OVERVIEW OF THE BUSINESS AND ASSETS

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina will become a wholly
owned indirect Subsidiary of Alcoa, and Alcoa will have 100%
ownership of AWAC, resulting in greater operational flexibility
and strategic optionality.

Following implementation of the Scheme, the Combined
Group will become the leading pure-play upstream aluminium
company.

7.2 SYNERGIES

Alcoa believes that the Combined Group has the potential to
achieve the following strategic and operational synergies:

« achieve US$12.5 million per annum in cost synergies
annually through a reduction of Alumina's corporate costs
(this cost reduction has not been reflected in the Combined
Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations in
section 7.7(c)); and

- simplify structure and governance, resulting in greater
operational flexibility and strategic optionality. With a
centralised management team and strategy, the Combined
Group will be better positioned to execute operational and
strategic decisions on an accelerated basis.

The Combined Group would also have increased financial
flexibility, enabling more efficient funding and capital
allocation decisions, as well as liability management, including
financial flexibility for AWAC's Western Australian mining
projects, refinery assets and near-term portfolio actions.

7.3 ALCOA'S INTENTIONS
(a) Overview

This section 7.3 sets out certain Alcoa intentions in relation to
Alumina and the Combined Group. The information contained
in this section 7.3 and the intentions of the Combined Group
have been formed on the basis of facts and information
concerning Alumina and the general environment which are
known to Alcoa as at the Last Practicable Date.

Alcoa will review and make determinations regarding the
matters set out below in light of all such material information,
facts and circumstances at the relevant time. Accordingly, it
is important to recognise that the statements set out in this
section 7.3 are statements of current intentions only, which
may change as new information becomes available or
circumstances change.

The intentions of other members of the Alcoa Group are the
same as Alcoa’s intentions.

(b) Corporate structure

Alcoa will be the parent of the Combined Group upon

the implementation of the Scheme, and Alumina will be an
indirect wholly owned Australian subsidiary of Alcoa following
implementation of the Scheme.

(c) AWAC

Given that Alcoa already operates AWAC, there are expected
to be minimal operational changes to AWAC's operations in
the short term as a result of the Scheme, and Alcoa intends
to continue to operate AWAC in accordance with its current
business plans.
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(d) Strategy

Alcoa intends that its strategic plans as outlined in section 6.4
will be applied to the Combined Group.

(e) Dividend framework

It is expected that Alcoa’s current dividend framework, as
outlined in section 6.6, will be the dividend framework of the
Combined Group, following implementation of the Scheme.

(f) Current Alumina employees

Following implementation of the Scheme, Alcoa intends to
undertake a strategic review including review of employees
to determine suitability for roles in the Combined Group.
Employees that are not offered employment within the
Combined Group will receive their full contractual and
statutory entitlements, which would be paid from Alcoa’s cash
reserves.

(9) Employee incentive arrangements

Alumina'’s existing employee incentive plans will no longer

be applicable following implementation of the Scheme. Alcoa
intends to continue utilising its existing incentive arrangements
to provide incentives to its employees, as described in section
6.9.

(h) Delisting of Alumina from ASX

If the Scheme is implemented, Alumina will request to be
removed from the Official List of the ASX. Following its
delisting from the ASX, Alumina Shareholders will no longer
be able to acquire or trade in Alumina Shares on the ASX.

Alcoa has applied for admission to the official list of ASX as
a Foreign Exempt Listing, for effect subject to implementation
of the Scheme, as outlined in section 7.4.

(i) Headquarters

If the Scheme is implemented, the Combined Group's
corporate operations will be headquartered at Alcoa’s
corporate offices in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania (United States).
Alcoa intends to conduct a review of the Combined Group's
Australian offices following implementation of the Scheme to
determine the optimal Australian office arrangements for the
Combined Group. AWAC's Australian based management will
continue to operate from their existing Booragoon office in
Western Australia.

(j) Financing arrangements

Alcoa’s credit facilities and other existing financing
arrangements are detailed in section 6.13. Alcoa expects that
the financing sources outlined in section 6.13 will remain in
place following implementation of the Scheme. Credit facilities
currently held by Alcoa are unlikely to be adversely impacted
by the Scheme and no consents are required from lenders.

Alcoa will consider whether Alumina’s existing debt facilities
(being the Alumina Facility Agreement) or any part of them
will be repaid, maintained or refinanced on or following
implementation of the Scheme. Those options are being
explored as part of a broader review of Alumina’s financing
structure in the context of Alumina’s integration into the
Combined Group and as part of the Combined Group's overall
financing strategy. Debt capital market conditions and Alcoa’s
liquidity position at the implementation of the Scheme will
also drive Alcoa’s decision.
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Implementation of the Scheme will trigger a review event
under the Alumina Facility Agreement which will entitle the
majority lenders to notify Alumina that it has the option to
prepay (without penalty, other than payment of break costs)
all outstanding loans and any other accrued amounts
(including interest) within 90 business days of that notice
(being the Option Period). If Alumina fails to exercise the
option by the date that is five business days before expiration
of the Option Period, the majority lenders may (within that 5
business day period) cancel the debt facility and declare all
outstanding loans and any other accrued amounts (including
interest) immediately due and payable. Alcoa intends to
discuss Alumina’s current debt facilities with the lenders to
determine the treatment of the facilities in connection with
implementation of the Scheme and its role in the Combined
Group's overall financing strategy. If, following discussion with
ijina’s creditors, the creditors elect to require repayment of
the Alumina Facility Agreement, Alcoa can enable Alumina to
pay the outstanding loans and any other accrued amounts
QCluding interest) by accessing its existing finance facilities or

@uidity.
4 FOREIGN EXEMPT LISTING

Icoa has applied for admission to the official list of ASX as a
reign Exempt Listing, for effect subject to implementation

f the Scheme. Alcoa sees Australia as an attractive capital
arket and has committed to maintain the CDI listing for at

m=l€ast 10 years. Once listed on ASX as a Foreign Exempt Listing,

Icoa will be exempt from complying with most of the ASX

sting Rules.

owever, Alcoa must comply with the ASX Listing Rules with
gard to a Foreign Exempt Listing on ASX. These include the
llowing:

P providing the ASX with copies of its public filings;
continuing to comply with the NYSE Listing Rules;
registering as a foreign company carrying on business

Qin Australia under the Corporations Act;

| -
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complying with some ASX Listing Rules relating to transfers
and registers of Alcoa CDls; and

complying with certain ASX Listing Rules concerning
procedural and administrative matters, including lodging
announcements, trading halt, suspension and removal.

7.5 BOARD
(a) Existing Alcoa Directors

It is expected that each of the existing Alcoa Board will
continue as directors following the implementation of the
Scheme. Please see section 6.7 for a full list of the Alcoa Board.

(b) Alumina Directors appointed to the Combined
Group Board

Alcoa must, before the Implementation Date, invite 2 existing
Alumina Board Members who are Australian residents or
citizens to join the Alcoa Board, whose identity will be mutually
agreed by Alcoa and Alumina pursuant to the Scheme
Implementation Deed, and will take effect on the
Implementation Date. As at the Last Practicable Date, Alcoa
and Alumina have not agreed to the identity of the Alumina
Board Members that will be invited to join the Alcoa Board on
the Implementation Date.

7.6 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

(a) Share capital

As of the Last Practicable Date, there are 182,523,556 Alcoa
Shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis.

If the Scheme is implemented, the Combined Group will issue
approximately 82,813,988 New Alcoa Shares to Alumina
Shareholders®? and New Alcoa Preferred Shares to Bestbuy.

As a result of the Scheme, the number of Alcoa Shares on issue
will increase from approximately 179,561,504% (being the
number currently on issue) to approximately 262,375,492.

Number Cumulative total

LI'Dn issue as at the Last Practicable Date

179,561,504% 182,523,556
To be issued under the Scheme 78,953,589 261,477,144
New Alcoa Preferred Shares to be issued under the Scheme 3,860,399 265,337,543
Pro-forma 262,375,492 265,337,543

52. Based on 2,901,681,417 Alumina Shares on issue as at the Last Practicable Date (see section 5.5) and the agreed exchange ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares
(in the form of New Alcoa CDIs) for each Alumina Share held. 53. As at the Last Practicable Date. 54. As at the Last Practicable Date. 55. Based on 2,901,681,417
Alumina Shares on issue as at the Last Practicable Date (see section 5.5) and the agreed exchange ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares (in the form of New Alcoa
CDls) for each Alumina Share held, less the New Alcoa Preferred Shares to be issued to Bestbuy.
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The following capital table sets out the outstanding shares in the capital of Alcoa as at implementation of the Scheme.

Number of shares on

Number of Shares a diluted basis
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Alcoa Shares 262,375,492 265,337,543
Time-based RSUs 2,240,228 2,240,228
PRSUs 659,135 659,135
2015 Incentive Options 1,249 266
2016 Incentive Options 29,654 19,539
2017 Incentive Options 11,922 1,775
2018 Incentive Options 29,620 0
2019 Incentive Options 17,142 6,315
2020 Incentive Options 55,049 34,793
Total 265,419,491 268,299,595

Further details about the rights and liabilities attached to Alcoa Shares are set out in Section 6.16. Further details about the Alcoa

Incentive Plan is set out in Section 6.9.

(b) Pro forma ownership

On the Implementation Date, Alumina Shareholders will

own approximately 31.6% of the Combined Group (including
New Alcoa Shares to be issued to the Sale Agent that would
otherwise be issued to Ineligible Foreign Shareholders in the
form of New Alcoa CDls).%¢

7.7 PRO FORMA HISTORICAL INFORMATION
OF THE COMBINED GROUP

(a) Overview

This section 7.7 contains the Pro Forma financial information of
the Combined Group (Combined Group Pro Forma Financial
Information) comprising the:

« Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated
Operations for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
quarter ended 31 March 2024 (Combined Group Pro Forma
Statement of Operations), as set out in section 7.7(c); and

+ Combined Group Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2024, as set out in section 7.7(d).

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information has
been reviewed by PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd (as
Investigating Accountant), in accordance with the Australian
Standard on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3450 Assurance
Engagements involving Corporate Fundraisings and/or
Prospective Financial Information, as stated in its Independent
Limited Assurance Report included in Annexure B. Alumina
Shareholders should note the scope and limitations of the
Independent Limited Assurance Report.

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information is
based on and should be read in conjunction with:

« the accompanying notes to the Combined Group Pro Forma
Financial Information;

« the Alumina Financial Information presented in section 5.3;
and

« the Alcoa Financial Information presented in section 6.11.

This section 7.7 should also be read in conjunction with the risks
to which Alcoa and the Combined Group are subject to and the
risks associated with the Scheme, as set out in section 8.

(b) Basis of preparation

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information
included in this section 7.7 is intended to present Alumina
Shareholders with information to assist them in understanding
the pro forma financial performance and financial position of
the Combined Group. Alcoa management is responsible for
the preparation and presentation of the Combined Group Pro
Forma Financial Information.

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information has
been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes
continuity of normal business activities and the realisation of
assets and the settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course
of business.

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information has
been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and in a manner
consistent with Alcoa Group accounting policies applied by
Alcoa in preparing the Quarterly Report for the quarter ended
31 March 2024 and the Annual Report for the year ended

31 December 2023, using the assumptions set out in section
7.7(f).

56. Based on the shares on issue on 12 March 2024, being 2,901,681,417 for Alumina and 179,558,990 for Alcoa. On a fully diluted share basis as of 23 February
2024, including stock options, stock units, conditional and performance rights, Alumina Shareholders would own 31.25% of the Combined Group.
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The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information
presents the combination of the Alcoa Financial Information
and the Alumina Financial Information after giving effect to
the Scheme which is assumed to have occurred:

- immediately prior to 1 January 2023 for the Combined
Group Pro Forma Statement of Operations; and

- as at 31 March 2024 for the Combined Group Pro Forma
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

As discussed in section 5.3, the consolidated financial
statements for Alumina for the years ended 31 December
2023 which were prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement principles of AAS, which are consistent
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), were
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, in accordance with

tralian Auditing Standards. PricewaterhouseCoopers issued

nqualified audit opinions in respect of these consolidated
dnancial statements. PricewaterhouseCoopers also performed
Qreview of Alumina’s interim consolidated financial statements
rthe quarter ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA)
-JAU-C Sec. 930 Interim Financial Information. Alumina'’s
terim consolidated financial report for the quarter ended
1 March 2024 was prepared in accordance with International
jccounting Standard (IAS) 34 Interim Financial Reporting.

The respective audit and review opinions for the year ended
1 December 2023 and quarter ended 31 March 2024 contain
emphasis of matter, drawing attention to the sections “Basis
preparation - going concern” and “Going concern” in the
otes to the consolidated financial statements and the interim
nsolidated statements respectively. The notes describe
(ﬂonditions that indicate that a material uncertainty exists that

ay cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as

S going concern. Audit and review opinions are not modified
@ respect of this matter.

Qe section 5.3(b) (Basis of preparation) for further detail. Refer

also to section 7.3(j) in respect of Alcoa’s intentions regarding
_the Alumina financing arrangements.

Os further discussed in section 6.11, the consolidated financial
I I statements for Alcoa for the year ended 31 December 2023
ere audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm for Alcoa.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP also performed a review of
Alcoa’s unaudited interim consolidated financial statements
for the quarter ended 31 March 2024 filed with the SEC in
accordance with standards of the PCAOB.

The Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated
Operations for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
quarter ended 31 March 2024 were derived from the:

+ Alcoa Statement of Consolidated Operations for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the quarter ended 31 March
2024, as outlined in section 6.11; and

- Alumina Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and the quarter ended
31 March 2024, as outlined in section 5.3

and adjusted for the effects of pro forma adjustments
described in the notes to table 7.7.2, being, Note 1
Reclassifications, Note 2 U.S. GAAP Conversion and Note 3
Transaction Accounting Adjustments.

Alumina Limited

The Combined Group Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2024 has been derived from the:

- Alcoa Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024 as
outlined in section 6.11; and

- Alumina Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
as outlined in section 5.3

and adjusted for the effects of proforma adjustments
described in the notes to table 7.7.5 being, Note 1
Reclassifications, Note 2 U.S. GAAP Conversion and Note 3
Transaction Accounting Adjustments.

Implementation of the Scheme remains subject to the
satisfaction of various Conditions Precedent, including Alumina
Shareholder approval, Court, regulatory and other approvals.
Alcoa notes that the Scheme has not been implemented, and
may never be implemented, including due to reasons outside
of Alcoa’s control.

The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information is
presented for informational purposes only and is not intended
to present or be indicative of what the results from operations
or financial position would have been had the events actually
occurred on the dates indicated, nor is it meant to be indicative
of future results from operations or financial position for any
future period or as of any future date. The Combined Group
Pro Forma Financial Information does not give effect to the
potential impact of current financial conditions, or any
anticipated revenue enhancements, cost savings or operating
synergies that may result from the implementation of the
Scheme and the integration of the two businesses.

The pro forma adjustments are based upon currently available
information and certain assumptions that Alcoa believes are
reasonable. Assumptions underlying the pro forma
adjustments are described in the accompanying notes, which
should be read in conjunction with the Combined Group Pro
Forma Financial Information.

The actual adjustments to Alcoa’s financial statements will
depend upon a number of factors and additional information
that will be available on or after the implementation of the
Scheme. Accordingly, the actual adjustments that will appear
in the Alcoa Group's financial statements will differ from these
pro forma adjustments, and those differences may be material.

Alcoa conducted a review of Alumina’s financial statements,
which comply with IFRS, and the accounting policies of
Alumina to determine material differences in accounting
policies and financial statement presentation between Alcoa
and Alumina that may require alignment or reclassification to
conform to Alcoa'’s accounting policies and financial statement
presentations. The Alumina Financial Information has also been
adjusted, in accordance with the SEC’s Rule 11-02 of
Regulation S-X, for differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP.
The assessment of differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP is
based on Alcoa management's best estimates which remain
subject to change as additional information becomes
available.

Both Alumina and Alcoa prepares their financial statements

on the basis of a financial year ended 31 December and their
presentation currency is USD. The Combined Group Pro Forma
Financial Information is presented in USD and, unless
otherwise noted, rounded to the nearest USD million.

Due to its nature, the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial
Information does not represent the Combined Group's actual
or prospective financial position and financial performance.
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The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information
contained in section 7.7 is presented in an abbreviated

form as it does not include all the disclosures, statements

or comparative information that are required by:

+ U.S. GAAP applicable to full financial statements or to
financial statements prepared in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC; and

« IFRS applicable to full financial statements or financial

statements prepared in accordance with the Corporations

Act.
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The Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information
contained in sections 7.7(c) and 7.7(d) is as follows:

+ Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated

Operations for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the

quarter ended 31 March 2024 (table 7.7.1);

+ Combined Group Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2024 (table 7.7.4).

(c) Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations

The following table presents the Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations for the year ended
31 December 2023 and the three months ended 31 March 2024. Refer to tables 7.7.3 and 7.7.4 of section 7.7(c) for the

reconciliation.

Table 7.7.1

COMBINED GROUP PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 AND THE QUARTER ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Year ended Quarter ended
US$ millions 31 December 2023 31 March 2024
Sales 10,552 2,599
Cost of goods sold (exclusive of expenses below) 9,813 2,404
Selling, general administrative, and other expenses 238 66
Research and development expenses 39 11
Provision for depreciation, depletion, and amortization 632 161
Restructuring and other charges, net 184 202
Interest expense 127 33
Other expenses, net 134 59
Total costs and expenses 11,167 2,936
Loss before income taxes (615) (337)
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 189 (18)
Net loss (804) (319)

The above Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations should be read in conjunction with the standalone
financial information contained in sections 5 and 6 in relation to Alumina and Alcoa respectively.
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Table 7.7.2

Alumina Limited

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINED GROUP PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED
OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The following table reconciles the Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations with Alcoa Consolidated
Statement of Operations and Alumina Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Alumina
Limited
Alcoa Alumina IFRS to U.S. Transaction U.S. GAAP

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Corporation Limited GAAP Accounting Pro forma

(US$ millions) U.S. GAAP IFRS'" Adjustments? Adjustments® Note(s) Combined

Sales 10,551 1 - - 10,552
SCsst of goods sold (exclusive of expenses below) 9,813 - - - 9,813
= )

Eelling, general administrative, and other expenses 226 12 - - 238
Oesearch and development expenses 39 - - - 39
qjsvision for depreciation, depletion, and 632 - - - 632

ortization
OA
_éstructuring and other charges, net 184 - - - 184
—

Interest expense 107 20 - - 127
c@ther expenses (income), net 134 119 8 (127) (A) 134
gotal costs and expenses 11,135 151 8 (127) 11,167
U{)oss) income before income taxes (584) (150) (8) 127 (615)
qjovmlon for income taxes 189 - - - 189
(Net (loss) income (773) (150) (8) 127 (804)
Lless: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (122) - - 122 (A) -
Caet (loss) income after noncontrolling interest (651) (150) (8) 5 (804)

Notes:

1) Reclassifications

Alcoa’s management performed a review of the accounting policies of Alumina to determine if differences in accounting policies
require reclassification or adjustment and did not identify any material differences in accounting policy.
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The following reclassifications were made to Alumina'’s historical consolidated statement of profit or loss to conform to Alcoa'’s
historical presentation of consolidated statement of operations:

Alumina Alumina
Historical Reclassi- Historical
Alumina Financial Statement Line Amount fications Reclassified Alcoa Financial Statement Line
Revenue from continuing operations 1 - 1 Sales
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates (119) 119 -
accounted for using the equity method
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 0 (0) -
- (119) (119) Other expenses (income), net
Finance costs (20) - (20) Interest expense
General and administrative expenses (12) - (12) Selling, general administrative,
and other expenses
Income tax expense - - - Provision for income taxes
Profit/(loss) for the year (150) - (150) Net (loss) income for the year

2) IFRS to U.S. GAAP Adjustments

Alumina reports their financial statements under IFRS Accounting Standards, which differs in certain material respects from U.S.
GAAP. The following adjustments have been made to Alumina’s carrying value of “Investment in associates” in Alumina’s balance
sheet and “Share of net profit (loss) of associate accounted for using the equity method” for purposes of the pro forma presentation
in the IFRS to U.S. GAAP adjustments column.

Asset retirement obligations

Under the IFRS Accounting Standards, asset retirement obligations (AROs) are recorded for dismantling, removal and restoration
of certain refineries when a constructive obligation exists. Under U.S. GAAP, these AROs are recorded upon management'’s
decision to permanently close and demolish certain structures.

Additionally, the IFRS Accounting Standards requires remeasurement of ARO liabilities using current market discount rates. Under
U.S. GAAP, AROs are measured using the discount rate that existed when the liability, or relevant portion, was initially recorded.

Gas transmission rights

As part of a previous sale transaction of an equity investment, AWAC maintained access to transmission capacity for gas supply to
certain of its refineries. Under the IFRS Accounting Standards, the gas transmission rights are recognised as a deferred asset and
liability at inception, net of deferred taxes. The deferred asset is then amortised over the useful life of the contract and the liability
is subsequently revalued to current market pricing less any payments made for consumption. Under U.S. GAAP, gas transmission
rights are not required to be recognised.

Properties, plants, and equipment, net

Under U.S. GAAP, the functional currency of AWAC's operations in Brazil was the U.S. dollar while the currency was hyperinflationary,
while under the IFRS Accounting Standards the functional currency remained the Brazilian real. As a result, the U.S. GAAP basis for
properties, plants and equipment is higher than the IFRS Accounting Standards basis. Accordingly, depreciation is higher under U.S.
GAAP than the IFRS Accounting Standards.

Mining rights intangibles
Upon the adoption of the IFRS Accounting Standards in 2004, Alumina recognised intangible assets related to mineral rights for

bauxite mining, which were amortised over the applicable period. Under U.S. GAAP, intangible assets related to mineral rights are
not required to be recognised.

Retirement benefit obligations

Under the IFRS Accounting Standards, gains and losses related to defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in
accumulated other comprehensive loss and are not subsequently recorded within profit or loss. Under U.S. GAAP gains and
losses related to defined benefit plans are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income until amortised into earnings.
The actuarial assumptions also differ.
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Other difference

When Alcoa’s management completes a final review of Alumina’s accounting policies, additional differences may be identified
that, when conformed, could have an impact on the unaudited pro forma combined financial information.

3) Transaction Accounting Adjustments

Alumina Limited

The adjustment represents the elimination of Alumina’s equity earnings of $119 million (A) for year ended 31 December 2023,
and the elimination of the corresponding IFRS to U.S. GAAP difference of $8 million (A) for the year ended 31 December 2023, as
described in Note 2. Additionally, the adjustment represents the elimination of Alcoa’s noncontrolling interest of $122 million (A)

for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Table 7.7.3

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINED GROUP PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED
OPERATIONS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The following table reconciles the Combined Group Pro Forma Statement of Consolidated Operations with Alcoa and Alumina
tement of Operations for the three months ended 31 March 2024.

C Alumina
O Limited
Alcoa Alumina IFRS to U.S. Transaction U.S. GAAP

For the three months ended 31 March 2024 Corporation Limited GAAP Accounting Pro forma
®J5$ millions) U.S. GAAP IFRS'" Adjustments? Adjustments® Note(s) Combined
Ugales 2,599 - - - 2,599
—

Cost of goods sold (exclusive of expenses below) 2,404 - - - 2,404
CGeIIing, general administrative, and other expenses 60 6 - - 66
Qesearch and development expenses 11 - - - 11
Ujsvision for depreciation, depletion, and 161 - - - 161

ortization
@estructuring and other charges, net 202 - - - 202
Qr!erest expense 27 6 - - 33
Bther expenses (income), net 59 42 6 (48) (A) 59
I ITotaI costs and expenses 2,924 54 6 (48) 2,936

(Loss) income before income taxes (325) (54) (6) 48 (337)

(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (18) - - - (18)

Net (loss) income (307) (54) (6) 48 (319)

Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest (55) - - 55 (A) -

Net (loss) income after noncontrolling interest (252) (54) (6) (7) (319)

Notes:

1) Reclassifications

Alcoa’'s management performed a review of the accounting policies of Alumina to determine if differences in accounting policies
require reclassification or adjustment and did not identify any material difference in accounting policy.
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The following reclassifications were made to Alumina’s historical statement of operations to conform to Alcoa’s historical

presentation:

Alumina Alumina
Historical Reclassi- Historical
Alumina Financial Statement Line Amount fications Reclassified Alcoa Financial Statement Line
Revenue from continuing operations - - - Sales
Share of net profit/(loss) of associates (42) 42 -
accounted for using the equity method
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) - - -
- (42) (42) Other expenses (income), net
Finance costs (6) - (6) Interest expense
General and administrative expenses (6) - (6) Selling, general administrative,
and other expenses
Income tax expense - - - Provision for income taxes
Profit/(loss) for the year (54) - (54) Net (loss) income for the year

2) IFRS to US GAAP Adjustments

Refer to Note 2 in Table 7.7.2. These IFRS to U.S. GAAP adjustments have been consistently applied to the table above.

3) Transaction Accounting Adjustments

The adjustment represents the elimination of Alumina’s equity earnings of $42 million (A) for the quarter ended 31 March 2024,
and the elimination of the corresponding IFRS to U.S. GAAP difference of $6 million (A) for the quarter ended 31 March 2024, as
described in Note 2. Additionally, the adjustment represents the elimination of Alcoa’s noncontrolling interest of $55 million (A)

for the quarter ended 31 March 2024.
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(d) Combined Group Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet

Table 7.7.4

Alumina Limited

RECONCILIATION OF THE COMBINED GROUP PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT

31 MARCH 2024

The following table presents the Combined Group Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet as 31 March 2024.

Alumina
Limited
Alcoa Alumina IFRS to U.S. Transaction U.S. GAAP
Corporation Limited GAAP Accounting Pro forma
As at 31 March 2024 (US$ millions) U.S. GAAP IFRS' Adjustments? Adjustments® Note(s) Combined
Assets
rent assets:
Eash and cash equivalents 1,358 3 - (66) (B) 1,295
Geceivables from customers 869 - - - 869
thher receivables 132 - - - 132
mventories 2,048 - - - 2,048
—
_l-)air value of derivative instruments 22 - - - 22
@epaid expenses and other current assets 452 1 - - 453
G)tal current assets 4,881 4 - (66) 4,819
8roperties, plants, and equipment, net 6,577 2 - - 6,579
[4
Lh\westments 969 1,683 11 (1,694) (C) 969
eferred income taxes 295 - - - 295
Fair value of derivative instruments 1 - - - 1
L irvalu ivative instru
@ther noncurrent assets 1,605 - - - 1,605
LL'FotaI assets 14,328 1,689 11 (1,760) 14,268
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade 1,586 2 - - 1,588
Accrued compensation and retirement costs 331 - - - 331
Taxes, including income taxes 94 - - - (F) 94
Fair value of derivative instruments 205 - - - 205
Other current liabilities 746 1 - - 747
Long-term debt due within one year 79 - - 363 (E) 442
Total current liabilities 3,041 3 - 363 3,407
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Alumina
Limited
Alcoa Alumina IFRS to U.S. Transaction U.S. GAAP

Corporation Limited GAAP Accounting Pro forma
As at 31 March 2024 (US$ millions) U.S. GAAP IFRS'" Adjustments? Adjustments® Note(s) Combined
Long-term debt, less amount due within one year 2,469 363 - (363) (E) 2,469
Accrued pension benefits 267 - - - 267
Accrued other postretirement benefits 437 - - - 437
Asset retirement obligations 718 - - - 718
Environmental remediation 197 - - - 197
Fair value of derivative instruments 925 - - - 925
Noncurrent income taxes 134 - - - 134
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 606 2 - - 608
Total liabilities 8,794 368 - - 9,162
Contingencies and commitments
Equity
Shareholders' equity:
Common stock 2 - - 1 (D) 3
Preferred stock - - - - (D) -
Additional capital 9,184 2,707 - (523) (B), (C), 11,368

(D)

Accumulated (deficit) earnings (1,564) 74 11 (121)  (B),(C) (1,600)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,628) (1,460) - 423 (C) (4,665)
Total shareholders’ equity 3,994 1,321 11 (220) 5,106
Noncontrolling interest 1,540 - - (1,540) (C) -
Total equity 5,534 1,321 11 (1,760) 5,106
Total liabilities and equity 14,328 1,689 11 (1,760) 14,268

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with section 6.2(c)(vii) in respect of the San Cipridn Smelter and section 8

(Risk factors) where certain identified risks could have a material impact on the balance sheet if they were to occur.

Notes:

1) Reclassifications

Alcoa’s management performed a review of the accounting policies of Alumina to determine if differences in accounting policies
require reclassification or adjustment and did not identify any material difference in accounting policy.
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Alumina Limited

The following reclassifications were made to Alumina’s historical Consolidated Balance Sheet to conform to Alcoa'’s historical

presentation:

Alumina Alumina
Historical Reclassi- Historical
Alumina Financial Statement Line Amount fications Reclassified Alcoa Financial Statement Line
Cash and cash equivalents 3 - 3 Cash and cash equivalents
Other assets 1 - 1 Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Right of use asset 2 - 2 Properties, plants, and equipment, net
Investment in associates 1,683 - 1,683 Investments
>Pa‘yables 2 - 2 Accounts payable, trade
===Povisions and other liabilities (current) 1 - 1 Other current liabilities
dorrowings 363 - 363 Long-term debt, less amount due within one year
le)ease liability 1 - 1 Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits
WOvisions (non-current) 1 - 1 Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits
jet assets 1,321 - 1,321
Eontributed equity 2,707 - 2,707  Additional capital
Eetained earnings 74 - 74 Accumulated (deficit) earnings
Gjreign currency translation reserve (1,527) 1,527 -
(L&ther reserves 67 (67) -
q) - (1,460) (1,460) Accumulated other comprehensive loss
QO[aI equity 1,321 - 1,321 Total equity

-

Q) IFRS to U.S. GAAP Adjustments

fer to note 2 in table 7.7.2. These IFRS to U.S. GAAP adjustments have been consistently applied to the table above. The
adjustments to the balance sheet are all related to the Investments balance as a result of the underlying investment being
accounted for under the equity method by Alumina.

3) Transaction Accounting Adjustments

(B) Additional capital includes a decrease of $30 million to reflect the impact of Alcoa’s estimated transaction costs not yet
incurred, with an offset to Cash. Accumulated (deficit) earnings includes a decrease of $30 million to reflect the impact of
Alumina’s transaction costs not yet incurred by Alumina, and the cash settlement of obligations under Alumina’s Employee Share
Plan, and $6 million for other one-time charges not yet incurred by Alcoa, with an offset to Cash.

(C) The adjustment reflects the elimination of Alumina’s investment of $1,683 million and the IFRS to U.S. GAAP adjustment of
$11 million as described in Note 2 under table 7.7.2. Additionally, the adjustment reflects the elimination of Alumina’s Additional
capital of $2,707 million, Alumina’s Accumulated earnings of $44 million (after the $30 million adjustment above) and the IFRS to
U.S. GAAP adjustment of $11 million and Alumina’s Accumulated other comprehensive loss of $1,460 million. Additional capital
also reflects an adjustment of $362 million to reflect Alcoa’s acquisition of Alumina’s remaining assets and liabilities (primarily
long-term debt of $363 million).

This adjustment also eliminates Alcoa’s Noncontrolling interest of $1,540 million and Other comprehensive loss of $1,037 million
allocated to Noncontrolling interest, with an offset to Additional capital.

(D) The adjustment to Common stock and Preferred Stock represents the issuance of 78,953,476 Alcoa common shares at $0.01
par value and the issuance of 3,860,512 preferred non-voting shares at $0.01 par value, respectively, with an offset to Additional
Capital.
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(E) Alumina’s revolving credit facility contains a clause that allows the majority lenders to call the outstanding indebtedness
upon a change of control if Alumina does not elect the option to prepay all outstanding loans and any other accrued amounts
(including interest) in connection with such change of control. This adjustment reflects the reclassification from Long-term debt,
less amount due within one year to Long-term debt, due within one year as a result of this change of control clause. Other than
the principal and interest, no other material fees are expected with this repayment. See section 7.3(j) for further detail.

(F) Management will undertake a detailed analysis to determine the tax implications of consolidating Alcoa Bidder with the Alcoa
Australia tax consolidated group. At this stage, Alcoa management has not made a decision on whether to consolidate for income
tax purposes but given the tax consolidation is a choice, no adverse implications in respect of Australian tax consolidation are
expected.

Purchase Consideration and Allocation

Based on Alcoa'’s closing share price as at the Last Practicable Date, the exchange ratio of 0.02854 implies a value of A$1.90
converted at US$0.6650 per Alumina Share and purchase consideration of $3.7billion. The purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase Price Consideration and Allocation

US$ millions’

Alumina Limited common shares (excluding shares held by CITIC eligible for preferred stock conversion)? 2,766
Alumina Limited common shares held by CITIC eligible for preferred stock conversion? 135
Total Alumina Limited common shares outstanding* 2,902
Exchange ratio 0.02854
Alcoa common stock issued in exchange 79
Alcoa non-voting preferred stock issued in exchange 4
Total Alcoa stock issued in exchange 83
Alcoa closing share price® $44.27
Purchase consideration paid at closing $3,666°

1. Amounts in millions, except exchange ratio and share price data. 2. Alumina shareholders will receive Alcoa stock at an exchange ratio of 0.02854. 3. Certain
CITIC ownership of Alumina shares will be converted to Alcoa non-voting preferred stock at the exchange ratio of 0.02854. 4. Represents the number of Alumina
Limited Shares issued and outstanding as of 31 May 2024. 5. Represents the closing price of Alcoa common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on 31 May
2024. 6. The final purchase consideration will be based on the closing price of Alcoa Shares on the Implementation Date, which could differ materially from the
Alcoa Share price used to estimate the purchase consideration.

Accounting Treatment

The Transaction consists in substance the acquisition of Alumina’s noncontrolling interest in AWAC and the assumption of
Alumina’s indebtedness. The Transaction will be accounted for as an equity transaction under U.S. GAAP in accordance with ASC
810. The financial condition and results of operations of Alcoa after closing of the Scheme will include the financial condition and
results of operations of Alumina.
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The following table sets forth the allocation of the total purchase consideration to the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, based on Alumina’s balance sheet on 31 March 2024:

Purchase price calculation

US$ millions Amount
Purchase consideration 3,666
Cash and cash equivalents 3
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1
Properties, plants, and equipment, net 2
>To\tal assets 6
===Accounts payable, trade 2
dther current liabilities 1
le)ong-term debt due within one year 363
Wther noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 2

3)ta| liabilities 368

Eoncontrolling interest 1,540

Qet assets acquired 1,178

Odditional capital 2,488

2

S=Fhe final purchase consideration will be based on the actual closing price per share of Alcoa Shares on the Implementation Date,
hich could differ materially from the assumed Alcoa Share price used to estimate purchase consideration. No effect has been
iven to any other new Alumina Shares or other equity awards that may be issued or granted subsequent to the Last Practicable

te and before the Effective Date. Purchase consideration in excess of net assets acquired offsets against the impact of shares
issued to Alumina shareholders in Additional capital.

-
@) Earnings per share

The pro forma combined basic and diluted earnings per share calculations are based on the combined basic and diluted average
ares of Alcoa and Alumina.

The pro forma basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding are a combination of historical Alcoa Shares and the New
Alcoa Shares to be issued as part of the Transaction at an exchange ratio of 0.02854 New Alcoa Shares for each Alumina Share
outstanding. Certain Alumina Shares owned by Bestbuy will receive, in lieu of New Alcoa Shares, 0.02854 shares of New Alcoa
Preferred Shares.
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Quarter Ended Year Ended
31 March 2024 31 December 2023

Pro Forma Weighted Average Shares

Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding-historical 179,285,359 178,311,096
Common stock issued as part of the Transaction 78,953,476 78,953,476
Pro forma weighted average number of common shares - Basic 258,238,835 257,264,572
Preferred stock issued as part of the Transaction 3,860,512 3,860,512
Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding-historical 179,285,359 178,311,096
Common stock issued as part of the Transaction 78,953,476 78,953,476
Pro forma weighted average number of common shares - Diluted 258,238,835 257,264,572
Preferred stock issued as part of the Transaction 3,860,512 3,860,512

Pro Forma Earnings per Share

Pro forma net loss attributable to common shareholders (in USD millions) $(319) $(804)
Basic - pro forma $(1.24) $(3.13)
Diluted - pro forma $(1.24) $(3.13)

(f) Notes to the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information

The Alumina Financial Information included in section 5.3 of this Scheme Booklet has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles of AAS issued by the AASB, which are consistent with IFRS issued by the IASB.

Certain differences exist between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, which are material to understanding the Combined Group Pro Forma
Financial Information included in this Scheme Booklet. Alumina’s historical financial information has been adjusted, in accordance
with the SEC's Rule 11-02 of Regulation S-X, for differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP. These adjustments are based on a
preliminary analysis by Alcoa’s management. The principal differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP which are material to the
preparation of the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information and required reclassification or adjustment are described in
section 7.7(c). This summary does not include all differences that exist between IFRS and U.S. GAAP and is not intended to
provide a comprehensive listing of all such differences specifically related to Alumina, Alcoa, or the industry in which Alumina and
Alcoa operate. When Alcoa’s management completes a final review of Alumina’s accounting policies, additional differences may
be identified that, when conformed, could have an impact on the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information.

The differences described above in Note 1 and Note 2 to each of the reflect only those differences in accounting policies in force
at the time of the preparation of the Alumina Financial Information and the Alcoa Financial Information included in this Scheme
Booklet. There has been no attempt to identify future differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP as the result of prescribed changes
in accounting standards, transactions or events that may occur in the future.

Adjustments have also been made to the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial Information to reflect certain preliminary
purchase price accounting and other pro forma adjustments. These adjustments are described above in Note 3 Transaction
Accounting Adjustments.
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8.1 RISKS RELATING TO THE SCHEME

In considering the Scheme, Alumina Shareholders should be
aware that there are a number of risks, both general and
specific, associated with the Scheme. This section 8 describes
risks associated with:

« the implementation of the Scheme (Section 8.2);

- the business and operations of the Combined Group
(Section 8.3);

« Alcoa Shares and Alcoa CDIs (Section 8.4); and

+ Alumina if the Scheme is not implemented (Section 8.5).

A number of these risks are, or will be, risks to which Alumina
Shareholders are already exposed. However, the nature of the
Combined Group's business will differ from that of Alumina as
a standalone business and Alumina Shareholders may be
subject to additional risks in respect of the Combined Group.
These risks should be considered in conjunction with other
information contained in this Scheme Booklet and do not take
into account the individual investment objectives, financial
situation, position or particular needs of Alumina Shareholders.

This section 8 is a summary only and should not be relied on as
an exhaustive list of all risks that Alumina Shareholders may
face. There may be additional risks and uncertainties not
currently known to Alumina or Alcoa or that are currently
considered immaterial, which may become important factors
that can have a material adverse effect on the Combined
Group's operating and financial performance.

8.2 RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE SCHEME

(a) Market value of the Scheme Consideration

If the Scheme is implemented, Scheme Participants will receive
the Scheme Consideration, comprising 0.02854 New Alcoa
Shares (including in the form of New Alcoa CDls) or where
applicable, New Alcoa Preferred Shares, for each Alumina
Share (unless the Scheme Participant is an Ineligible Foreign
Shareholder, in which case they will receive their pro rata share
of the Net Cash Proceeds, instead of the Scheme
Consideration). This exchange ratio was fixed in the Scheme
Implementation Deed and will not be adjusted under the
terms of the Scheme Implementation Deed to reflect changes
in the market price of Alumina Shares, Alcoa Shares or the
AUD/USD exchange rate, or any other event before the
Implementation Date. As a result, the implied value of the
Scheme Consideration will vary over time. Therefore, because
the exchange ratio is fixed, prior to implementation of the
Scheme, Alumina Shareholders cannot be sure of the market
value of the Scheme Consideration that will be provided on
the Implementation Date.

(b) Conditions Precedent

The Scheme is subject to a number of Conditions Precedent as
summarised in section 3.5. These Conditions Precedent
include obtaining all Regulatory Approvals. Certain Conditions
Precedent are beyond the control of Alcoa and Alumina. There
can be no guarantee that the Conditions Precedent will be
satisfied or waived in a timely manner or at all. Any failure or
delay in satisfying the Conditions Precedent could prevent or
delay the implementation of the Scheme, which could reduce
the benefits that Alcoa and Alumina expect to obtain from the
Scheme, increase the costs associated with the Scheme and
impede successful integration of Alcoa and Alumina’s
businesses.
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(c) Court approval

There is a risk that the Court may not approve the Scheme or
that the approval of the Court is delayed. In particular, if there
is a material change in circumstances between the Scheme
Meeting and the Second Court Date, then the Court will have
regard to that change in deciding how it should proceed. If
such changes are so important that they materially alter the
Scheme, there is a risk that the Court may not approve the
Scheme at the Second Court Hearing.

(d) Transaction costs

Both Alcoa and Alumina have, and will, incur significant costs
associated with the Scheme. Fees and expenses related to the
Scheme include financial adviser fees, filing fees, taxes and
stamp duty, legal and accounting fees, and regulatory fees.
Some of these fees will be paid regardless of whether the
Scheme is implemented or becomes Effective.

(e) Change in risk and investment profile

After implementation of the Scheme, Scheme Participants
(other than Ineligible Foreign Shareholders) will be exposed to
additional risks relating to Alcoa, and to certain additional risks
relating to the Combined Group and the integration of the two
businesses as set out in sections 8.3 and 8.4. Those risks may
be different from or additional to those related to Alumina and
you may prefer the risks and investment profile of the Alumina
business as a standalone entity. Whilst the operations of
Alumina and Alcoa are similar in a number of ways, the
business mix, portfolio of customers, capital structure and size
of the Combined Group will be different from that of Alumina
currently. In addition, recourse to Alcoa for potential previous
legal breaches of its obligations as operator of the AWAC joint
venture would not be available to Alumina Shareholders
following implementation of the Scheme as Alumina would be
a wholly owned indirect Subsidiary of Alcoa.

(f) Taxation consequences

If the Scheme is implemented, there may be tax consequences
for Scheme Participants. The tax consequences will vary
depending on a number of factors, including place of residence
for tax purposes and individual tax circumstances. A summary
of the general Australian income tax, stamp duty and GST
consequences for Scheme Participants is set out in section 9.

(g) Differing disclosure requirements

Alcoa is a US issuer that is required to prepare and file its
periodic and other filings in accordance with US securities
laws. As a result, certain information about Alcoa and the
Combined Group that is contained in this Scheme Booklet was
prepared in accordance with US disclosure requirements,
rather than the disclosure requirements that would apply to
Alumina or other Australian issuers. Because US disclosure
requirements are different from Australian disclosure
requirements, the information about Alcoa contained in this
Scheme Booklet may not be comparable to similar information
available about Alumina or other Australian issuers.

(h) Pro forma financial information

The Combined Group Pro Forma Historical Information
contained in this Scheme Booklet is presented for illustrative
purposes only and may not be an indication of Alcoa’s financial
condition or results of operations following the Scheme for
several reasons. For example, the Combined Group Pro Forma
Historical Financial Information has been derived from the
historical financial statements of Alcoa and Alumina and
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certain adjustments and assumptions have been made
regarding Alcoa after giving effect to the Scheme. The
information upon which these adjustments and assumptions
have been made is preliminary, and these kinds of adjustments
and assumptions are difficult to make with complete accuracy.
In addition, the Combined Group Pro Forma Financial
Information does not reflect all costs that are expected to be
incurred by Alcoa in connection with the Scheme. For example,
the impact of any incremental costs incurred in integrating
Alcoa and Alumina is not reflected in the Combined Group Pro
Forma Historical Financial Information. As a result, the actual
financial condition and results of the Combined Group
following the implementation of the Scheme may not be
consistent with the Combined Group Pro Forma Historical
Information. Additionally, the purchase price used in preparing
the Combined Group Pro Forma Historical Information is
}ised on the closing market price of Alcoa Shares as at the
= LaSt Practicable Date, which may be materially different from
de closing price of Alcoa Shares and the exchange rate
etween the US dollar and the Australian dollar on the
Qﬁplementation Date. The assumptions used in preparing the
ombined Group Pro Forma Historical Financial Information
ay not prove to be accurate, and other factors may affect
G;'ie financial condition and results of the Combined Group
Ufyllowing the implementation of the Scheme.

:E) Integration

=N € Transaction and the integration of Alumina will subject
cd!)coa to liabilities that may exist at Alumina or may arise in
nnection with the completion of the Transaction. The
ransaction and the integration of Alumina with Alcoa may
ose special risks, including write-offs and unanticipated costs
dr charges. There can be no assurance that the integration will
(@e accomplished effectively or in a timely manner. In addition,
e Transaction and the integration of Alumina will subject
choa to liabilities (including potential tax liabilities) that may
G§<ist at Alumina or may arise in connection with the completion
f the Transaction, some of which may be unknown. Although
leoa and its advisers have conducted due diligence
on Alumina, there can be no guarantee that Alcoa is aware of
[ liabilities of Alumina. These liabilities, and any additional
ks and uncertainties related to the Transaction not currently
nown to Alcoa or that Alcoa may currently deem immaterial
LL;r unlikely to occur, could negatively impact Alcoa’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

(j) Failure to complete the Transaction

Any delay in the completion of the Transaction or any
uncertainty about the completion of the Transaction may
adversely affect the price of Alcoa common stock or have
an adverse impact on Alcoa’s business and operations.

If the Transaction is not completed for any reason or
completion is delayed, Alcoa’s ongoing business may be
adversely affected and, without realising any of the benefits
of having completed the Transaction, Alcoa may be subject
to a number of risks, including the following:

+ negative reactions from the financial markets;

« incurring and paying significant expenses in connection with
the Transaction, such as financial adviser fees, filing fees,
legal and accounting fees, soliciting fees, regulatory fees and
other related expenses, many of which will become due and
payable regardless of whether the Transaction is completed;
and
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nonpayment or delay in payment of any amounts due
under any shareholder loan to AWAC made pursuant to
the Transaction Agreement in accordance with the terms
of such loan.

In addition, Alcoa could be subject to litigation related to any
failure to complete the Transaction in a timely manner or
litigation seeking to require Alcoa to perform its obligations
under the Transaction Agreement, the Scheme or the Deed
Poll.

8.3 RISKS RELATING TO THE COMBINED GROUP
(a) Integration

The failure to integrate the businesses of Alcoa and Alumina
successfully in the expected time frame would adversely affect
Alcoa’s future results.

The success of the Scheme will depend, in part, on the ability
of Alcoa to realise the anticipated benefits from combining the
businesses of Alcoa and Alumina. Alcoa’s ability to realise
these anticipated benefits depends on the successful
integration of the businesses of Alcoa and Alumina.

Potential difficulties that may be encountered in the integration
process include the following:

- unforeseen delays or regulatory conditions associated with
the implementation of the Scheme; and

- effecting potential actions that may be required in
connection with obtaining Regulatory Approvals.

(b) Business relationships

Alcoa’s and Alumina’s business relationships may be subject
to disruption due to uncertainty associated with the Scheme,
which could have an adverse effect on Alcoa’s and Alumina’s
results of operations, cash flows and financial position.

Parties with which Alcoa and Alumina do business may
experience uncertainty associated with the Scheme. Alcoa’s
and Alumina'’s relationships may be subject to disruption as
persons with whom Alcoa and/or Alumina, as applicable, have
a business relationship may delay or defer certain business
decisions or might decide to seek to terminate, change or
renegotiate their relationships with Alcoa or Alumina, as
applicable, or consider entering into business relationships
with parties other than Alcoa or Alumina. These disruptions
could have an adverse effect on the results of operations, cash
flows and financial position of Alcoa, Alumina or the Combined
Group following the implementation of the Scheme. The risk,
and adverse effect, of any disruption could be exacerbated by
a delay in the implementation of the Scheme or the
termination of the Scheme Implementation Deed.

(c) Transaction costs

Alcoa and Alumina will incur significant transaction and
combination-related costs in connection with the Scheme.

Alcoa and Alumina expect to incur significant costs associated
with the Scheme and combining the operations of the two
companies. Alcoa’s fees and expenses related to the Scheme
include financial adviser fees, filing fees, legal and accounting
fees and regulatory fees, some of which will be paid regardless
of whether the Scheme is implemented. Alcoa'’s costs in
connection with the integration of the companies is difficult to
predict before Alcoa begins the integration process, and Alcoa
may incur unanticipated costs as a consequence of difficulties
arising from its integration efforts.
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(d) Currency risk

Following the completion of the Transaction, Alcoa’s
exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
will be increased.

Alcoa is currently subject to some foreign currency exchange
risk because it conducts business operations in several foreign
countries, including Australia, through its foreign subsidiaries
or affiliates, which conduct business in their respective local
currencies. Following the implementation of the Scheme,
Alcoa’s international operations will account for a more
significant portion of Alcoa’s overall operations than they do
presently and Alcoa’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates will increase. Because Alcoa'’s financial
statements will continue to be presented in US dollars
subsequent to the implementation of the Scheme, the local
currencies will be translated into US dollars at the applicable
exchange rates for inclusion in Alcoa’s consolidated financial
statements, thereby increasing the foreign exchange
translation risk.

(e) Due diligence

Alcoa’s due diligence of Alumina may have failed to identify
key issues that could have an adverse effect on Alcoa’s
performance and financial condition.

Before executing the Scheme Implementation Deed, Alcoa
and Alumina undertook a period of mutual due diligence for
the purpose of evaluating the merits and negotiating the terms
of the Scheme. Although Alcoa and Alumina decided to
proceed with the Scheme following that due diligence exercise
and recognising that Alumina holds only a 40% non-operating
interest in AWAC which Alcoa manages and operates, there is
a risk that the due diligence undertaken was insufficient or
failed to identify or appreciate the impact of key issues or
identify all liabilities of either Alumina or Alcoa. These
liabilities, and any additional risks and uncertainties related to
the Scheme not currently known to Alcoa or Alumina, or that
Alcoa may currently deem immaterial or unlikely to occur,
could negatively impact the Combined Group's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

(f) Alcoa Shares

The issuance of the New Alcoa Shares and the New Alcoa CDls
in the Scheme could have the effect of depressing the market
price for Alcoa Shares.

In addition, Alumina Shareholders may decide not to hold and
instead to sell the New Alcoa Shares or the New Alcoa CDls
they receive as a result of the implementation of the Scheme,
which could have the effect of depressing the market price for
Alcoa Shares. The price of Alcoa Shares may fluctuate
significantly following implementation of the Scheme,
including as a result of factors over which Alcoa and Alumina
have no control.

The financial analyses and forecasts considered by Alcoa and
its financial adviser may not be realised, which may adversely
affect the market price of Alcoa Shares following the
Transaction.

In performing its financial analysis and rendering its opinion
regarding the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the
exchange ratio to Alcoa, J.P. Morgan, financial adviser to Alcoa,
relied on, with Alcoa’s consent, among other things, certain
unaudited projections of Alcoa’s financial results and certain
unaudited projections of Alumina’s financial results prepared
by Alcoa based on Alcoa’s knowledge, as the operator of
AWAC, of those assets and based on publicly available
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estimates and assumptions deemed appropriate by Alcoa’s
management and extrapolations therefrom. These projections
were not prepared with a view toward public disclosure, or
with a view toward compliance with the guidelines established
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for
preparation and presentation of prospective financial data,
published guidelines of the SEC regarding forward-looking
statements and the use of non-U.S. GAAP measures or U.S.
GAAP. These projections are inherently based on various
estimates and assumptions available at the time, that are
subject to the judgment of those preparing them. These
projections are also subject to risks and other factors, such
as significant company performance, geological, general
business, economic, competitive, industry and other
uncertainties and contingencies, all of which are difficult or
impossible to predict and many of which are beyond the
control of Alcoa and Alumina. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that Alcoa’s financial condition or results of
operations will be consistent with those set forth in such
analyses and forecasts, which could have a material adverse
effect on the market price of Alcoa Shares following the
Transaction.

(9) Industry and global market risks

The aluminium industry and aluminium end-use markets are
highly cyclical and are influenced by several factors, including
global economic conditions, the Chinese market, and overall
consumer confidence.

The nature of the industries in which the Alcoa customers
operate causes demand for its products to be cyclical, creating
potential uncertainty regarding future profitability. The
demand for aluminium is sensitive to, and impacted by,
demand for the finished goods manufactured by customers in
industries, such as the commercial construction, transportation,
and electrical industries, which may change as a result of
factors beyond the Combined Group’s control. The demand
for aluminium is also highly correlated to economic growth,
and the Combined Group could be adversely affected by large
or sudden shifts in the global inventory of aluminium and the
resulting market price impacts.

Alcoa believes the long-term prospects for aluminium and
aluminium products are positive; however, Alcoa is unable to
predict the future course of industry variables or the strength
of the global economy and the effects of government
intervention. Alcoa’s business, financial condition, and results
of operations may be materially affected by the conditions in
the global economy generally, including inflationary and
recessionary conditions, and in global capital markets,
including in the end markets and geographic regions in which
Alcoa and its customers operate. Many of the markets in which
Alcoa’s customers participate are also cyclical in nature and
experience significant fluctuations in demand for their
products based on economic and geopolitical conditions,
consumer demand, raw material and energy costs, foreign
exchange rates, and government actions. Many of these factors
are beyond Alcoa’s control.

The Chinese market is a significant source of global demand
for, and supply of, commodities, including aluminium. Chinese
production rates of aluminium, both from new construction
and installed smelting capacity, can fluctuate based on
Chinese government policy, such as the level of enforcement
of production capacity limits and/or licenses and
environmental policies. In addition, industry overcapacity,

a sustained slowdown in Chinese aluminium demand, or a
significant slowdown in other markets, that is not offset by
decreases in supply of aluminium or increased aluminium
demand in emerging economies, such as India, Brazil, and
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several Southeast Asian countries, could have an adverse
effect on the global supply and demand for aluminium and
aluminium prices. Also, changes in the aluminium market can
cause changes in the alumina and bauxite markets, which
could also materially affect the Combined Group's business,
financial condition, or results of operations. As a result of these
factors, the Combined Group's profitability will be subject to
significant fluctuation.

A decline in consumer and business confidence and spending,
severe reductions in the availability and cost of credit, and
volatility in the capital and credit markets could adversely
affect the business and economic environment in which the
Combined Group will continue to operate and the profitability
of the Combined Group's business. The Combined Group will
also continue to be exposed to risks associated with the
creditworthiness of the Combined Group's suppliers and
tomers. If the availability of credit to fund or support the
===gontinuation and expansion of the Combined Group's
customers’ business operations is curtailed or if the cost of
at credit is increased, the resulting inability of the Combined
roup’s customers or of their customers to either access credit
or absorb the increased cost of that credit could adversely
ect the Combined Group's business by reducing the
ombined Group's sales or by increasing the Combined
roup’s exposure to losses from uncollectible customer
qccount& These conditions and a disruption of the credit
arkets could also result in financial instability of some of
——the Combined Group's suppliers and customers. The
nsequences of such adverse effects could include the
terruption of production at the facilities of the Combined
roup’s customers, the reduction, delay or cancellation of
ustomer orders, delays or interruptions of the supply of raw
daterials the Combined Group purchases, and bankruptcy of
wstomers, suppliers, or other creditors. These are risks that
WAC is exposed to irrespective of the Scheme, however
LELJrren*cly Alumina and Alcoa each have exposure in their
rgspective ownership proportions of AWAC. Following
plementation of the Scheme, the Combined Group will be
dhy exposed to such risks which could adversely affect the
Combined Group's business, financial condition, and results
operations.

e Combined Group could be materially adversely affected
I I by volatility and declines in aluminium and alumina demand
d prices, including global, regional, and product-specific
prices, or by significant changes in production costs which are
linked to LME or other commodities.

The overall price of primary aluminium consists of several
components: (i) the underlying base metal component, which
is typically based on quoted prices from the LME; (ii) the
regional premium, which comprises the incremental price over
the base LME component that is associated with the physical
delivery of metal to a particular region (e.g., the Midwest
premium for metal sold in the United States); and (iii) the
product premium, which represents the incremental price for
receiving physical metal in a particular shape (e.g., foundry,
billet, slab, rod, etc.) and/or alloy. Each of the above three
components has its own drivers of variability.

The LME price volatility is typically driven by macroeconomic
factors (including geopolitical instability), global supply and
demand of aluminium (including expectations for growth,
contraction, and the level of global inventories), and trading
activity of financial investors.

Regional premiums tend to vary based on the supply of
and demand for metal in a particular region, associated
transportation costs, and import tariffs. Product premiums
generally are a function of supply and demand for a given
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primary aluminium shape and alloy combination in a particular
region. Periods of industry overcapacity may also resultin a
weak aluminium pricing environment.

A sustained weak LME aluminium pricing environment,
deterioration in LME aluminium prices, or a decrease in
regional premiums or product premiums could have a material
adverse effect on the Combined Group's business, financial
condition, or results of operations. Similarly, the Combined
Group's operating results will be affected by significant
changes in key costs of production that are commodity or
LME-linked.

Most of Alcoa’s alumina contracts contain two pricing
components: (1) the API price basis and (2) a negotiated
adjustment basis that takes into account various factors,
including freight, quality, customer location, and market
conditions. Because the APl component can exhibit significant
volatility due to market exposure, revenues associated with the
Combined Group's alumina operations will be exposed to
market pricing which could have a material adverse effect on
the Combined Group's business, financial condition, or results
of operations.

Market-driven balancing of global aluminium supply and
demand may be disrupted by non-market forces.

In response to market-driven factors relating to the global
supply and demand of aluminium and alumina, including
energy prices and environmental policies, other industry
producers have independently undertaken to reduce or
increase production. Changes in production may be delayed
or impaired by the ability to secure, or the terms of long term
contracts, to buy energy or raw materials.

The impact of non-market forces on global aluminium
industry capacity, such as political instability or pressures

or governmental policies in certain countries relating to
employment, the environment, or maintaining or further
developing industry self-sufficiency, may affect overall supply
and demand in the aluminium industry. For example, the
ongoing active conflict between Russia and Ukraine could
adversely impact macroeconomic conditions and result in
heightened economic sanctions from the US and the
international community in a manner that adversely affects
the Combined Group's industry. The disruption of the market-
driven balancing of the global supply and demand of
aluminium, a resulting weak pricing environment and margin
compression may adversely affect the Combined Group's
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The increasingly competitive and complex global markets
exposes the Combined Group to risks, including legal and
regulatory risks and changes in conditions that would be
beyond the control of the Combined Group, that could
adversely affect the business, financial condition, or results
of operations.

Alcoa has operations or activities in numerous countries and
regions, including the United States, Australia, Brazil, Canada,
Europe, Guinea, and Saudi Arabia. The risks associated with
Alcoa’s global operations include:

geopolitical risks, such as political instability, coups d'états,
civil unrest, strikes and work stoppages, expropriation,
nationalisation of properties by a government, imposition of
sanctions, changes to import or export regulations and fees,
renegotiation, revocation or nullification of existing
agreements, leases, licenses, and permits, and changes to
mining royalty rules or laws;

economic and commercial instability risks, including those
caused by sovereign and private debt default, corruption,
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and changes in local government laws, regulations, and
policies, such as those related to tariffs and trade barriers,
trade tensions, taxation, exchange controls, employment
regulations, and repatriation of earnings;

weakening macroeconomic conditions;

.

decreasing manufacturing activity, especially in the global
automotive sector;

.

war or terrorist activities;

major public health issues, such as a pandemic or epidemic,
which could cause disruptions in the Combined Group's
operations, supply chain, or workforce;

information systems failures or disruptions, including due
to cyber-attacks;

difficulties enforcing intellectual property and contractual
rights, or limitations in the protection of technology, data,
and intellectual property, in certain jurisdictions; and

unexpected events, accidents, or environmental incidents,
including natural disasters.

Alcoa has experienced some of these events, and while the
impact of any of the foregoing factors is difficult to predict,

any one or more of them could adversely affect the Combined
Group's business, financial condition, or results of operations in
the future. Insurance arrangements may not provide sufficient
coverage or reimbursement for significant costs that may arise
from such events.

Unexpected or uncontrollable events or circumstances in any
of the foreign markets in which the Combined Group will
operate, including actions by foreign governments such as
changes in foreign policy or fiscal regimes, termination of the
Combined Group's leases or agreements with such foreign
governments, increased government regulation, or forced
curtailment or continuation of operations, could materially
and adversely affect the Combined Group's business, financial
condition, or results of operations.

Alcoa has in the past been and may in the future be unable to
obtain, maintain, or renew permits or approvals necessary for
the Combined Group’s mining operations, which could
materially adversely affect the Combined Group's operations
and profitability.

Alcoa’s mining operations are subject to extensive permitting
and approval requirements. These include permits and
approvals issued by various government agencies and
regulatory bodies at the federal, state, and local levels of
governments in the countries in which the Combined Group
will operate. The permitting and approval rules are complex,
are often subject to interpretations by regulators, which may
change over time, and may be impacted by heightened levels
of regulatory oversight and stakeholder focus on addressing
environmental and social impacts of mining activities.

Changing expectations and increased information required
by regulators has in the past and could in the future make the
Combined Group's ability to comply with the applicable
requirements more difficult, inhibit or delay the Combined
Group's ability to timely obtain the necessary approvals, if

at all, result in approvals being conditioned in a manner that
may restrict the Combined Group's ability to efficiently

and economically conduct its mining activities, require the
Combined Group to adjust its mining plans, or preclude

the continuation of certain ongoing operations and mining
activities or the development of future mining operations.
Failure to obtain, maintain, or renew permits or approvals, or
permitting or approval delays, restrictions, o